
 

 

 

 

 
1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

FRIDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2020 AT 2.00 PM 
 

VIRTUAL REMOTE MEETING - REMOTE 
 
Telephone enquiries to 023 9283 4058 
Email: Vicki.plytas@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Membership 
 
Councillor Leo Madden (Chair) 
Councillor Simon Bosher (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor John Ferrett 
Councillor Judith Smyth 
Councillor Tom Wood 
Councillor Neill Young 
 
Standing Deputies 
 
Councillor Matthew Atkins 
Councillor Ben Dowling 
Councillor Graham Heaney 
Councillor Donna Jones 
Councillor Terry Norton 
 

 
((NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.) 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
Deputations 
A written deputation stating to which agenda decision item it refers must be received by the 
officer named at the top of the agenda by 12 noon two working days preceding the meeting. 
Any written deputation received by email will be sent to the Members on the relevant decision 
making body and be referred to and read out at the meeting within permitted time limits 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 1   Apologies for Absence  

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 

 2   Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 3   Minutes of the meetings held on 3 March and 25 September 2020 (Pages 
7 - 26) 
 

  RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the meetings held on 3 March 2020 
and 25 September 2020 each be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record. 

 4   2019/20 Audit Results Report (Pages 27 - 86) 
 

  Portsmouth City Council's Audit Results - for noting. 

 5   Annual Governance Statement (Pages 87 - 108) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to seek approval from the Governance and Audit 
and Standards Committee for the council's Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) for 2019/20.  
 
RECOMMENDED that the Committee is asked to agree the Annual 
Governance Statement 2019/20 (Appendix 1) 
 
(to be signed off before the Statement of Accounts) 
 
 

 6   Risk and assurance management policy (Pages 109 - 120) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to present the council's risk and assurance 
management policy to the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 
for approval.  
 
RECOMMENDED that the Governance and Audit and Standards 
Committee is asked to: 
 
1) Approve the attached Risk and Assurance Management Policy 
2) Agree to review the risk management policy in November 2022, 

including risks current at the time and lessons learnt over the 
previous year 

 
 

 7   Annual Statement of Accounts 2019/2020 (Pages 121 - 308) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to consider the Statement of Accounts for 
2019/20. 
 



 
3 

 

RECOMMENDED 
 

(1) That the Statement of Accounts be approved 
 

(2) That authority be delegated to the Chair of the Governance and 
Audit and Standards Committee to sign an amended 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts after 20th November should this be 
required following comments by the auditor 

 8   Treasury Management Mid-Year Review (Pages 309 - 322) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to inform members and the wider community of 
the Council’s Treasury Management position, ie. its borrowing and cash 
investments at 30th September 2020 and of the risks attached to that position. 

Whilst the Council has a portfolio of investment properties and some equity 
shares which were acquired through the capital programme; these do not in 
themselves form part of the treasury management function 
 
RECOMMENDED to note 

(1) That the Council's Treasury Management activities have remained 
within the Treasury Management Policy 2020/21 in the period up to 
30th September 2020. 

(2) The actual Treasury Management indicators as at 30th September 
2020 set out in Appendix A. 

 . 

 9   PCC companies - Shareholder Committee terms of reference (Pages 323 
- 358) 
 

  The report originally marked "to follow" was published on 13 November. 
Purpose 
In accordance with the Cabinet meeting of 26 March 2020 and the 
recommendation… the City Solicitor prepares and drafts a protocol - by the 
Governance and Audit Committee as a reference and guide for the overall 
corporate governance structure (i.e. company structure and board composition) 
relating to PCC owned companies and incorporated within the PCC's constitution.  
 
This report sets out the detail and terms of reference to be included within the 
constitution and adopted by the to be incorporated Shareholder Committee 
RECOMMENDED 

(1) Approve the Shareholder Committee terms of reference at 
appendix A and  delegate to the City Solicitor they are 
incorporated within the Council's constitution; and 

(2) Note the Local Government Lawyer best practice guidance (at 
appendix B) and delegation provided to the City Solicitor to work 
with all PCC owned companies to ensure the necessary 
constitutional changed and guidance is on boarded by the 
Shareholder Committee post incorporation 

 10   Compliance with Gifts & Hospitality protocol (Pages 359 - 380) 



 
4 

 

 

   
The purpose of the report is to update Members on any issues regarding 
compliance with Gifts & Hospitality protocol and to advise on remedies. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 

(1) The Committee considers whether or not to make any 
recommendations for change. 

(2) In the absence of any changes, the report is noted. 

 11   Internal Audit Performance Status Report to 6 November 2020. (Pages 
381 - 408) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to update the Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee on the Internal Audit Performance for 2020/21 to 6th 
November 2020 against the Annual Audit Plan, highlight areas of concern and 
areas where assurance can be given on the internal control framework.  
 
RECOMMENDED that Members note the Audit Performance and results 
for 2020/21 to 6th November 2020.  

 12   Consideration of the political balance rules in relation to the constitution 
of Sub-Committees considering complaints against Members. (Pages 
409 - 410) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to ask the Committee to consider whether it 
wishes to disapply the political balance rules in respect of its Sub-Committees 
which consider complaints against Members and to agree that the same rule 
shall apply to the Initial Filtering Panel. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the political balance rules are disapplied in respect 
of Governance and Audit and Standards Sub-Committees which are 
considering complaints against Members and also the same 
arrangement should apply in respect of Initial Filtering Panel 
membership.  

 13   Data Security Breach Report (Pages 411 - 426) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to inform the Committee of any Data Security 
Breaches and actions agreed/taken since the last reporting period along with 
an analysis over the year for the period November 2019 to October 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDED that Members of the Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee note the breaches (by reference to Appendix A) that have 
arisen and the action determined by the Corporate Information 
Governance Panel (CIGP). 
 

 14   Exclusion of Press and Public  



 
5 

 

 

  In view of the contents of the appendices to the following item on the 
agenda the Committee is RECOMMENDED to adopt the following 
motion: 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government 
Act, 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act, 1985, the press and public be excluded for the consideration of the 
following item on the grounds that the appendices to the report contains 
information defined as exempt in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act, 1972" 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption must outweigh the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
Under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) England Regulations 2012, regulation 5, the 
reasons for exemption of the listed appendices are shown below.  
(NB The exempt/confidential committee papers on the agenda will 
contain information which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties. Members are 
reminded of standing order restrictions on the disclosure of exempt 
information and are asked to dispose of exempt documentation as 
confidential waste at the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
Item         Exemption Para No.* 
 
15. Procurement Management Information 
(Exempt Appendices 1, 2 and 3)     3 
 
*3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information 

 15   Procurement Management (information only) (Pages 427 - 438) 
 

   
The purpose of the report is to provide evidence to allow the committee to 
evaluate the extent that Portsmouth City Council is producing contracts for goods, 
works and services in a legally compliant value for money basis. 
 
The report is for noting. 

 
This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785  
 

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
1 

 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING of the Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee held on Tuesday, 3 March 2020 at 4.00 pm in the Executive 
Meeting Room, Third Floor, The Guildhall, Portsmouth. 
 
(NB These minutes should be read in conjunction with the agenda for the 

meeting which can be found at www.portsmouth.gov.uk.) 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Leo Madden (in the chair) 
  
 Councillor Graham Heaney 

Councillor Hugh Mason 
Councillor Terry Norton 
Councillor Neill Young 
 

 
Officers 

 
Peter Baulf, City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 

Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor 
Paul Somerset, Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 

Julian Pike, Deputy Head of Finance & Deputy S151 Officer 
Michael Lloyd, Directorate Finance Manager 
Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager 

Charlotte Smith, Assistant Director, Communications 
Greg Povey, Assistant Director Contracts, Procurement, Commercial 

 
External Auditors 

 
Helen Thompson, 

David White, Manager, Assurance - Government and 
Public Sector, Ernst & Young 

 
 

  
 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Simon Bosher, 
John Ferrett and Judith Smyth. 
Councillor Terry Norton deputised for Councillor Bosher and Councillor 
Graham Heaney deputised for Councillor Judith Smyth. 
 
(The Chair agreed to vary the order of items on the agenda but these have 
been kept in their original place for ease of reference.) 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 
2 

 

2. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of members' interests.  
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 September 2019 (AI 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2019 
be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

4. Treasury Management Monitoring Report for the Third Quarter of 
2019/20 (AI 4) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
Michael Lloyd introduced the report explaining that there had been no 
breaches of the Treasury Management Policy.  He said there had been no 
new borrowing in Quarter 3. 
 
During discussion  

 With regard to page 23 concerning cheaper sources of borrowing, Mr 
Lloyd said he considered it would be possible to find cheaper rates of 
borrowing in the new environment - probably around 0.3% less than 
borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board.(PWLB) 

 In response to a query about why the PWLB had increased its rates, 
Mr Lloyd said that local authorities had been increasingly investing in 
commercial property - sometimes borrowing huge amounts of money 
from PWLB to do so. It seems that government was not entirely happy 
with this situation.  Increasing the PWLB rates is a way of dissuading 
local authorities from acting in this way although there are likely to be 
other factors influencing that decision - such as the PWLB approaching 
the limit on what it can lend.  He confirmed the increase in rates would 
have an impact on all borrowing - not just that for commercial 
purposes. 

 It was confirmed that the Hampshire Community Bank had still not 
received its Banking Licence but that it was expected before long.  Mr 
Lloyd said he would let Committee members know as soon as he could 
as to when the Banking Licence would be obtained and would also 
provide information on when the City Council could expect a return on 
its investment. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted 
 

(1) That the Council's Treasury Management activities have 
remained within the Treasury Management Policy 2019/20 in 
the period up to 31 December 2019 

(2) The actual Treasury Management indicators as at 31 
December 2019 set out in Appendix A. 

 
5. Treasury Management Policy for 2020/21 (AI 5) 

 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

Page 8



 
3 

 

Michael Lloyd introduced the report advising that the report was before this 
committee for scrutiny and comment and that it would also be going on to 
Cabinet and then to Full Council on 17 March for approval.  He detailed the 
recommendations in the report. 
The main changes are a recommendation that preference should be given to 
investments that support the environment, have a beneficial social impact and 
good governance - provided that these do not increase the risks to the 
Council in terms of security of investment or liquidity nor which give lower 
returns. 
The other main change concerns lending to the Hampshire Community Bank.  
Previously loans were to be secured on loans given by the bank which in turn 
were to be secured on tangible fixed assets.  However many of the Bank's 
potential borrowers do not have tangible assets.  A recommendation has been 
included this time to allow lending to HCB to be secured on loans made by 
HCB to small and medium sized enterprises on the highest credit quality 
which may not in turn be secured on tangible fixed assets.  In addition it is 
recommended that the maximum duration of loans to HCB be reduced from 
10 to 5 years. 
 
 In answer to queries 

 The risk of default will be addressed by ensuring loans are given to 
counterparties of good credit-worthiness.  In case of default, HCB will 
secure on personal guarantees which it is accepted are not as good as 
securing on tangible assets.  However the risk is also mitigated by 
reducing the duration of the loans. 

 The City Solicitor confirmed that loans secured on tangible assets are 
more secure, but loans secured on personal guarantees are quite 
common and there is no legal difference. 

 It was confirmed that investing in an environmentally friendly and 
socially beneficial way will not necessarily produce lower returns.  
Environmentally harmful concerns are likely to be subject to more 
stringent regulations in future.  

 
The Chair complimented the author on a well-written report.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the recommendations in section 3 
of the report that will go on to Cabinet and then to Full Council for 
approval. 
  
 

6. External Auditors -2019/20 Audit Plan (AI 6) 
 

(TAKE IN PLAN) 
Helen Thompson and David White, external auditors, first updated the 
Committee on matters relating to the timing of the audit. Auditors are required 
to deliver quality audits both in the corporate and public sectors but there has 
been a shortage of suitably qualified staff across the audit profession to carry 
out the work required. The timing of audits to meet deadlines has become an 
issue given the volume of work and the shortage of staff.   It has now been 
established that the 31 July deadline means that narrative statements have to 
be published by then - with or without an audit opinion.   

Page 9



 
4 

 

The external auditors have been in discussion with Portsmouth City Council 
(PCC) and the Chair of this Committee in relation to the timing of PCC's audit 
and were very grateful that agreement had been reached to re schedule it to a 
later date.  They assured the Committee that this is in no way a reflection on 
the quality of PCC's financial statements or officers but is a mutually agreed 
position.  It will have no reputational impact on PCC but will allow external 
auditors more time to do the necessary work.  External Audit is now looking to 
re-schedule the work to start in August/September until October aiming to 
report to this Committee at its November meeting. 
The Chair commented that he had no issues with this provided it was above 
board and legal.  This assurance was given. 
In response to concerns that this would mean risks potentially not being 
identified till much later in the year, the Committee was assured that risks 
most likely to have an impact had already been identified as part of the interim 
audit and that the auditors would be in close contact with officers all the way 
through the work.  If anything unexpected were to be identified as a risk, the 
External Auditors would advise PCC as soon as they became aware of that.  
The timing of meetings to fit in with the audit work and finance work would be 
reviewed by Finance staff and Democratic Services.  
 
With regard to the Audit Plan, David White drew Members' attention to the 
risks set out in section 02 of the Audit Planning report.  External auditors are 
required to include the first two risks but there is a newly identified risk relating 
to the acquisition of Lakeside.  He advised that this would require a specialist 
valuation which was already underway. 
David White also drew Members' attention to page 16 of the Audit Planning 
report in relation to IFRS 16 - Leases. Implementation of IFRS 16 will be 
included in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (the Code) for 2020/21.  The Code has yet to be published although 
guidance to practitioners is available. The main impact of IFRS 16 is to 
remove (for lessees) the traditional distinction between finance leases and 
operating leases as detailed in the report.  Assets and liabilities in relation to 
significant lease arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases 
will need to be recognised on the balance sheet.  Work would be necessary to 
secure information required to enable authorities to fully assess their leasing 
position and ensure compliance with the standard from 1 April 2020. 
 
In response to a query, it was confirmed that when the Code is published, this 
was not expected to cause PCC any problems as officers have the necessary 
work in hand. 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the 2019/20 Audit Plan. 
 
 

7. Corporate Complaints (updated)(information only) (AI 7) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
Charlotte Smith, Assistant director of Corporate Services, introduced the 
report which was to provide additional information requested by the 
Committee in relation to complaints upheld by the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). 

Page 10



 
5 

 

The report concluded that the number of complaints referred to and upheld by 
the LGO has remained relatively static and PCC continues to compare well 
with other local authorities. 
The Chair thanked officers for the report and asked for this level of detail to be 
included in future reports.  
 
The Committee noted the updated information only report. 
 

8. Members' Training Report (information only) (AI 8) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
The City Solicitor, introduced the report which updated the Committee on the 
2020 training programme for councillors and reported on the training 
undertaken by elected members in 2019.  
Training is provided and it is up to Members to access it as appropriate.   
During discussion 

 Although training is not compulsory as such, Members would not be 
allowed to sit on some committees/panels without first being trained. 

 The Chair commented that Group Leaders could be pro-active in 
encouraging their members to complete relevant training. 

 
The Committee noted the updated information only report. 
 
 

9. Appointment of Independent Persons (AI 9) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
The City Solicitor introduced the report which outlined the reasons for the 
suggested appointment of two additional Independent Persons under the 
provisions of the Localism Act 2011. 
There are currently two Independent Persons whose appointments expire in 
2021.  It is considered that the appointment of an additional two Independent 
Persons will assist with the complaints process. 
The City Solicitor advised that following an advertisement for additional 
Independent Persons, interviews were held on 6 February 2020.  The 
Member Panel (that included the Chair and Vice Chair of Governance & Audit 
& Standards Committee) recommended that Mark Walsh and John Young be 
appointed.   
 
The Committee endorsed the Member Panel's recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee recommend that Council appoints Mark 
Walsh and John Young as Independent Persons for three years from 1 
May 2020 through to 1 May 2023. 
 

10. Quarterly Performance Management Report (AI 10) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager, introduced the report which is 
part of a regular series of quarterly reports highlighting significant 
performance issues across the organisation. 

Page 11



 
6 

 

Appendix 1 summarises directorate issues, Appendix 2a provides a summary 
of performance issues, Appendix 2b provides the performance issues in detail 
and Appendix 3 identifies projects. 
 
During discussion 

 Members asked for more detail in relation to the Care Quality 
Commission service ratings percentages on the first page of Appendix 
2a.in relation to nursing homes, residential homes, domiciliary and 
community.  They asked what was included in these assessments and 
why community was showing red. The Corporate Services Manager 
said she would find out and let the Committee know.  

 Under the priority headed "encourage regeneration built around our 
city's thriving culture, making Portsmouth a great place to live work and 
visit," members suggested that the success of the Enterprise Centres 
measured through occupancy levels should be taken to the relevant 
Cabinet Member.  There appears to be great demand for small 
affordable work space in the right location so increased supply would 
be of value to the City. Kelly Nash said that she would pass this on. 

  
The Chair thanked the Corporate Performance Manager for her report. 

 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee 

(1) Noted the report in the revised format 
(2) Agreed if any further action is required in response to 

performance issues highlighted 
 

11. Code of Conduct Report re Social Media (AI 11) 
 
The City Solicitor introduced the report which gives members the opportunity 
to consider the proposed wording to add to the Employees' Code of Conduct 
in respect of an employee's use of social media set out in Appendix A. The 
background is included in section 3 of the report and the reasons for the 
recommendations are set out in section 4. 
 
During discussion 

 It was agreed that a report would be brought back to this Committee in 
a year's time to consider how the introduction of the new section has 
worked in practice 

 The City Solicitor said that although no monitoring would take place, 
the wording gives clarity to employees and the employer about what is 
expected of them in this context. If the Code is not adhered to it could 
become a disciplinary matter. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee 

(1) Noted the importance of informing an employee about 
personal use of social media 

(2) Supported the wording presented in Appendix A for 
inclusion in the Employees' Code of Conduct 

(3) Agreed for the revisions to be recommended to Full 
Council. 

Page 12



 
7 

 

 
12. Gifts and Hospitality report (officers and members) (AI 12) 

 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

The City Solicitor introduced the report advising that protocol requires an 
annual report on compliance to enable the Committee to recommend changes 
if they considered that to be necessary.  Details of what can and cannot be 
accepted are detailed in section 4 of the report. Appendices 1 to 7 provide 
details of gifts received. 
The City Solicitor confirmed that none of the declarations gave him cause for 
concern. 
During discussion it was confirmed 

 that the register was published on the Council's website 

 that the period covered ran from October one year to October the next. 
 
RESOLVED  

(1) That the Committee considered whether or not to make any 
recommendations for change 

(2) That in the absence of any changes, the report was noted. 
 

13. Report on Complaints Received in connection with alleged Code of 
Conduct breaches (AI 13) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
The City Solicitor introduced the report advising that there had not been many 
complaints against members during the period covered. The complaints 
mainly related to social media and all but one had been dealt with at the Initial 
Filter Panel (IFP) stage. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee 

(1) Noted the report 
(2) Considered whether any further action is required by them. 

 
14. Constitution Part 2 Section 5 (A, B and C). (AI 14) 

 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

The City Solicitor introduced the report advising that there had been a good 
level of engagement from officers and that the purpose of the changes was to 
update the Constitution Part 2, Section 5 Chief Officers' Delegated Authority. 
He drew Members' attention to the main changes explaining that they are 
designed to accurately reflect the scheme of delegation following directorate 
restructures and also includes a new Shareholder Committee Protocol. 
Details of the proposed changes are shown in the appendices. 
 
The Chair thanked the City Solicitor for the report. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee recommended to Council the proposed 
amendments to Part 2 Section 5 Chief Officers' Delegated Authority for 
adoption into the Council's constitution. 
 

Page 13



 
8 

 

15. Proposed revision to Standing Order 32 - Referral of Motions to other 
bodies of the Council (AI 15) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
The City Solicitor introduced the report advising that this would remove the 
option of referring Notices of Motion to other Council bodies for subsequently 
reporting back to Council.  Effectively this would mean that all Notices of 
Motion would be discussed. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee recommended to Full Council that all the 
wording after the first sentence in section d of Standing Order 32 be 
deleted leaving "Motions included in the agenda must be formally 
moved and seconded." 
 
 

16. Data Security Breaches (AI 16) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 

The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report explaining that part of her role 
included being the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO). A regular report 
was brought to this Committee to advise of any ongoing breaches and to 
notify members of any new incidents. A summary of incidents is shown in 
Appendix A. For future reports, it was intended to change the format of the 
Appendix to show additional information for greater transparency.  For 
example it was likely that the incidents would be recorded by directorate so 
that it would be clear if more incidents were reported in some directorates 
than others.  This would help identify whether there were any underlying 
issues that needed intervention. 
 
During discussion 

 Members commented that the appendix showed that very few incidents 
were reported to the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO) and 
asked for more details on the process leading up to a decision on 
whether or not to report.  The Chief Internal Auditor advised that the 
Information Governance team first assessed whether or not a breach 
had occurred by reference to various criteria.  If in doubt, they would 
refer the incident to her for her decision on whether or not to report. 
Section 3 gave details of the Corporate Information Governance Panel 
meetings. 

 It was confirmed that the ICO was content with how the City Council 
was operating.  In relation to reported incidents, the ICO would request 
additional information if they needed it. The ICO was more concerned 
with being satisfied that a sound framework was in place to deal with 
any incidents. 

 It was agreed that there was currently no comparison data year on year 
relating to data breaches and that this would be useful in future so that 
an assessment could be made as to whether things were improving or 
worsening.  The Chief Internal Auditor would consider how this data 
could be provided. 

 

Page 14



 
9 

 

RESOLVED that the Committee noted the breaches (by reference to 
Appendix A) that have arisen and the action determined by the 
Corporate Information Governance Panel (CIGP). 
 

17. Whistleblowing Report (AI 17) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report explaining that Appendix A 
updated the Committee on the nature and handling of whistleblowing 
concerns for the period from January to December 2019.  Appendix B showed 
minor amendments to the wording of the Policy to reflect personnel changes, 
for approval by the Committee.  
There had been three investigations in 2019 as shown in Appendix A. 
 
During discussion 

 In response to a query about whether a whistleblower could be 
confident that their anonymity would be preserved, the Chief Internal 
Auditor said that historically PCC had a reasonably good track record 
in this regard.  However if the incident became a police matter, 
anonymity could not then be guaranteed.  If it became necessary to 
divulge the person's name, they would be told before disclosure was 
made and would be given as much support as possible.  

 
RESOLVED that the Committee 

(1) Noted this report and the attached Appendix A and 
considered whether any further action is required 

(2) Approved the changes to the whistleblowing policy 
(Appendix B) which has been amended following the 
departure of the previous City Solicitor and the Director of 
HR Legal and Performance. 

 
18. Exclusion of Press and Public (AI 18) 

 
RESOLVED that under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act, 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act, 1985, the press and public be excluded for the 
consideration of the following items on the grounds that the appendices 
to the reports contain information defined as exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972. 
 
The Chair advised that proceedings would be kept open until such time as 
there was any discussion relating to the exempt appendices included in the 
reports on the following items on the agenda and would move into exempt 
session at that point.  
 

19. Audit Performance Status Report to 29 January 2020 (AI 19) 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report which updated the Committee 
on the Internal Audit Performance for 2019/20 to 29 January 2020 against the 
Annual Audit Plan, highlighted areas of concern and areas where assurance 

Page 15



 
10 

 

can be given on the internal control framework. In addition the 2020/21 
Annual Audit Plan was attached as Appendix C for committee approval. 
 
Areas of concern are set out in section 5 of the Internal Audit Progress report 
attached as Appendix A.  
 
Once the open part of the papers for this and the following item had been 
discussed, the Chair moved the meeting into exempt session.  A brief 
explanation of the contents of the exempt appendix was given in exempt 
session. A further more detailed update would be provided at a future 
meeting. 
 
The Chair thanked Internal Audit for their interesting and detailed report. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee 

(1) Noted the Audit Performance for 2019/20 to 29 January 2020 
(2) Noted the highlighted areas of concern in relation to audits 

completed from the 2019/20 Audit Plan, including follow up 
work performed 

(3) Endorsed the Audit Plan for 2020/21 
 

20. Procurement Management (information only) (AI 20) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 
Greg Povey introduced the report which provided evidence to allow the 
Committee to evaluate the extent to which Portsmouth City Council is 
achieving value for money in its contracts for goods, services and works. 
 
Section 1 provides details of compliance with Contract Procedure Rules. 
The target set by the Committee of greater than 95% conformance with 
contract procedure rules has been exceeded. 
Section 2 shows waivers awarded this quarter. 
Section 3 provides a breakdown by directorate of the actual spend during 
quarter 3 2019/20 on contracts which have waivers associated with them.  
Section 4 shows spend by contract size. 
Section 5 shows the Council's top ten suppliers. 
Section 6 shows suppliers paid over £100.000 in Q3 by directorate. 
Section 7 shows supplier performance. 
Section 8 shows supplier performance monitoring.   
 
During discussion 

 Appendix 2 was referred to which showed that the reason for 4 waivers 
was reported as being "insufficient time." Members asked how it was 
determined that that was the case.  Mr Povey explained that generally 
these situations tended to arise where there was a need to react to 
unforeseen circumstances - such as a directive from central 
government.  In the case of the Berth 2 Boarding Bridge and Satellite 
reception concept engineering, a very tight timescale was necessary to 
meet technical requirements and customer demand. Detailed file notes 
were kept. 

Page 16



 
11 

 

 
During exempt session members were given the opportunity to ask questions 
on the exempt appendices. 
 
The Chair thanked Greg Povey, for his contributions to this Committee over 
several years and wished him every success in his new role in West Sussex. 
 
The committee noted the information only report. 
 
 
At the close of the meeting, the Chair noted that Councillors John Ferrett and 
Neill Young would not be standing for re-election at the May 2020 Local 
Elections.  He expressed his thanks to them both for their valuable 
contributions to the Committee and wished them well for the future.  
 
 
The meeting concluded at 5.45 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Leo Madden 
Chair 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
1 

 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING of the Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee held on Friday, 25 September 2020 at 2.00 pm at the Virtual 
Remote Meeting - Remote 
 
(NB These minutes should be read in conjunction with the agenda for the 

meeting which can be found at www.portsmouth.gov.uk.) 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Leo Madden (in the chair for agenda items 1-
6) 

 Councillor Simon Bosher (Vice-Chair - in the chair for 
agenda items 7-10) 

 Councillor John Ferrett 
Councillor Judith Smyth 
 

Officers 

Julian Pike, Deputy Director of Finance and S151 officer 
Michael Lloyd, Directorate Finance Manager 

Charlotte Smith, Assistant Director Corporate Services 
John Thomas, Complaints Manager Adult Services 

Karen Fitzgerald, Corporate Complaints Officer 
Peter Baulf, City Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 

Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor 
Richard Lock, Assistant Procurement Manager 

 
External Auditor 

David White, Manager, Assurance - Government and 
Public Sector, Ernst & Young 

  
 

31. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 
 
The Chair, Councillor Leo Madden, welcomed everyone to the meeting and 
explained that it was being held virtually because of restrictions imposed 
following the outbreak of Covid 19. 
He agreed to vary the order of the agenda to hear item 6 first. (For ease of 
reference the item will remain in its original place in the minutes.) 
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Young. 
 

32. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
There were no declarations of members' interests. 
 

33. Minutes of the meetings held on 3 March and 24 July 2020 (AI 3) 
 

Page 19

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 
2 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2020 could not be signed off as 
only one Member was present at this meeting who had also been present at 
the March meeting. 
 
RESOLVED  

(1) that approval of the draft minutes from the meeting held on 3 
March 2020 be deferred to the next scheduled meeting of the 
Committee. 

(2) that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2020 be approved 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
34. Treasury Management Outturn Report for 2019/20 (AI 4) 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
Julian Pike introduced the report which informs members and the wider 
community of the Council's treasury management activities in 2019/20 and of 
the Council's treasury management position as at 31 March 2020.  
The report outlines borrowing activity and the adverse effect Covid 19 had on 
the corporate bond market, and also explains that the market had recovered 
by the end of the first quarter of 2020. 
 
During discussion 

 Reference was made to the paragraph in Appendix A about it being 
clear that the Treasury intends to put a stop to local authorities 
borrowing money from the Public Works Lending Board (PWLB) to 
purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an 
income stream. It was confirmed that PCC had borrowed from the 
PWLB to fund the commercial property portfolio and for a whole range 
of non- commercial council services.  The government had not yet 
defined what is meant by "commercial activity." 

 In response to a query about whether there would be likely to be any 
penalty if money is borrowed from PWLB for this purpose, the 
committee was advised that the government was consulting on this 
matter and had not yet reached a decision.  Central government has 
said that if future commercial activity is included in the capital 
programme then local authorities would not be able to access PWLB 
funds in that financial year. This would not be too much of a problem if 
it related to buying a new property, but would be more of a problem if 
for example a roof had to be replaced. The Council could borrow 
elsewhere though such as through the private market and the 
municipal bonds agency. 

 The reports before the committee today are primarily about treasury 
management and how the council borrows and invests surplus cash.        
A report on the commercial property portfolio itself is included in the 
Council's annual capital strategy report. 

 In response to a query about whether the council would have to 
redeem mortgages and find other lenders if the government decides 
not to allow further PWLB borrowing, it was confirmed that the 
government has already said that it will not penalise authorities for 
existing commercial activity - but change will be required if an authority 
wishes to repair or replace a property. 

Page 20



 
3 

 

 Members agreed that there is a need for visibility about the property 
investment portfolio as things have changed dramatically over the last 
18 months and asked that a report be brought to this committee in 6 
months' time. The property service would need to supply that report.   

 With regard to VESL mentioned on page 33, it was confirmed that 
£3.4m was spent over two financial years. External audit would look at 
the situation only in regard to their opinion on the council's accounts 
and value for money.  

 
The Chair thanked Julian Pike and Michael Lloyd for the report, 
 
RESOLVED that the actual prudential and treasury management 
indicators based on the unaudited accounts, as shown in Appendix B, 
be noted (an explanation of the prudential and treasury management 
indicators is contained in Appendix C). 
 

35. Treasury Management Monitoring Report for Quarter 1 of 2020/21 (AI 5) 
(TAKE IN REPORT information only) 

Michael Lloyd introduced the report which informs members and the wider 
community of the Council’s Treasury Management position, ie. its borrowing 
and cash investments at 30 June 2020 and of the risks attached to that 
position.  
Whilst the Council has a portfolio of investment properties and some equity 
shares which were acquired through the capital programme; these do not in 
themselves form part of the treasury management function.  
 
(At this point, Councillor Madden had to leave the meeting and Councillor 
Bosher took over as Chair.)  
 
There were no questions. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 

(1) It be noted that the Council's Treasury Management activities 
have remained within the Treasury Management Policy 2020/21 in 
the period up to 30 June 2020. 

(2) The actual Treasury Management indicators as at 30 June 2020 
set out in Appendix A be noted. 

 
36. Corporate Complaints (AI 6) 

(TAKE IN REPORT information only) 
The Chair agreed to vary the order of the agenda but the item has been kept 
in its original place in the minutes for ease of reference. 
 
Charlotte Smith, Assistant Director, Corporate Services, Karen Fitzgerald, 
Corporate Complaints Manager and John Thomas, Complaints Manager Adult 
Services attended for this item.  Charlotte Smith introduced the report which 
brings to the attention of the Committee the Annual Review of Complaints by 
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) dated July 
2020, regarding complaints it has considered against Portsmouth City Council 
for the year 2019/20. 

Page 21



 
4 

 

Overall there had been a reduction in corporate complaints.  Although it is not 
possible to say definitely why that has happened, much work has been done 
on addressing customer issues at the first point of contact, so this may have 
helped.  In particular a concerted effort has been made on customer services 
by Housing, Neighbourhood and Building Services and the number of 
complaints in that area has decreased significantly. 
Adherence to timescales improved in stage 1 and 2 complaints, but worsened 
for stage 3 complaints - perhaps because stage 3 complaints are usually 
more complex and time-consuming to resolve. However the time taken 
currently to resolve stage 3 complaints is not acceptable and efforts are being 
made to identify issues and improve.  
The number of complaints referred to the Ombudsman has reduced from 45 
to 35 and the number of upheld complaints has also dropped.  The City 
Council compares favourably with other similar authorities as shown in the 
table in the report at section 6. 
The upheld complaints have been detailed in the report with the links to the 
complete details on the Local Government Ombudsman's website.  The 
upheld complaints are not concentrated in one area.  
 
Overall the report shows a positive move forward. 
 
The Chair said that complaints are welcomed as they help the authority to 
improve and this is also the view of the Ombudsman as mentioned in 5.2 of 
the report.  
In response to questions 

 It was noted that the two tables on page 56 in the report are not directly 
comparable because the directorates have changed.  Reassurance 
was given that complaints have decreased in every area and that next 
year the tables will compare like with like. 

 With regard to whether there was any external assessment of our 
procedures and systems, members were advised that PCC's corporate 
complaints process was validated by the Ombudsman in 2018.  In 
addition it is more robust than in many other authorities as unusually 
PCC has a 3 stage process whereas most authorities only have 2 
stages.  PCC has been proactive in making reasonable adjustments as 
a result of one complaint. 

 It was confirmed that although there are no plans for a formal review 
into the length of time complaints take to resolve, a review of all stage 
3 complaints that have not met the timescales will be undertaken in 
order to understand the issues involved so they can be addressed. 

 It was confirmed that councillors who have queries about any complaint 
should contact Charlotte Smith or if it is a social care issue, either John 
Thomas or Natalie Beckett (Complaints Manager job share). The Chief 
Internal auditor, Elizabeth Goodwin added that the complaints process 
is also subject to internal audit so if there are any persistent 
complaints, internal auditors can also be contacted. 

 
The Chair thanked officers for the report which was NOTED. 
 
 
 

Page 22



 
5 

 

37. Audit Performance Status report to 7 September (AI 7) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor, introduced the report which 
updates the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee on the Internal 
Audit Performance for 2020/21 to 7 September 2020 against the Annual Audit 
Plan, highlights areas of concern and areas where assurance can be given on 
the internal control framework.  
The Chief Internal Auditor explained that since the last report internal audit 
has had to factor in a number of additional movements within the original 
proposed workload for 2021 - for example where there have been shifts in 
priority and where levels of grant work have been significantly high.  Page 73 
onwards shows that the plan is on target. There are 109 reviews broken down 
into full audits, follow up audits and second follow up audits. Page 74 details 
ongoing internal audit involvement.  There has been an increased level of 
advice and an increase in the number of special investigations.  A report will 
be presented to this committee at a later date specifically about the additional 
work that has had to be carried out (summarised on page 75) Some audits 
have had to be removed owing to depleted resources where staff have been 
redeployed. Page 78 onwards details areas where reviews have been 
undertaken. There are no areas of significant concern.  
Any changes will be included in the next report. 
In response to questions 

 It was confirmed that to manage the risk of Covid 19, when 
performing audits, a risk assessment is carried out that covers how the 
evidence will be collected.  Independence has to be assured and a 
balance must be achieved in each case. 

 It was confirmed that all audit activities where there is no direct 
impact on the audit client or the auditee have continued.  Auditors try to 
do as much work as possible behind the scenes. 

 It was confirmed that during the Covid 19 pandemic some internal 
audit staff had been redeployed for example to Revenues and Benefits 
in relation to business grant assessments and also to customer 
services and care home cleaning.  Attention has been given 
concerning where staff are redeployed to preserve independence.  
Redeployment has resulted in a slightly reduced plan and the situation 
is being regularly reviewed as similar measures may have to be taken 
again.   

 It was confirmed that a report will come to this committee that is 
intended to cover Covid 19 related matters such as emergency 
arrangements around some of the financial decisions made at the start 
of the pandemic.  It will also include activity on Covid 19 assurance 
reporting including procurement activity not related to grant verification 
(eg distribution of laptops) as processes need to be tested and there 
are likely to be lessons to be learned. The report will also look at 
financial rules and procurement waivers.  The Chief Internal Auditor 
also advised that for example when they look at payment cards, audits 
will be separated out between pre Covid and Covid onwards.   
The report will also include work that has been required in relation to 
the grants and will also cover discretionary grants, income loss 
compensation claims and will include any other concerns that arise. 

Page 23



 
6 

 

The Chief Internal auditor said that assurances around any 
arrangements made are necessary and will form part of the report to 
this committee.   

 
The Committee noted that page 81 of the report shows that Brambles Infant 
School has achieved a green rating all the way through their audit which is a 
very creditable achievement. 
 
The Chair thanked the Chief Internal Auditor for her report. 
 
RESOLVED that Members noted 

(1) the Audit Performance for 2020/21 to 7 September 2020. 
(2) the highlighted areas of concern in relation to audits 

completed from the 2020/21 Audit Plan, including follow up 
work performed. 

 
38. Political Balance Rules (AI 8) 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
Peter Baulf, City Solicitor, introduced the report advising that this is brought to 
the Committee regularly in the circumstances outlined in the report to ensure 
a wider range of membership. The Committee is asked to consider whether it 
wishes to disapply the political balance rules in respect of its Sub-Committees 
and the Initial Filtering Panels which consider complaints against Members  
 
RESOLVED unanimously that the political balance rules are disapplied 
in respect of Governance and Audit and Standards Sub-Committees 
which are considering complaints against Members and also the same 
arrangement should apply in respect of Initial Filtering Panel 
membership.  
 

39. Exclusion of Press and Public (AI 9) 
 
RESOLVED that under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act, 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act, 1985, the press and public be excluded for the 
consideration of the following items on the grounds that the appendices 
to the report contains information defined as exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972. 
 
The Chair advised that proceedings would be kept open until such time as 
there was any discussion relating to the exempt appendices included in the 
report on the following item on the agenda and would move into exempt 
session at that point.  
 

40. Procurement Management (information only) (AI 10) 
(TAKE IN REPORT for information only) 

Richard Lock, Acting Procurement Manager, introduced the report which 
provides evidence to allow the committee to evaluate the extent that 
Portsmouth City Council is producing contracts for goods, works and services 
in a legally compliant value for money basis. 
 

Page 24



 
7 

 

The last report showed the position immediately after Covid 19 and this report 
shows the following quarter reflecting the first stages of recovery. Compliance 
has increased from 64% to 80% largely because resources have been 
redirected.  Once sense checking has been applied to the data, the 
percentage is 97%. Information was given to the Committee concerning the 
spend by directorates and measures being taken where any issues have been 
identified. 
 
The Committee congratulated Finance Services and Children's Services for 
achieving 99% conformance with the transparency code. 
 
Mr Lock explained he had split the waivers into 3 sections as outlined in the 
report which the committee found helpful. 
 
During discussion 

 Members asked for more detail on the waivers in response to the Covid 
19 emergency supplies and services. Mr Lock said that PPE is still a 
large spend but not as much as previously as PCC had built up 
supplies.  Also provided that central government progresses the PPE 
portal then PCC can just direct providers to that portal.  Also food is still 
in that area but less so now as supply lines had improved. The IBIS 
contract has also had to be extended. 

 Members thanked Mr. Lock for the additional exempt information that 
he had supplied since the last meeting which was very helpful and 
asked that he alerted them to anything which he considered should be 
brought to members' attention. Mr. Lock confirmed that his analysis 
had been given in the report and he would continue to provide 
additional detail. The report summary would draw members' attention 
to any issues.  He would also provide more detail on the waivers going 
forward.   

 Members said the KPI performance table was very useful.  Mr. Lock 
said he had concerns that KPIs were still not being completed by 
services. Consequently the team are focusing on getting contracts on 
the system and will then concentrate on the KPI performance being 
completed by services.  He advised that the team will review how the 
KPIs are being asked for and whether they are relevant and 
proportionate to risk and value. He hopes this will result in 
improvements. 

 Members hoped KPIs would move in the direction of relating to 
outcomes and value for money and Mr Lock said this is beginning to 
happen. 

 Members noted that the table in the report showed a number of 
contracts where KPIs are "never scored."  Mr Lock said that this is 
likely to be because contract managers have not updated the system. 

 In response to a query about how you would judge the contract if no 
KPIs had been completed and you were considering renewing it, Mr. 
Lock said that an extension form would have to be completed and 
signed off by Legal for any contract over £100k and this acted as a 
check.  Usually KPIs had been competed but just not entered on the 
system.  

Page 25



 
8 

 

 Members said they were confident that the area of KPIs not being 
scored or having expired was being looked into. This has been an 
ongoing issue for some time and should be looked at as a priority.  Mr. 
Lock said there had been some resource issues in that some contract 
managers had left.  However, a KPI specialist is being recruited which 
will assist in overhauling the system. 

 
The Chair thanked Mr Lock for his report and presentation, both of which were 
very good.  
 
The report was NOTED. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 3.40 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Leo Madden 
Chair 

 

 

Page 26



Portsmouth City Council
Audit results report

Year ended 31 March 2020

November 2020

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



2

12 November 2020

Dear Governance and Audit and Standards Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee. This report
summarises our preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Portsmouth City Council for 2019/20. We will issue our final report
following the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting scheduled for 20 November 2020, and when all outstanding work has
been completed.

Our audit of Portsmouth City Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 is in progress at the time of writing this report. We will provide an update
on the status of the audit at the 20 November meeting.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
statements in the form at section 3. We also expect to have no matters to report on your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources

This report is intended solely for the use of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior
management. It should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting on
20 November 2020.

Yours faithfully

Helen Thompson

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 28



3

Contents
Executive
Summary01 04Areas of

Audit Focus02 Audit Report03

Other
reporting
issues

06

Audit
Differences

Appendices10Assessment of
Control
Environment

07 Data
Analytics08 Independence09

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of
Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor,
take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue
up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any
complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

05 Value for
Money

V
F
M

P
age 29



4

Executive Summary01

P
age 30



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report presented at the 3 March 2020 Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit
scope and approach for the audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions:

Changes to reporting timescales
As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 404, have been published and came into force on
30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities.

Changes to our risk assessment as a result of Covid-19
We provided an update to our audit planning report at the 24 July 2020 meeting of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee. This highlighted the following
changes to our risk assessment:
• Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment and Investment Property - The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for

property valuations, issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there is a
material uncertainty. Since late March 2020 in the UK, Covid-19 had a dramatic impact on the occupation of buildings due to the forced closure of restaurants, retail
stores, leisure, offices and hotels due to government regulation. We do not know how long the government’s measures will last or how long businesses will be
impacted. Rental income is expected to fall as tenants may default on their rents or seek to negotiate rent reductions as they can no longer trade effectively. This
could have a significant impact on investment properties and we have therefore raised a significant risk in relation to investment property valuations. Since our
update was issued, we have also judged it necessary to associate this risk with property, plant and equipment valued on the basis of market information (existing use
value).

• Disclosures on Going Concern – Financial plans for 2020/21 and the medium term will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the unpredictability of the current
environment gave rise to a risk that the Authority would not appropriately disclose the key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by managements
assessment with particular reference to Covid-19 and the Authority’s actual year end financial position and performance.

• Adoption of IFRS16 – The adoption of IFRS 16 by CIPFA/LASAAC as the basis for preparation of Local Authority Financial Statements has been deferred until 1 April
2021.  The Authority will therefore no longer be required to undertake an impact assessment, and disclosure of the impact of the standard in the financial
statements does not now need to be financially quantified in 2019/20. We therefore no longer consider this to be an area of audit focus for 2019/20.

Changes to the scope of our audit as a result of Covid-19
• There have been no changes to the overall scope of our audit as a result of Covid-19.

• Changes in materiality: We updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft financial statements and have also reconsidered our risk assessment. Based
on our materiality measure of 1.8% of gross expenditure on provision of services, we have updated our overall materiality assessment to £11.08m (audit planning
report — £10.56m). This results in updated performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £8.309m, and an updated threshold for reporting
misstatements of £0.554m.

A summary of our approach to the audit of the balance sheet including any changes to that approach from the prior year audit is included in Appendix A.

P
age 31



6

Executive Summary

Scope update

Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the
entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Authority’s systems. We undertook the following to address
this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and

• Agreed IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports because of Covid-19. The changes to audit risks, audit approach and auditor
reporting requirements changed the level of work we needed to perform.

The fee impact of the changes to our audit will be discussed with management and reported to the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee as soon as possible.

P
age 32



7

Executive Summary

Status of the audit (continued)

Our audit of Portsmouth City Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 is in progress at the time of writing this report. We will provide an update on the status of the
audit at the 20 November meeting. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s
financial statements in the form which appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

• Testing of property, plant and equipment and investment property – principally valuations and additions
• Testing of expenditure and disclosures
• Residual work on pensions and creditors
• Value for money risk-based work
• Review of the Authority’s going concern assessment, and related internal consultation procedures regarding our auditors’ report (audit opinion)
• General audit procedures

The following are also outstanding or are to be completed as part of the conclusion of the audit:
• completion of our audit conclusion procedures
• review of the final version of the financial statements
• completion of subsequent events review
• receipt of the signed management representation letter
• completion of procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) regarding the Whole of Government Accounts submission

We expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit opinion.

Once the internal consultation regarding our audit opinion is complete, we will confirm any matters which the opinion will need to emphasise with regard to going
concern or PPE/Investment Property valuations.

P
age 33



8

Executive Summary

Audit differences

There are no unadjusted audit differences, or adjusted differences above our performance materiality level, arising from work completed to date.

As our audit work is ongoing at the time of writing this report, further adjusted and unadjusted misstatements may be identified. We will update the Governance and
Audit and Standards Committee at the meeting on 20 November 2020 if we identify any issues by the time of the meeting.

Areas of audit focus

Our audit planning report and subsequent update identified key areas of focus for our audit of Portsmouth City Council’s financial statements. This report sets out our
observations and conclusions, including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our
consideration of these matters, and any others identified, in the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report. The areas of focus were as shown below. Where work is
ongoing at the time of writing this report, a verbal update will be provided at the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 20 November. The
conclusions shown below remain subject to final review.

• Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition: inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure - no issues have been identified from our work to address
this risk at the time of writing this report.

• Misstatements due to fraud or error - no issues have been identified from our work to address this risk at the time of writing this report.
• Valuation of Lakeside North Harbour – our work to address this risk, with input from our internal valuation specialists, is ongoing
• Valuation of Land and Buildings and Investment Property – our work to address these risks, with input from our internal valuation specialists, is ongoing
• Going concern – our work in this area is ongoing
• PFI accounting - no issues have been identified from our work to address this risk
• Pension Liability Valuation – our work to address this risk is well progressed. One matter arising is being discussed with management
• Minimum Revenue Provision - no issues have been identified from our work to address this risk
• Restatement of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Expenditure and Funding Analysis, and related notes - no issues have been identified

from our work to address this risk
• Group Accounts Assessment - no issues have been identified from our work to address this risk

P
age 34



9

Executive Summary

Control observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls.

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed.
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in
internal control identified during our audit.

There are no matters we wish to report.

Areas of audit focus (continued)

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:
• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an  impact on these issues
• You agree with the resolution of the issue
• There are no other significant issues to be considered.
There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Governance and
Audit and Standards Committee.

Value for money

We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third parties. We
identified one significant risk to our value for money conclusion, in relation to informed decision making, and specifically to the purchase of Lakeside North Harbour.

Our work to address this risk remains ongoing at the time of writing this report. We do not expect to have any matters to report about your arrangements to secure
economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

P
age 35



10

Executive Summary

Other reporting issues

We review the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We do not expect to have any matters
to report as a result of this work.

We will perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission following the completion of the financial
statements audit and provide an update to the Committee following completion of this work.

We have no other matters to report.

Independence

Please refer to Section 9 for our update on Independence. We have no independence issues to report.

P
age 36



11

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 37



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In
the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of
expenditure recognition.
We have assessed the risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure, as
there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is funded from Council Tax. This could then result in funding of that
expenditure, that should properly be defined as revenue, through inappropriate sources such as capital receipts,
capital grants, or borrowing.
The value of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) additions in 2019/20 was £211m (£69m excluding Lakeside
purchase), and the value of Investment Property (IP) additions was £11m.

Risk of fraud in revenue
and expenditure
recognition –
inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure

What did we do?

Our approach focused on:

• We selected a sample of additions, using lowered testing thresholds, to test and confirm the
item was appropriate to capitalise through agreement to evidence such as invoices and capital
expenditure authorisations.

• When performing journals testing, we challenged entries that could be indicative of
inappropriate capitalisation, such any significant journals transferring expenditure from non-
capital codes to PPE/IP additions or from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the
end of the year.

What are our conclusions?

We have a small number of residual queries regarding our testing
of additions which are ongoing at this time. We will provide an
update to the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee on
20 November 2020.

Our work on journals remains subject to final review but we
expect to conclude that this testing has not identified any
indications of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

What judgements are we focused on?

Our work has focussed on any judgements exercised in determining whether expenditure is capital
in nature, and therefore appropriate to be capitalised rather than charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Significant Risk

P
age 38



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?Misstatements due to

fraud or error

What did we do?
Our approach focused on:
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other

adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements.
• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.
Further to this, we have:
• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those

risks, as well as gaining an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with
governance of management’s processes over fraud.

• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

What are our conclusions?

Our work in relation to this risk is ongoing at the time of writing
this report. To date:

• We have not identified any evidence of material management
override.

• We have not identified any instances of inappropriate
judgements being applied or other management bias both in
relation to accounting estimates and other balances and
transactions.

• We have not identified any other transactions which appeared
unusual or outside the Authority‘s normal course of business

We will provide an update at the meeting of the Governance and
Audit and Standards Committee on 20 November 2020.

What judgements are we focused on?

Our assessment of risk led us to create a series of criteria for the testing of journals, focusing
specifically on areas that could be open to management manipulation.  We have also focused
specifically on capitalisation of expenditure as a potential area of manipulation, which is recorded
as a separately identified significant risk on the previous page of this report.

Our work on estimates focussed on PPE (including Lakeside) and Investment Property valuation
which we have identified as areas of significant risk, and IAS19 pension estimates, minimum
revenue provision and PFI valuation, which we have identified as areas of higher inherent risk. Our
findings on these areas are set out on the subsequent pages in this section of our report.

Significant Risk

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

P
age 39



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?Valuation of Lakeside

North Harbour asset

What did we do?

We:
• Commissioned an EY specialist (EY Real Estates) to review the valuation and
specifically to:
• consider the competence, capability and objectivity of the Authority’s valuers;
• consider the scope of valuers’ work; and
• challenge the assumptions and methodology used by the valuers by reference

to external evidence.

We also:
• Tested the specific journals for the valuation to confirm that they have been
accurately processed in the financial statements.

What are our conclusions?

The work of our internal specialists with regard to the valuation of Lakeside
North Harbour remains ongoing at the time of writing this report. Information
and explanations to support the valuation have been requested and obtained,
and our specialist’s review of these is well progressed.

Please see the following page for our additional considerations around asset
valuations as a result of Covid-19. These are also relevant to Lakeside, which
is valued at existing use value.

We will provide an update at the meeting of the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee on 20 November 2020.

Significant Risk

During the 2019/20 financial year, Portsmouth City Council purchased the Lakeside North Harbour office complex
located in Portsmouth as part of their regeneration policy for the area.

The business campus sits in a 120-acre site, located to the north of Portsmouth City Centre, and comprises 594,000
sq ft of offices, 3,000 parking spaces, a day nursery and 8.7 acres of development land.

This is a highly significant and material property, plant and equipment asset, with a value at 31/03/20 of £138m. The
valuation of the asset is carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in relevant
professional standards. However, a number of key inputs into the valuation are judgmental and subjective.

Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-
end balances recorded in the balance sheet in respect of this asset.

P
age 40



15

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The value of Investment Property (IP) and Land and Buildings represent significant balances in the Authority’s
accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews, depreciation and market fluctuations.
Management is required to make material judgements and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end
balances recorded in the balance sheet. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the
use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, has issued
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude
that there is a material uncertainty in the valuations at year-end. Since late March 2020 in the UK, Covid-19 has had a
dramatic impact on the occupation of buildings due to the forced closure of restaurants, retail stores, leisure, offices
and hotels due to government regulation. We do not know how long the government’s measures will last or how long
businesses will be impacted. Rental income is expected to fall as tenants may default on their rents or seek to
negotiate rent reductions as they can no longer trade effectively. This could have a significant impact on investment
properties and we have therefore raised a significant risk in relation to investment property valuations. Since our
update was issued, we have also judged it necessary to associate this risk with property, plant and equipment valued
on the basis of market information (existing use value).

The value of IP in the draft accounts at 31/03/2020 was £188m. The value of PPE valued at existing use value was
£348m (of which Lakeside was £138m).

What did we do?

We:
• Considered the work performed by the

Authority’s valuers, including the adequacy
of the scope of the work performed, their
professional capabilities and the results of
their work.

• Sample tested key asset information used
by the valuers in performing their valuation
and challenge the key assumptions used by
the valuers.

• Tested accounting entries have been
correctly processed in the financial
statements.

• Ensured that appropriate disclosure has
been made in the financial statements
concerning the material uncertainty.

• Obtained input from EY Real Estates, our
internal specialists on asset valuations for
Investment Properties and PPE valued at
existing use value, including inputs on
market sentiment and how it has been
reflected in the valuations.

Valuation of Land and
Buildings (existing use
value) and Investment
Property

What are our conclusions?

Our work on investment property valuations is in progress at the time of writing this report. We have involved our
internal specialists in testing a representative sample of investment property and existing use value land and
buildings, with the remainder of the sample being tested by the audit team. Information and explanations to support
the valuations have been requested and obtained, and our review of these is well progressed.

The Council’s valuers have included the expected material uncertainty wording in their reports, and the Council has
disclosed this within the draft financial statements. Once the internal consultation regarding our audit opinion is
complete, we will confirm any matters which the opinion will need to emphasise with regard to PPE/Investment
Property valuations.

We will provide an update at the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 20 November.

Significant Risk

P
age 41



16

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a significant balance in the Authority’s accounts and is
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

The net book value of PPE in the draft accounts at 31/03/2020 was £1.44bn. Of this total, £0.75bn is subject to
revaluation on bases other than EUV.

What did we do?

We:

• Considered the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy of the
scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work.

• Tested on a sample basis the accuracy of information used by the valuer in performing
their valuations and challenged the valuer’s key assumptions.

• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within
a suitable rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE.

• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset
base is not materially misstated.

• Confirmed that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial
statements.

Valuation of Land and
Buildings (excluding
existing use value)

What are our conclusions?

Our work on property, plant and equipment valuations is in progress at
the time of writing this report. Information and explanations to support
the valuations have been requested and obtained, and our review of
these is well progressed. This work is being undertaken by the local
audit team.

We will provide an update at the Governance and Audit and Standards
Committee meeting on 20 November.

P
age 42



17

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

Covid-19 has created a number of financial pressures throughout Local Government, increasing service demand
and expenditure. The Authority has incurred additional expenditure in a number of areas of its operations and
has experienced income losses in parking, commercial and leisure services. The extent of support from MHCLG
has developed over time, but does not include all financial consequences of Covid-19.

There have been a number of media stories in both the national press and trade publications raising the
possibilities of an increase in Chief Financial Officers using their s114 powers.  This could be under s114(3),
insufficient resources to fund likely expenditure.

CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 sets out that
organisations that can only be discontinued under statutory prescription shall prepare their accounts on a going
concern basis.

However, International Auditing Standard 570 Going Concern, as applied by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial
statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and
appropriate audit procedures to consider whether there is a material uncertainty on going concern that requires
reporting by management within the financial statements, and within the auditor’s report. We are obliged to
report on such matters within the section of our audit report ‘Conclusions relating to Going Concern’. To do this,
the auditor must review management’s assessment of the going concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of
Financial Statements.

Going Concern
Disclosures

What did we do?

In light of the unprecedented nature of Covid-19,
its impact on the funding of public sector entities
and uncertainty over the form and extent of
government support, we sought a documented and
detailed consideration to support management’s
assertion regarding the use of the going concern
basis of preparation. Our audit procedures to
review this included consideration of:

• Current and developing environment;

• Liquidity (operational and funding);

• Mitigating factors;

• Management information and forecasting;
and

• Sensitivities and stress testing.

Due to the impact of Covid-19, we also consulted
internally with our risk department over the level
of disclosure.

What are our conclusions?
Our work on going concern, and the related internal consultation process, is ongoing at the time of writing this
report. We will provide an update at the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 20
November.
The conclusion of our work may indicate an emphasis of matter is required for our audit opinion. This is not a
qualification, but draws attention to the reader of the accounts such matters that are important for their
understanding of the Statement of Accounts, that are properly disclosed.  We cannot conclude whether this is
required until the work is complete.

Going Concern Disclosure

P
age 43



18

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

The Authority has four PFI arrangements, two of which are material to our audit. PFI accounting is a complex area,
and a detailed review of these arrangements was undertaken by our internal specialist in 2016/17. We will review the
accounting entries and disclosures in relation to PFI in detail in 2019/20, with a focus on any significant changes
since the specialist’s review.

The total finance lease liability for PFIs was £62m at 31/03/2020, and the net book value of PFI assets was £140m.

What did we do?

We:

• Reviewed assurances brought forward from prior years regarding the appropriateness of the
PFI financial models.

• Reviewed the PFI financial models for any significant changes.

• Ensured the PFI accounting models had been updated for any service or other agreed variations
and confirmed consistency of current year models with prior year brought forward assurances.

• Agreed outputs of the models to the accounts, and reviewed the completeness and accuracy of
disclosures.

PFI accounting

What are our conclusions?

Our work on PFIs is complete subject to final review.

We have assessed brought forward assurances, reviewed the PFI
models for significant changes, and ensured appropriateness of
any updates and consistency of current year models with the
prior year. We have also agreed the outputs of the models to the
accounts.

We expect to conclude that no issues have been identified with
PFI accounting through the work performed.

P
age 44



19

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Authority to make extensive disclosures
within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Hampshire County Council. The Authority’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires
that this liability be disclosed on the Authority’s balance sheet. The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19
report issued to the Authority by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

The net pension liability in the draft accounts at 31 March 2020 was £427m.

What did we do?

We:

• Liaised with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over
the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Portsmouth City Council.

• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions they
used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit
Office for all local government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY
actuarial team. This has included reviewing the actuary’s treatment of specific developments in
relation to the McCloud and Goodwin cases, to confirm these had been appropriately
considered, and to ensure the resulting treatment within the overall liability estimate was
materially correct.

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Authority’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

Pension Liability Valuation

What are our conclusions?

Our programme of work on the pension liability valuation is well
progressed.

One matter arising from the assurances provided by the auditor
of Hampshire Pension Fund is currently being discussed with
management. We will provide an update at the Governance and
Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 20 November.

We have no other findings to report from our work completed to
date.

P
age 45



20

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

Local authorities are normally required each year to set aside some of their revenues as provision for capital
expenditure financed by borrowing or credit arrangements. This provision is known as MRP. MRP is a real charge that
impacts on the general fund and therefore the council tax financing requirement. The calculation of MRP is inherently
complex.

What did we do?

We:

• Used the completed outputs of the review undertaken in 2018/19 by our internal specialist of
the Authority’s MRP calculations to inform our assessment of the material accuracy of the
Authority’s MRP estimate and release of its historic overprovision in 2019/20.

• Considered any changes in the Authority’s approach to MRP since the review was completed.

• Considered the impact of changes in the Authority’s asset base on the MRP charge for the year.

Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP)

What are our conclusions?

Our work on MRP is complete subject to final review.

No changes to the Authority’s approach to calculating MRP in
2019/20 were identified. We used the completed outputs of the
review undertaken by our specialist, and understood the impact
of changes in the asset base on the current year MRP calculation.

We expect to conclude that no issues have been identified with
the minimum revenue provision through the work performed.

P
age 46



21

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus

What did we do?

We:
• Agreed the restated comparative figures back to the Authority’s prior

year financial statements and supporting working papers
• Reviewed the analysis of how these figures are derived from the

Authority’s ledger system

Restatement of
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Statement, Expenditure
and Funding Analysis, and
related disclosure notes

What are our conclusions?

We are satisfied that the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis, and related disclosure notes, have been restated
appropriately following the change to internal reporting structures. We have no matters
to report as a result of the work performed.

What is the risk?

Under CIPFA’s “Telling the Story” agenda, the Authority is required to disclose its income and expenditure in
accordance with the structure used for internal reporting, rather than the previous presentation as prescribed by
SERCOP.

The Authority has changed its internal reporting structure in 2019/20, which will mean the prior period comparators
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the supporting Expenditure and Funding Analysis, and
related disclosure notes, will need to be restated in line with the new structure.

P
age 47



22

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk?

IFRS 10, 11 and 12 set out the requirements which must be followed when assessing and disclosing group and joint
arrangements. Where the Authority has interests in other entities, it needs to undertake qualitative and quantitative
assessments to inform its decisions as to whether group accounts are required. This is an area of potential complexity
and judgement requiring regular review.

What did we do?

We:

• Asked the Authority to update its qualitative and quantitative group accounts assessment for all
relevant entities and critically evaluated this as early in the audit cycle as possible;

• Undertook our own assessment and compared this with the Authority’s review, to identify any
areas where additional work may have been required to form a conclusion on whether group
accounts are required under the accounting standards.

Group Accounts
Assessment

What are our conclusions?

We have reviewed the Authority’s updated group accounts
assessment, and undertaken our own review to assess whether
the Authority has any arrangements which would require the
production of group accounts.

We are satisfied that group accounts are not required for
2019/20. This is an area which will need to be kept under review
going forward.

P
age 48



23

Audit Report03

P
age 49



24

Audit Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor
General’s  AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

[Emphasis of matter – Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property valuation

We draw attention to Note 4 Assumptions made about the future and
other sources of estimation uncertainty of the financial statements, which
describes the valuation uncertainty the Authority is facing as a result of
COVID-19 in relation to property valuations.  Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.]

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation
to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)’s use of

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Portsmouth City Council
for the year ended 31 March 2020 under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, the
related notes 1 to 42 and Expenditure and Funding Analysis, the
Collection Fund and the related notes 1 to 3, the Housing Revenue
Account, Movement on the HRA Statement and the related notes 1-12.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Portsmouth City

Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for
the year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2019/20.

As set out on page 17, we are unable to conclude on the final form of our audit report until all procedures are completed, especially those relating to Going
Concern disclosures. We may include an emphasis of matter relating to the Council’s Going Concern disclosures or other impacts of Covid-19 in addition to the
form and content set out below. We have shown an example emphasis of matter paragraph for reference – but this may not be needed in the actual audit report.

Draft audit report

P
age 50



25

Audit Report

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014

Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of resources

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit,
having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General in April 2020, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects,
Portsmouth City Council put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:

• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Authority;

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section
24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) has not

disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the
Statement of Accounts 2019/20 set out on pages 4 to 35, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The
Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) is responsible
for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our draft audit report, continued

Draft audit report

P
age 51



26

Audit Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued
by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to whether
Portsmouth City Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller
and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether
Portsmouth City Council put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Responsibility of the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151
Officer)

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on
page 39, the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)
is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices
as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and
Resources (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources,
to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Our draft audit report, continued

Draft audit report

P
age 52



27

Audit Report

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of
Portsmouth City Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued
by the National Audit Office.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Portsmouth City Council, as
a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Helen Thompson (Key Audit Partner)
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)
Southampton

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice.
Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we
considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant
respects, Portsmouth City Council had put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued
by the National Audit Office requires us to report to you our conclusion
relating to proper arrangements.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which
prevent us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
are operating effectively.

Our draft audit report, continued

Draft audit report

P
age 53



28

Audit Differences04

P
age 54



29

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to
interpretation.

A small number of disclosure amendments have been made to the financial statements as a result of our work to date. We have not identified any adjusted differences
greater than £8.309m which would require individual reporting here.

No unadjusted differences have been identified to date.

As our audit work is ongoing at the time of writing this report, further adjusted and unadjusted misstatements may be identified. We will provide an update at the
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 20 November 2020.

Summary of adjusted and unadjusted differences

P
age 55



30

Value for Money Risks05 01

P
age 56



31

Value for Money
Background

We are required to consider whether the Authority has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money
conclusion.

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

 Take informed decisions;
 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
 Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE
framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are
already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance
statement.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment

We identified one significant risk around these arrangements, in relation to making informed decisions, specifically in relation to the purchase of Lakeside North
Harbour. The table below presents our findings in response to the risk in our audit planning report and any other significant weaknesses or issues we want to bring to
your attention.

We expect having no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

Overall conclusion

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of covid-19.
This clarified that in undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider Local Authorities’ response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to
the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of Covid-19 during the financial
year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion.

Impact of covid-19 on our Value for Money assessment

P
age 57



32

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant within the Code of Audit Practice, where risk is defined as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”
Our risk assessment supports the planning of enough work to deliver a safe conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money, and enables us to determine the
nature and extent of any further work needed. If we do not identify a significant risk we do not need to carry out further work.
The section below presents the findings of our work in response to the risks area in our audit planning report and audit plan update. No further risks were identified during
the course of our audit.

What is the significant value for money risk?

During the 2019/20 financial year, Portsmouth City Council purchased the Lakeside North Harbour office complex located in Portsmouth as part of their regeneration
policy for the area.
The business campus sits in a 120-acre site, located to the north of Portsmouth City Centre, and comprises 594,000 sq ft of offices, 3,000 parking spaces, a day
nursery and 8.7 acres of development land.
The Lakeside site was purchased for £138m in 2019/20. The purchase was funded through external borrowing, requiring an extension to the Authority’s maximum
borrowing levels in its Treasury Management policies to facilitate the acquisition. The borrowing will lead to increased Minimum Revenue Provision charges and interest
payments in future years.
The financial outcomes relating to the asset are contingent in part on occupancy levels of the on-site premises.

What arrangements did the risk affect?

Informed decision making

P
age 58



33

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What are our findings?

Our value for money conclusion work is in progress at the time of writing this report. We will provide an update at the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee
meeting on 20 November.

What did we do?

We:
• reviewed the robustness of the financial appraisals supporting the purchase of Lakeside, including consideration of the expected financial outcomes from the site and

the related impact on the Authority’s finances.

• reviewed the process undertaken to evaluate and approve the purchase, including understanding the involvement of officers, members and external experts at key
stages.

We note that our VFM conclusion is required to cover the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. As such, the period covered was not significantly impacted by Covid-
19. We have assessed the Authority’s arrangements in the period during the year on which the pandemic impacted (late March), and no new risks or need to modify our
approach in respect of the risk from our audit planning report have been identified.P

age 59



34

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 60



35

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the 2019/20 Financial Statements with the audited financial statements.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies
with relevant guidance.

Our work on the above areas is ongoing. We expect to conclude that financial information in the 2019/20 Financial Statements and published with the financial
statements is consistent with the audited financial statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and expect to confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and that
we have no other matters to report.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We will perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission following the completion of the financial
statements audit and provide an update to the Committee following completion of this work. The audit certificate will be issued once this work is complete.

P
age 61



36

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit,
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which required us
to issue a report in the public interest.

We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities under
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they
are significant to your oversight of the Authority’s financial reporting process. They include the following

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Consideration of laws and regulations; and
• Group audits

We have no other matters to report at the time of writing this report. We will provide a further update if required at the meeting of the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee on 20 November 2020.

P
age 62



37

Assessment of Control
Environment07

P
age 63



38

Assessment of Control Environment

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the
systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in
internal control.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial
statements of which you are not aware.

We considered whether circumstances arising from Covid-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness of internal controls, for example
due to significant staff absence or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues which we wish to bring to your attention.

Financial controls

P
age 64



39

Data Analytics08

P
age 65



40

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

Analytics Driven Audit

Data analytics — Income & expenditure testing, payroll testing and journals

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These
analysers:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive
audit tests; and

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.

In 2019/20, our use of these analysers in the Authority’s audit included selecting samples for
general income and expenditure testing, testing payroll costs, and identifying and focusing our
journals testing on those entries we deemed to have the highest inherent risk to the audit.

We captured the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer took place on a
secured EY website. The transfer methodology is in line with our EY data protection policies, which
are designed to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal
information.

Journal Entry Analysis
We obtained downloads of all of the Authority’s financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We
performed completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the
movement in the trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our
analysers then reviewed and sorted transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test
journals that we considered to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report.

Payroll Analysis
We also used our analysers in our payroll testing. We obtained all payroll transactions posted in the
year from the General Ledger and performed completeness analysis over the data and procedures to
understand the data and identify unusual items.  We also reconciled the GL amount to the payroll
subledger. We then analysed the data against a number of specifically designed procedures.

P
age 66



41

Independence09

P
age 67



42

Independence

Confirmation and analysis of Audit fees

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since
our confirmation in our audit planning board report dated 23 January 2020.

We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s
Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the firm is independent and
the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been
compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter that should be
reviewed by both you and ourselves. It is therefore important that you consider
the facts of which you are aware and come to a view. If you wish to discuss any
matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased to do so at the
forthcoming meeting of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee on
20 November 2020.

Our fees do not include the scale fee review which is currently underway with
PSAA to agree whether the scale fees need to be rebased to properly account for
the increased audit and quality requirements as well as increased regulatory
challenge on the depth and quality of assurance provided by audit suppliers. There
is now greater pressure on firms to deliver higher quality audits by requiring
auditors to demonstrate greater professional scepticism when carrying out their
work. This has resulted in auditors needing to exercise greater challenge to the
areas where management makes judgements or relies upon advisers, for example,
in relation to estimates and related assumptions within the accounts. Discussions
with PSAA remain ongoing.

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of fees
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work.

Description

Final Fee
2019/20

£

Planned Fee
2019/20

£

Final Fee
2018/19

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work TBC* 126,817 115,449

*Our 2019/20 final fee remains subject to confirmation. We will assess the level

of additional fees which we will propose and discuss these with management as

soon as possible. This will be with regard to:

• Additional work performed on property plant and equipment and investment
property

• Going concern procedures

• Correspondence received from members of the public

Additional fees for work undertaken on the Lakeside valuation significant risk,
CIES/EFA restatement and value for money significant risk are expected to be as
originally scoped.

These proposed additional fees will be subject to agreement with the Section 151
Officer and PSAA, and will be reported to the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee once agreed.

P
age 68



43

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, and its directors and senior management
and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services
provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.

There are no relationships from 1 April 2019 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The previous page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2020 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard
and in statute.

We confirm that none of the services provided to the Authority has been on a contingent fee basis.

As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

P
age 69



44

Independence

Summary of key changes

• Extraterritorial application of the FRC Ethical Standard to UK PIE and its worldwide affiliates
• A general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (or its network) to a UK PIE, its UK parent and worldwide subsidiaries
• A narrow list of permitted services where closely related to the audit and/or required by law or regulation
• Absolute prohibition on the following relationships applicable to UK PIE and its affiliates including material significant investees/investors:

• Tax advocacy services
• Remuneration advisory services
• Internal audit services
• Secondment/loan staff arrangements

• An absolute prohibition on contingent fees.
• Requirement to meet the higher standard for business relationships i.e. business relationships between the audit firm and the audit client will only be permitted if it is

inconsequential.
• Permitted services required by law or regulation will not be subject to the 70% fee cap.
• Grandfathering will apply for otherwise prohibited non-audit services that are open at 15 March 2020 such that the engagement may continue until completed in

accordance with the original engagement terms.
• A requirement for the auditor to notify the Audit Committee where the audit fee might compromise perceived independence and the appropriate safeguards.
• A requirement to report to the audit committee details of any breaches of the Ethical Standard and any actions taken by the firm to address any threats to

independence. A requirement for non-network component firm whose work is used in the group audit engagement to comply with the same independence standard as
the group auditor. Our current understanding is that the requirement to follow UK independence rules is limited to the component firm issuing the audit report and
not to its network. This is subject to clarification with the FRC.

New UK Independence Standards
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 in December and it will apply to accounting periods starting on or after 15 March
2020. A key change in the new Ethical Standard will be a general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (and its network) which will apply to UK
Public Interest Entities (PIEs). A narrow list of permitted services will continue to be allowed.

Next Steps

We will continue to monitor and assess all ongoing and proposed non-audit services and relationships to ensure they are permitted under FRC Revised Ethical Standard
2016 which will continue to apply until 31 March 2020 as well as the recently released FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019 which will be effective from 1 April 2020. We
will work with you to ensure orderly completion of the services or where required, transition to another service provider within mutually agreed timescales.

We do not provide any non-audit services which would be prohibited under the new standard.

P
age 70



45

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report from November 2020:
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2020/ey-uk-2020-transparency-report.pdf

Other communications

P
age 71



46

Appendices10

P
age 72



47

Appendix A

Audit approach update
We summarise below our approach to the audit of the balance sheet and any changes to this approach from the prior year audit. The audit approach to all material
balance sheet items is shown.

Our audit procedures are designed to be responsive to our assessed risk of material misstatement at the relevant assertion level. Assertions relevant to the balance
sheet include:

• Existence: An asset, liability and equity interest exists at a given date

• Rights and Obligations: An asset, liability and equity interest pertains to the entity at a given date

• Completeness: There are no unrecorded assets, liabilities, and equity interests, transactions or events, or undisclosed items

• Valuation: An asset, liability and equity interest is recorded at an appropriate amount and any resulting valuation or allocation adjustments are appropriately
recorded

• Presentation and Disclosure: Assets, liabilities and equity interests are appropriately aggregated or disaggregated, and classified, described and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Disclosures are relevant and understandable in the context of the applicable financial reporting
framework

All material figures in the Balance Sheet have been substantively tested, as set out in our Audit Planning Report of February 2020. This is consistent with our audit
approach in the prior year.

P
age 73



48

Appendix B

Summary of communications

In addition to the above specific meetings, the audit team met with the officers multiple times throughout the audit to discuss audit progress and findings.

Date Nature Summary

03/03/2020 Report The audit planning report, including confirmation of independence, was presented to the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee.

24/07/2020 Report The audit planning report update, setting out our updated risk assessment in light of Covid-19, was presented to the
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee.

20/11/2020 Report The audit results report, including confirmation of independence, was presented to the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee.

Regularly
throughout the
year

Meetings The partner in charge of the engagement, and audit manager, met with the Director of Finance and Resources, to discuss
matters of relevance to the audit, Authority and sector. We increased the occurrence of these meetings following the
onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, to ensure frequent communications were maintained.

P
age 74



49

Appendix C

Required communications with the Governance and Audit and
Standards Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the audit committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of when and where
they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee of acceptance of
terms of engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report – March 2020

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report – March 2020

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report – November 2020

P
age 75



50

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Major Local Audits For the audits of financial statements of public interest entities/major local audits our
written communications to the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee include:
• A declaration of independence
• The identity of each key audit partner
• The use of non-member firms or external specialists and confirmation of their

independence
• The nature and frequency of communications
• A description of the scope and timing of the audit
• Which categories of the balance sheet have been tested substantively or controls based

and explanations for significant changes to the prior year, including first year audits
• Materiality
• Any going concern issues identified
• Any significant deficiencies in internal control identified and whether they have been

resolved by management
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance with

laws and regulations identified relevant to the Governance and Audit and Standards
Committee

• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities, including fraud
with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have occurred, and the
implications thereof

• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in accordance with

the reporting framework
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

Audit Planning Report – March 2020

Audit Results Report – November 2020

P
age 76



51

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee where appropriate
regarding whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial
statements.

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Fraud • Enquiries of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee to determine whether
they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Governance and Audit and Standards
Committee responsibility.

Audit Results Report – November 2020

P
age 77



52

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related
parties including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report – March 2020

Audit Results Report – November 2020

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

We have received all requested confirmations

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee into possible instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the
financial statements and that the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee may
be aware of.

We have asked management and those
charged with governance. We have not
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

P
age 78



53

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls identified
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Results Report – November 2020

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee into possible instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the
financial statements and that the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee may
be aware of.

We have asked management and those
charged with governance. We have not
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or those
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Material inconsistencies or
misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – November 2020

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report – November 2020

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit Planning Report – March 2020

Audit Results Report – November 2020

P
age 79



54

Appendix D

Management representation letter

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe
the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and cash
flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20. We have
approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a
system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate
financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We have
disclosed to you any significant changes in our processes, controls, policies
and procedures that we have made to address the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic on our system of internal controls.

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised
in the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit
and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  We have
not corrected these differences identified by and brought to the attention
from the auditor because [specify reasons for not correcting misstatement].

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we
are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

Ernst & Young LLP

Grosvenor House
Grovesnor Square
Southampton
Hampshire
SO15 2BE

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of Portsmouth City Council (“the Council”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in
enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of Portsmouth City Council as of 31
March 2020 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in
accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an
examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors
and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20.

Provisional Management Representation Letter

P
age 80



55

Appendix D

Management representation letter

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and
are reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and
the Cabinet held through the year to the most recent meeting on the
following date: 20 November 2020.

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions
of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets,
liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as
well as related balances due to or from such parties at the year end.  These
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements.

5. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants,
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

7. From the date of our last management representation letter (26 July 2019)
through the date of this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized
access to our information technology systems that either occurred or to the
best of our knowledge is reasonably likely to have occurred based on our
investigation, including of reports submitted to us by third parties (including
regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants) , to
the extent that such unauthorized access to our information technology
systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the financial
statements, in each case or in the aggregate.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with
laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council
(regardless of the source or form and including, without limitation,
allegations by “whistleblowers”) including non-compliance matters:

• involving financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s
financial statements;

• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of the
Council’s activities, its ability to continue to operate, or to avoid
material penalties;

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles in
internal controls, or others; or

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other
non-compliance with laws and regulations communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to
the preparation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation and other matters;

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the
purpose of the audit; and

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

P
age 81



56

Appendix D

Management representation letter

H. Estimates

1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions
and models, used to determine the accounting estimates have been
consistently applied and are appropriate in the context of the CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20.

2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of
property, plant and equipment and investment property, IAS19 pension
liability, minimum revenue provision and PFI valuation estimates
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of
action on behalf of the entity.

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect
to the accounting estimates are complete and made in accordance with the
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2019/20.

4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and
disclosures in the financial statements due to subsequent events, including
due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

I. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have
been identified and properly accounted for.

J. Going Concern

1. Note xx to the financial statements discloses all the matters of which we are
aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future
action, and the feasibility of those plans.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims,
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the
financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

E. Subsequent Events

1. Other than described in the financial statements, there have been no
events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure
in the financial statements or notes thereto.

F. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Preface, Narrative
Report and Annual Governance Statement.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is
consistent with the financial statements.

G. Use of the Work of a Specialist

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate
the valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment property,
the IAS19 pension fund liability, and the business rates appeals provision,
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in
determining the amounts and disclosures included in the financial
statements and the underlying accounting records. We did not give or
cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the
values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the
independence or objectivity of the specialists.

P
age 82



57

Appendix D

Management representation letter

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Authority on
20 November 2020

Name: Chris Ward

Position: Director of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer

Name: Councillor Leo Madden

Position: Chairman of the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee

P
age 83



58

Appendix E

Regulatory update
Since the date of our last report to the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee, there have been a number of regulatory developments. The following table
provides a high level summary of those that have the potential to have the most significant impact on you:

Name Summary of key measures Impact

Code of Audit Practice 2020 • The updated Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit
Office has introduced some significant changes to the
requirements regarding auditors’ work on the value for money
conclusion, which will be applicable from 2020/21.

• The NAO are currently updating the Auditor Guidance Notes
which will set out how the new Code of Audit Practice should
be applied when carrying out value for money work. As such,
the impact remains to be confirmed.

• Further updates will be provided when possible.

Going Concern - ISA (UK) 570
(Revised September 2019)

• The standard is effective for audits of financial statements for
periods commencing on or after 15 December 2019, however EY
expects to early-adopt the revised standard for all of our audits of
periods ending on or after 30 June 2020.

• This auditing standard has been revised in response to
enforcement cases and well-publicised corporate failures where
the auditor’s report failed to highlight concerns about the
prospects of entities which collapsed shortly after.

• Practice Note 10, which sets out how the auditing standards
are applied in a public sector context, is currently being
revised, including in light of the updated standard for Going
Concern. As such, the impact is not clear at this stage.

• Further updates will be provided when possible.

Future accounting developments
The following table provides a high level summary of the future accounting developments that have the potential to have the most significant impact on you:

Name Summary of key measures Impact

IFRS 16 • The adoption of IFRS 16 by CIPFA/LASAAC as the basis for preparation of
Local Authority Financial Statements has been deferred until 1 April 2021.
The Authority will therefore no longer be required to undertake an impact
assessment, and disclosure of the impact of the standard in the financial
statements does not now need to be financially quantified in 2019/20.

• The Authority should keep its implementation
arrangements under review, including the
timetable for gathering related information for the
year of adoption and prior period comparators.

Accounting and regulatory update

P
age 84



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee  

Date of meeting: 
 

20th November 2020 

Subject: 
 

Annual Governance Statement   

Report by: 
 

 Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager 

Wards affected: 
 

n/a 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The report seeks approval from the Governance and Audit and Standards 

Committee for the council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019/20.  
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee is asked to: 
 

1) Agree the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 (Appendix 1) 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The authority has a duty to produce and publish an Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS). This sets out how Portsmouth City Council has complied with 
the Local Code of Governance, and how the authority meets the requirements of 
Regulation 4 (3) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011. 

 
3.2 The purpose of the AGS is to set out the systems and processes in place to 

ensure that Council business is conducted lawfully and in accordance with proper 
standards.  Compliance helps ensure that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  It also 
acknowledges the Council's responsibility to secure continuous improvement in 
the way in which its functions are exercised by outlining significant governance 
issues facing the organisation, and setting out how these will be addressed.   

 
3.3 It is a key role of the Governance and Audit and Standards committee to monitor 

governance issues across the authority and ensure they are performance 
managed.  The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee receive regular 
updates on the development of the Annual Governance Statement. Governance 
issues are also reviewed regularly by the Corporate Governance Group which is 

Page 87

Agenda Item 5



   

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

attended by the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer, Director of Finance and 
Resources, Director of Corporate Services and the Chief Internal Auditor.  

 
3.4 The AGS reports against seven core principles of governance set out in the 

International Framework for Good Governance in the Public SectorThe detail of 
how the organisation addresses these principles is set out in the Local Code of 
Governance, which was refreshed and approved by Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee in 2019.   Every year, a number of sources are analysed, 
including the Annual Audit Letter, in order to review the council's practices and 
highlight further governance issues where the authority may be exposed.  

 
3.5 For 2019/2020, the Annual Governance Statement also notes that the Covid-19 

pandemic response had started and that this response and wider recovery will 
have significant implications for the governance of the organisation, including 
changes to process, exceptional use of resources and reduced assurance.  It is 
recognised that some requirements on the authority (such as distributing a large 
number of business grants at pace without established processes and against a 
backdrop of pressure from the Government to get money out swiftly) will have 
created new and unusual risks and exposures.  It is highlighted that these issues 
will be significant for the 2020/21 year, although the full implications are not yet 
known.  

 
3.6 The Annual Governance Statement also includes the annual opinion on the 

effectiveness of the internal system of control from the Chief Internal Auditor.   
 
3.7 The final Annual Governance Statement for 2019/20 is attached at Appendix 1, 

and has been signed off by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  
 
4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.1 The 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement has been prepared according  
 to the proper practice framework - Delivering Good Governance in Local 
 Government issued jointly by SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief 
 Executives and Senior Managers) and CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
 Finance and Accountancy) in 2016. 
 
5. Integrated impact assessment 
 
5.1 An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do not 

directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising from this 
report would be subject to investigation in their own right.  

 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 Legal considerations have been taken into account in the preparation of this 
 report and where appropriate embodied within it.  
 
 
 

Page 88



   

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

7. Director of Finance's comments 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this 
 report.  
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Paddy May, Corporate Strategy Manager  
 
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2019-20 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Page 91



 

1 
 

Contents 

 
What is the annual governance statement? ............................................................................................. 2 

What do we mean by governance? .......................................................................................................... 2 

Scope of responsibility ............................................................................................................................. 2 

About the Council ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

CIPFA/SOLACE Good governance principles and the local code of governance .................................... 4 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the 
rule of law ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

B. Ensuring openess and comprehensive stakeholder engagement .................................................... 5 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits; and D. 
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes ....... 7 

E. Developing the entity's capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within 
it ............................................................................................................................................................ 9 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial management 9 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

Significant governance issues for 2017/18 ............................................................................................. 13 

Effectiveness of the system of internal audit .......................................................................................... 17 

Summary of significant governance issues for 2017/18 ......................................................................... 17 

 
  

Page 92

file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069919
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069919
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069920
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069921
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069921
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069922
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069922
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069923
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069925
file://///dfs/ROOT/DIR/API/Strategy/Kelly/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202016-17.docx%23_Toc491069925


 

2 
 

What is the annual governance statement? 
 
Legislation1 requires local authorities to prepare 
and publish an Annual Governance Statement, 
in order to report publically on the effectiveness 
of the Council's governance arrangements. The 
statement provides an overview of the current 
governance framework and a summary of the 
review on the effectiveness of Portsmouth City 
Council's governance framework for 2019/20 
(which coincides with the annual statement of 
accounts). The statement openly communicates 
significant governance issues that have been 
identified during the review and sets out how the 
authority will secure continuous improvement in 
these areas during over the coming year.  
 
What do we mean by governance? 
 
By governance, we mean the arrangements that 
are put in place to ensure the intended 
outcomes for local people are defined and 
achieved. It comprises the systems and 
processes, cultures and values, by which local 
government bodies are directed and controlled. 
Good governance is about making sure the 
Council does the right things, in the right way for 
the right people, in a timely inclusive, open, 
honest and accountable manner. 
 
Scope of responsibility 
 
Portsmouth City Council is responsible for 
ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, 
and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently 
and effectively. It also has a duty under the 
Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions 
are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In 
discharging this overall responsibility, 
Portsmouth City Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the 
governance of its affairs, and facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

                                            
1 Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, regulation 4(3) 

 
About the Council 
 
Portsmouth's Council comprises of 42 
Councillors who represent 14 wards across the 
City. It currently operates a minority 
administration under a Leader and Cabinet 
structure with Cabinet Members responsible for 
individual portfolios.  
 
The Council employs around 3,600 members of 
staff and provides an extensive range of 
services to residents, businesses and visitors in 
the City, including: city development and cultural 
services, regulatory business and standards 
services, transport and environmental services, 
housing and property services, children's and 
adult's social care and safeguarding, education 
services, revenues and benefits and health and 
welfare services.   
 
The staff of the council are managed by the 
Chief Executive, David Williams, who is the 
Head of the Paid Service.  The Chief Executive 
is supported directors who have oversight of a 
number of services, each of which deals with a 
broad portfolio of the functions of the authority.   
 
 
 

  

Page 93



 

3 
 

 
 

    

 
 

DEFINE

challenges & 
risks

IDENTIFY

compliance 
gaps 

RECOMMEND

best fit actions

REPORT

communicate & 
implement 

findings

REVIEW

Monitor & 
enhance 
progress

 
 Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of law 

 
 Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement  

 
 Defining outcomes in terms of 

sustainable economic, social 
and environmental benefits  
 

 
 Determining the interventions 

necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended 
outcomes  
 

 Developing the entity's 
capacity, including the 
capability of its leadership and 
the individuals within it 
 

 Managing risks and 
performance through internal 
control an strong public 
financial management  
 

 Implementing good practices in 
transparency, reporting and 
audit to deliver effective 
accountability  

Leadership, Culture and Planning 
Organisational goals and priorities 
Strategic and operational plans 
Performance management 
Medium term financial strategy  

Statutory Officers & Decision Making 
The Constitution 
The Monitoring Officer 
Section 151 Officer 

Policies & Procedures 
Codes of conduct 
Ways of working 
Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy 
Whistleblowing Policy 
HR Policies and procedures 

People, Knowledge, Finance, Assets  
Robust HR practices 
Information governance 
Performance monitoring and improvement 
Financial management and reporting 
Ethical &legal practices 
 

Scrutiny and Transparency 
Freedom of Information requests 
Complaints procedure 
Reports considered by legal and finance 
experts 
Equality impact assessments 
Corporate risk directory 
Transparency duty publication  

Partnership Working 
Community engagement statement 
'Have your say' 
Consultations 
Terms of reference for partnerships 

INTERNAL CONTROLS                  GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 

GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK 

Risk 
Management 
Compliance 
Governance 

 

P
age 94



 

4 
 

CIPFA/SOLACE Good governance principles and the local code of governance 
 
In 2016 CIPFA/SOLACE issued revised best practice guidance for 'Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government'2. The framework sets out seven principles that should underpin the governance of each 
Local Authority. The following sections look at how the Council is held to account for these seven 
principles. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Constitution 
 
The constitution3 sets out the how the Council operates; the roles and responsibilities of members, 
officers and the scrutiny and review functions; how decisions are made; and the procedures that are 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Although 
there is no longer a statutory requirement, Portsmouth City Council has taken the decision to 
continue with this arrangement internally and is in the process of updating the constitution to ensure it 
reflects current practice. As well as working together as a single organisation, it is important that 
members and officers continue improve their working relations with other organisations too, both 
locally and sub-nationally, to achieve a common purpose of improved efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
The Monitoring Officer 
 
The Monitoring Officer is a statutory function and ensures that the Council, its officers, and its elected 
members, maintain the highest standards of conduct in all they do. The Monitoring Officer is assisted 
when required by appointed deputies. The Monitoring Officer ensures that the Council is compliant 
with laws and regulations, as well as internal policies and procedures, and is also responsible for 
matters relating to the conduct of Councillors and Officers, and for monitoring and reviewing the 
operation of the Council's Constitution. In PCC, the monitoring officer is Peter Baulf, the City Solicitor 
and Head of Legal Services. 
 
Section 151 Officer 
 
Whilst all Council Members and Officers have a general financial responsibility, the s151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 specifies that one Officer in particular must be responsible for the financial 
administration of the organisation and that this Officer must be CCAB qualified. This is typically the 
highest ranking qualified finance officer and in Portsmouth City Council this is Chris Ward, who is also 
the Director of Finance and Resources.  
 
Codes of conduct 
 
On joining the Council, members and officers are provided with a contract outlining the terms and 
conditions of their appointment. All staff must sign a code of conduct and declare any financial 
interests, gifts or hospitality on a public register. Additionally, members are expected to declare any 
interests at the start of every meeting that they attend in accordance with Standing Orders. Members 
and officers are required to comply with approved policies. The Council uses a system called 
Policyhub that enables effective dissemination of general and job-specific policies, and has the built 
in functionality to measure compliance i.e. that a member of staff has read and agreed to the policy.  
 
 

                                            
2 http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework  
3 A copy of the constitution can be found at https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/policies-and-strategies/constitution.aspx  

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respecting the rule of law 

 

Page 95

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/policies-and-strategies/constitution.aspx


 

5 
 

Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption 
 
The Council is committed to protecting any funds and property to which it has been entrusted and 
expects the highest standards of conduct from Members and Officers regarding the administration of 
financial affairs. The Council's Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy4 (revised in May 2016) 
conforms to legislative requirements and sets out steps to minimise the risk of fraud, bribery, 
corruption and dishonesty and procedures for dealing with actual or expected fraud. 
 
Whistleblowing 
 
The Council is committed to achieving the highest possible standards of openness and accountability 
in all of its practices. The Council's Whistleblowing policy5 sets out the options and associated 
procedures for Council staff to raise concerns about potentially illegal, unethical or immoral practice 
and summarises expectations around handling the matter. The Policy is kept under review by the 
Monitoring Officer, and reports (which include concerns raised and their outcomes) are submitted to 
the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee quarterly.  
 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee  
 
As its name suggests, the Governance, and Audit and Standards Committee has the responsibility 
for receiving many reports that deal with issues that are key to good governance. The Committee 
undertakes the core functions of an Audit Committee identified in CIPFA’s practical guidance6. The 
group has an agreed set of terms of reference7, which sets out their roles and responsibilities of its 
members8. On an annual basis the Chair of the Committee is invited to undertake a self-assessment, 
which informs the overall review of effectiveness of the Council's governance arrangements.  
 
 
 
 
 
Engagement and communication 
 
It is recognised that people need information about what decisions are being taken locally, and how 
public money is being spent in order to hold the council to account for the services they provide. The 
views of customers are at the heart of the council's service delivery arrangements. Portsmouth City 
Council has developed a Community Engagement Statement, which reflects the council's ambition to 
enable and empower communities to shape the places within which they live and work, influence formal 
decision making and make informed choices around the services they receive. The Community 
Engagement Statement asserts the following objectives for the council's engagement activity:  
 

 Active citizens and strong communities,  

 Clearer links between consultation and decision-making,  

 A City that reflects its diversity and improved use of resources and aims to build upon the 
council's commitment to finding ways to inform,  

 Consult and involve local people in all areas of life. 
 

                                            
 
5 A copy of the whistleblowing policy can be located at : 
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/Data/Governance%20&%20Audit%20&%20Standards%20Committee/20130314/Agenda/GAS20130314r10.pdf  
6 A copy of the guidance can be found at: http://www.cipfa.org/Policy-and-Guidance/Publications/A/Audit-Committees--Practical-Guidance-for-Local-
Authorities  
7 The  Governance and Audit and Standards Committee Terms of Reference can be found at: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/SC20120716r5app4.pdf  
8 Membership can be found at: http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=148  

B. Ensuring open and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 

Page 96

http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/Data/Governance%20&%20Audit%20&%20Standards%20Committee/20130314/Agenda/GAS20130314r10.pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/Policy-and-Guidance/Publications/A/Audit-Committees--Practical-Guidance-for-Local-Authorities
http://www.cipfa.org/Policy-and-Guidance/Publications/A/Audit-Committees--Practical-Guidance-for-Local-Authorities
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/SC20120716r5app4.pdf
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=148


 

6 
 

To be effective this process aims to inspire and support a genuine two-way dialogue with all sections 
of the community and other stakeholders There are a number of ways people can get involved and 
connect with the council, many of which are listed on the council webpage9. Local people have the 
option to engage in a dialogue through: social media sites (including Facebook and twitter), petition 
schemes, neighbourhood forums, Healthwatch Portsmouth, council meetings (open to the public), 
their local Councillor10 . 
 
Consultations 
 
The council keeps a forward plan of planned consultations. Internally, a consultation toolkit has been 
developed to guide council staff through the consultation process. The agreed process ensures that 
engagement activity is relevant, accessible, transparent and responsive. To increase awareness, 
consultations are proactively promoted.  
 
The council issues a free copy of their Flagship magazine to all households keeping them up to date 
about what's going on in the City.  The authority also issues other publications to specific groups, 
including "Term Times" for schools and "HouseTalk" for tenants.  
 
Portsmouth City Council regularly engages with its employees to ensure they are kept informed about 
the council and the city. There are communication channels for "off-line" and online employees and a 
dedicated communications point of contact for staff.  Employees are regularly asked to complete 
opinion surveys so the council can get a better understanding of what's working and what's not. The 
results are carefully considered and used to address issues. 
 
Complaints 
 
There is a clear and transparent procedure11 for dealing with complaints. The Council operates a three-
stage complaints procedure and promises to acknowledge complaints within 5 working days and 
respond fully within 10 working days for first-stage complaints, 15 working days for second-stage 
complaints and 20 working days for third-stage complaints. If complainants remain dissatisfied they 
have the right to refer the matter to the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
Partnership working 
 
Partnerships are about the council coming together with right organisations to deliver improved 
outcomes for local people. The city has excellent partnership working, with other local authorities and 
with colleagues in health, including the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), the police, probation, fire 
service, university and with business. 
 
For many years, we have had three key theme-based strategic partnerships - the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Children’s Trust, and the Safer Portsmouth Partnership.  These partnerships 
were reviewed in 2019 and folded into a single Health and Wellbeing Board with a broadened remit and 
membership, to improve efficiency and ensure that issues are being considered strategically and as 
they affect people and the city across all dimensions.   
 
This arrangement will also support the increased joining-up of with partnership organisations at the 
commissioning and delivery levels.  This includes multi-agency teams for children and families, and 
locality teams to deliver Better Care, as well as the development of a partnership for delivering the 
Healthy Child Programme in the city. A range of mechanisms are used to support these 
arrangements.  

                                            
9 Opportunities to have your say can be found at: https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/have-your-say.aspx  
10 Who are your Councillors, MPs and MEPSs: http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1  
11 Complaints procedure: https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/comment,-compliment-or-complaint.aspx  

Page 97

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/community-and-environment/community/have-your-say.aspx
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/transparency/comment,-compliment-or-complaint.aspx


 

7 
 

 
 
There are other partnership arrangements around the city's regeneration efforts such as the Solent 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Transport for South Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, the 
Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) and the business leaders group, Shaping the Future of 
Portsmouth. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has meant that the local authority has had to look at different ways to 
conduct its business and relationships with residents and partners, including moving towards virtual 
meetings carried out through remote access.  In some cases, this will lead to streamlined processes 
but in others, it may be that there are risks that some people are excluded from processes, for 
example, by not having ready access to technology that allows them to participate. Considering these 
implications and learning from the new ways of working will be an important part of the recovery 
process for the city council and its partners.  
 
 
 
 
 
Organisational goal and aspirations for the City 
 

 
 

Portsmouth City Council has a shared organisational goal (above), which is designed to be simple, 
reflecting the fact that although we are a diverse organisation, everything the council does is designed 
to make the city a better place and improve life for our residents. All of us are working together to shape 
Portsmouth, a great waterfront city that: 
 

 Has a sustainable economy that delivers regeneration and inward investment, creates 
opportunities and drives prosperity for our residents 

 Has high quality homes 

 Is a great place to live that makes best use of our natural assets and supports a vibrant and 
diverse culture  

 Offers excellent education and training so all our residents can achieve their full potential and 
businesses have the skills to grow 

 Protects and supports vulnerable residents, encourages independence and enables them to 
achieve their full potential 

 Keeps residents healthy and the city safe. 
 
We have set clear priorities about the way we will work and what we be trying to achieve. We will: 

- Make Portsmouth a city that works together, enabling communities to thrive and people to live 
healthy, safe and independent lives   

- Encourage regeneration built around our city's thriving culture, making Portsmouth a great place 
to live, work and visit 

- Make our city cleaner, greener and safer 
- Make Portsmouth a great place to live, learn and play, so our children and young people are 

safe, healthy and positive about their futures 
- Make sure out council is a caring, competent and collaborative organisation that puts people at 

the heart of everything we do.  
 

 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits; 
and D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes  

Page 98



 

8 
 

Planning and monitoring  
 
In order to secure these outcomes for residents and service users, the Council needs to respond to 
some tough challenges.   The Council has been required to make £102m in savings and efficiencies 
over the past 9 years (48% of controllable spend) in order to balance the Budget, ensuring that 
spending remains in line with income and funding levels.    
 
For the period 2020/21 to 2022/23, the expectation is that forecast savings of of £7.5m will be required, 
with the driving force for this reductions in Government funding.  
Adults and Children's Social Care represent 53% of controllable spend, provide services to the most 
vulnerable, experience the greatest cost pressures and have historically received significant protection 
from savings - resulting in proportionally higher savings across other Council Services.  The Local 
Government Finance Settlement has provided substantial relief for the cost pressures in Adults and 
Children's Social Care in 2020/21 of £5.4m, but is not clear if this is new money to the Local 
Government system in the longer term and remains a risk going forward.   

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy  
 
The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has been developed to respond to these very 
challenging circumstances. The strategy hass a renewed emphasis on regeneration, innovation and 
creativity leading to stimulation of the funding base (Council Tax and Business Rates) and income 
generation as a means to make savings and avoid cuts to services.  
 
The overall aim of the strategy is to ensure that "in year" expenditure matches "in year" income over the 
medium term whilst continuing the drive towards regeneration of the city, being innovative, creative and 
protecting the most important and valued services.  There are four strands to the strategy: 
 

- 1 - Transforming to an innovative and creative Council:  income generation; regeneration 
and meeting housing need; strategic use of property and assets; investment for commercial gain; 
developing and establish commercial entities to sell services profitably; capital investment for 
jobs and business growth (increased business rates); establishing strategic partnerships and 
shared service arrangements to reduce costs and increase resilience.  

- 2 - Reduce the extent to which the population needs Council services: re-direction of 
resources towards preventative services; design fees and charges policies to distinguish 
between want and need; capital investment towards jobs and skills to raise prosperity 

- 3 - Increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the council's activity: contract reviews; 
rationalisation of operational buildings; support to the voluntary sector; targeted efficiency 
reviews in resource hungry services; capital investment for on-going savings or costs avoidance 

- 4 - Withdraw or offer minimal provision of low impact services: strong focus on needs, 
priorities and outcomes; use the insights of councillors to inform priorities; use the results of 
public consultation to inform priorities.  

 

The Council has a comprehensive supporting financial framework in place designed to avoid any 
financial obstacles to delivering the MTFS. 
 
A critical risk for the coming year will be the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, which will reduce some of 
the Council's income streams such as port dues and parking fees, and expenditure on some services 
may increase.  However, the Council ended 2018/19 with a General Fund balance of £28m and was 
expected to have a General Fund balance of £20m at the end of 2020/21 prior to Covid-19.  In addition, 
the council had earmarked General Fund reserves of £168m at the end of 2018/19, some of which 
could be redirected if the need arose.  Although Covid-19 is putting the Council under financial 
pressure, the Council has adequate reserves to absorb this, and is developing a financial strategy to 
ensure that the most significant impacts are absorbed without detriment to the vital services that the 

Page 99



 

9 
 

authority provides, many of which are under increased pressure because of the impacts of the 
pandemic.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
Recruitment and induction 
 
The Council operates a robust interview and selection process to ensure that Officers are only 
appointed if they have the right levels of skills and experience to effectively fulfil their role. If working 
with children and/or vulnerable adults they will be subject to an enhanced criminal records check prior to 
appointment. New Officers must attend an induction day, which provides information about how the 
organisation works. Newly elected Councillors are required to attend an induction which includes 
information on: roles and responsibilities; political management and decision-making; financial 
management and processes; health and safety; information governance; and safeguarding.  
 
Training and development 
 
All Officers are required to complete a number of mandatory e-learning courses including health and 
safety, equalities and diversity, financial rules, and information governance. Officers and Members 
have access to a range of IS, technical, soft skills and job specific training courses. Compulsory 
training is provided for Members who sit on the following committees: Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee, Licensing Committee, and the Planning Committee. Other member-led 
training is available to Councillors through Democratic Services and Learning and Development. The 
package of support available gives Members the opportunity to build on existing skills and knowledge 
in order to carry out their roles effectively.  
 
Performance monitoring  
 
All Officers receive regular one to ones with their Manager in order to monitor workload and 
performance.  Opportunities are provided for identifying future training and development needs, and to 
track progress against objectives.  The effectiveness of individual performance monitoring is tracked in 
a number of ways, including by asking staff about it as part of regular employee opinion surveys.  
 
The Covid-19 pandemic is an enormous test of the capacity of the organisation.  Many officers have 
been required to work under extreme pressure, and in different circumstances, such as increased 
home working.  Others will have been required to move into different roles to supplement business 
critical activity.  There will be a challenge for the organisation to ensure that the wellbeing of staff is 
managed, and that the impacts of the pandemic are sensitively addressed. 
 
 
 
 
 
Risk management 
 
The Council has reviewed its approach to managing risks over the last year and approved a revised 
Risk Management Policy, which seeks to embed a culture of risk awareness within everyday 
activities. All significant risks (defined as something that may result in failure in service delivery, 
significant financial loss, non-achievement of key objectives, damage to health, legal action or 
reputational damage) must be logged on a Corporate Risk Directory, profiled (as high/medium/low), 
and mitigating measures/assurances must be put in place. The new approach minimises formal 

E. Developing the entity's capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial 

management  

Page 100



 

10 
 

processes and unnecessary documentation, whilst ensuring that risk management remains an 
effective part of the governance framework. There is an increased focus on strategic risks.  
 
Performance management  
 
All directorates in the authority report on a quarterly basis against a full set of performance measures 
which reflect the functions and objectives of the directorates.  These measures are reported to the 
Cabinet Members and considered in detail at the Governance and Audit and Standards committee.  An 
annual overview of performance is produced and published alongside the Statement of Accounts. 
 
 

Financial management  
 
The s151 Officer is responsible for leading the promotion and delivery of good financial management 
so that public money is safeguarded at all times, ensuring that budgets are agreed in advance and 
are robust, that value for money is provided by our services, and that the finance function is fit for 
purpose. He advises on financial matters to both the Cabinet and full Council and is actively involved 
in ensuring that the authority's strategic objectives are delivered sustainably in line with long term 
financial goals. The s151 Officer together with finance staff ensure that new policies or service 
proposals are accompanied by a full financial appraisal which is properly costed, fully funded and 
identifies the key assumptions and financial risks that face the council. 
 
Financial Rules were revised in 2013/14 by the s151 Officer so that Portsmouth City Council can 
meet all of its responsibilities under various laws, and continue to be updated on a rolling basis. They 
set the framework on how we manage our financial dealings and are part of our City Constitution. 
They also set the financial standards that will ensure consistency of approach and the controls 
needed to minimise risks. The s151 Officer has a statutory duty to report any unlawful financial 
activity or failure to set or keep to a balanced budget. He also has a number of statutory powers in 
order to allow this role to be carried out, such as the right to insist that the local authority makes 
sufficient financial provision for the cost of internal audit. 
 
The authority's financial management arrangements conform to the government requirements of the 
CIPFA Statement on "The role of the chief financial officer in local government (2010). The Director of 
Finance (Chief Financial Officer and s151 Officer) works with the Chief Executive and Deputy Chief 
Executive, helping to develop and implement strategy and deliver the strategic objectives.  The Chief 
Finance Officer has input into all major decisions, and advises on financial matters to the Cabinet.  
He is responsible for ensuring that budgets are agreed in advance and that the agreed budget is 
robust, to ensure value for money is provided by our services, and is responsible for ensuring the 
finance function is fit for purpose.  A protocol for the Chief Financial Officer in Portsmouth was 
approved in November 2011. 
 
Data Management  
 
The organisation has a designated data protection officer and clear and established processes for 
ensuring data is handled appropriately.  There is regular reporting to the Governance, Audit and 
Standards committee on matters of information governance. The organisation has undertaken thorough 
preparation for the introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation, including enhanced training 
for all staff.  
 
It is important to note that whilst there are strong processes for information management in the 
organisation, there have been a number of changes in processes to ensure that there is rapid response 
to community requirements as a result of the pandemic, and a number of new areas of business that the 
organisation has had to respond to quickly.  An example would be the administration of business 
support grants.  In some cases, we will, as an organisation, have identified some areas where standard 

Page 101



 

11 
 

practices and processes can be streamlined, and may never return to the previous way of working.  In 
other cases, we may have increased exposure to fraud or error, and will need to move as quickly as 
possible to re-establish necessary controls. A further example arising from the pandemic is a greater 
use of digital technology to interact with communities and partners presenting new challenges as well as 
new opportunities to review information management controls and make improvements to records 
management.  Again, this is an area where the organisation will need to evaluate the learning as part of 
recovery, including balancing the risks and opportunities in new ways of working.   
 
 
 
 
 
Transparency 
 
The Council and its decisions are open and accessible to the community12, service users, partners and 
its staff. The Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FoI) gives anyone the right to ask for any information 
held by a public authority, which includes Portsmouth City Council, subject only to the need to preserve 
confidentiality in those specific circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so. 
 
All reports requiring a decision are considered by appropriately qualified legal, and finance staff with 
expertise in the particular function area before they are progressed to the relevant committee/group. 
Portsmouth City Council wants to ensure that equality considerations are embedded in the decision-
making and applied to everything the Council does. To meet this responsibility, equality impact 
assessments are carried out on all major council services, functions, projects and policies in order to 
better understand whether they impact on people who are protected under the Equality Act 2010 in 
order to genuinely influence decision making.  Information required to be published in made public in 
timely and accessible fashion.  
 
Effective scrutiny 
 
The Council operates five Scrutiny Panels13, overseen by a Scrutiny Management Panel and governed 
by their own terms of reference. It is important that Scrutiny Panels act effectively as one of their key 
tasks is to review and challenge the policy decisions that are taken by Cabinet. Topics that are chosen 
to be 'scrutinised' are looked at in depth by a cross party panel of Councillors. They assess how the 
Council is performing and see whether they are providing the best possible, cost effective service for 
people in the city. The panel's findings are reported to the Cabinet and may result in changes to the way 
in which services are delivered.  
 
 

 
Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the governance framework 
 
Portsmouth City Council has the responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of: 
 

 The Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and Directors within the Authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment. 

 The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report and opinion, and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

                                            
12 Meetings, agendas and minutes: http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1  
13 Further information on our Scrutiny Panels can be found at: http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1  

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 

accountability.  

Page 102

http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


 

12 
 

 The Chief Financial Officer whose role is performed by the Director of Finance and Resources  
(and who is also Portsmouth City Council's Section 151 Officer) who has statutory responsibility 
for ensuring the proper management of all Portsmouth’s financial affairs. 

 The Corporate Governance Group, made up of the Chief Executive, the monitoring officer, the 
Chief Internal Auditor, the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) and the 
Director of Corporate Services with input from others as relevant. This group meets regularly to 
discuss corporate governance arrangements and issues, and to reflect on recurring themes and 
spheres of activity relating to council improvement. 

 The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 
 
There is clear framework for evaluating the effectiveness of internal control, and for 2019/20 this has 
included: 
 

 An evaluation of progress against previously identified governance issues. 

 Reviews of: 
o The effectiveness of Internal and External Audit. 
o External Audit's Annual Plan and opinion. 
o The Annual Internal Audit report and opinion. 
o The Corporate Risk Directory. 
o Issues identified through performance management. 
o Corporate complaints and any complaints regarding Members. 
o Freedom of information requests.  
o Data protection and information governance issues. 
o Employee Opinion Survey results. 

 
 
It is important to note that in 2020/21, the impact   of the Covid-19 pandemic will be to significantly 
reduce the  coverage of the wider assurance framework on the organisation.  There will be a slightly 
reduced audit plan, to take account of changing circumstances, and reduced activity  of a number of 
external inspectorates and regulators, as well as change in focus in some cases.  It is also likely that 
some regular forms of insight, such as the  Employee Opinion Survey will need to refocused .

Page 103



 

13 
 

Significant governance issues for 2020/21 
 
Portsmouth City Council have completed a number of actions over the last year, that have addressed or alleviated significant governance issues 
identified in the 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement. The following significant governance issues have been identified and further actions have 
been put in place against each, in order to strengthen the Council's governance arrangements.  
 

Ref Governance issue Source Actions to address the issue Measures of success Lead/s Timescale  

1 Information governance -
fulfilling responsibilities 
and requirements under 
the General Data 
Protection Regulation  

Risk 
Management  

Corporate working group to continue to 
ensure compliance with GDPR and Data 
Protection Act  responsibilities  

Good state of 
organisational 
compliance and low risk 
of sanction.  

Chief Internal 
Auditor  

Ongoing 
progress 
reporting to 
portfolio holder 
and committees.  

3 Disaster recovery - risk 
management activity has 
identified that 
improvements need to be 
made in our 
arrangements for 
recovery in the event of 
losing key systems.  

Highlighted 
through risk 
management 
and business 
continuity 
activity 

Moving key elements of the IT 
infrastructure to the cloud to increase 
resilience of the systems critical to 
business continuity, reducing reliance on 
"on-premises" infrastructure.  

Capability to restore key 
IT functions for the 
authority more quickly 
than the current 3-5 
days. 

Director of 
Corporate 
Services  

Ongoing 
development 
and review  

4 The council continues to 
explore new ways of 
working, including 
partnering and alternative 
service delivery models 
(including with the 
voluntary, community 
and social enterprise 
sector) and taking more 
commercial approaches 

Internal and 
external audit; 
performance 
and risk 
management 
activity  

a) Ensure arrangements for traded 
services and arms-length 
organisations are fit for purpose 

b) Ensure new partnering 
arrangements have full regard to 
legal, financial and HR 
implications 

c) Look at arrangements for 
assurance on partner 
organisations and related parties 
 

Ongoing - various 
structures for 
different 
arrangements 

Chief Executive 
& Chief Internal 
Auditor 

Necessary 
changes 
reported on a 
regular basis to 
Cabinet, 
Governance, 
Audit and 
Standards 
Committee and 
Employment 
Committee. 

5 Compliance with 
statutory duties and other 
external requirements 
and directives: ongoing 
changes in the work of 

Performance 
and risk 
management  

- Service and resource planning 
to set out scope of 
requirements and the needs to 
fulfil these.  
 

n/a Chief Executive 
and all service 
directors  

Ongoing reports 
to portfolios and 
committees. 

P
age 104



 

14 
 

Ref Governance issue Source Actions to address the issue Measures of success Lead/s Timescale  

local government and the 
role in relation to other 
agencies means that the 
organisation needs to 
monitor the scope of 
duties, powers and 
expectations.  Examples 
include Air Quality, 
National Planning Policy 
Framework expectations, 
Brexit risks and burdens  
 
 

6 Budget/ financial 
position, specifically in 
respect of demand-led 
services including Adults 
and Children's Social 
Care and impact of 
financial uncertainty  
 

External audit 
plan 

Ongoing monitoring of progress - 
transformation strategies developed 

Financial gaps closing 
and eliminated over the 
medium term  

Director of 
Finance, 
Director of 
Children's 
Services and 
Chief of Health 
and Care 
Portsmouth 

Ongoing 
quarterly 
reporting on 
financial position 
to Cabinet; 
updates to 
portfolio holders 

7 New governance and 
working processes 
across strategic 
partnership 
arrangements, including 
closer integration with the 
clinical commissioning 
group  
 

Internal self-
assessment  

Ongoing monitoring of progress  Robust governance 
across complex 
partnership agendas  

Chief Executive  Ongoing 
reporting  

8 Capacity within the 
organisation and key 
individuals, in light of 
further organisational 
restructure  
 

External Audit 
reports; internal 
self-assessment  

Ongoing monitoring of progress, including 
through quarterly performance reporting; 
longitudinal study of workforce capacity 
and risks   

n/a Chief Executive Ongoing 
reporting  

P
age 105



 

15 
 

Ref Governance issue Source Actions to address the issue Measures of success Lead/s Timescale  

Governance risks and exposures relating to Covid-19 

9a Changed ways of 
working in light of 
pandemic - more remote 
working, more digital 
working, streamlined 
processes - what stays 
long term and what were 
short-term fixes that will 
revert? What might be 
the impact of changed 
ways of working on 
evidence trails? 

Covid-19 
pandemic 
response and 
recovery plans 

Issues will be worked through as part of the wider organisational 
recovery plan from the pandemic. 

Chief Executive/ 
Gold Group  

As part of 
organisational 
recovery  

9b New duties and 
responsibilities eg. grant 
administration, local 
outbreak plans 

Covid-19 
pandemic 
response and 
recovery plans 

Chief Executive/ 
Gold Group 

As part of 
organisational 
recovery  

9c Reduced assurance 
framework - how to 
ensure organisation still 
doing the right things, in 
the right ways and 
achieving the right 
outcomes 

Covid-19 
pandemic 
response and 
recovery plans 

Chief Executive/ 
Gold Group  

As part of 
organisational 
recovery  

9d Financial risk - challenge 
of addressing additional 
costs and lost income 
arising from the 
pandemic 

Covid-19 
pandemic 
response and 
recovery plans 

Chief Executive/ 
Director of 
Finance and 
Resources / 
Gold Group  

As part of 
organisational 
recovery  

9e Capacity risk - how to 
ensure that the 
organisation retains 
capacity in key areas 
with risk of staff wellbeing 
and "burnout", and with 
officers simultaneously 

Covid-19 
pandemic 
response and 
recovery plans 

Chief Executive/ 
Gold Group 

As part of the 
organisational 
recovery  

P
age 106



 

16 
 

Ref Governance issue Source Actions to address the issue Measures of success Lead/s Timescale  

addressing emergency 
response issues, 
recovery and business 
and usual activity - 
challenge to deliver any 
transformational activity 
in support of longer term 
goals  

P
age 107



 

17 
 

Effectiveness of the system of internal control 
 

During 2019-20 Internal Audit & Counter Fraud completed 57 full audits and 31 follow up reviews to 
plan. The results show that the level of 'No Assurance' and 'Limited Assurance' audited areas have 
decreased from the previous year, which is positive move and reinforces the judgement that the 
direction of travel is that of 'good improvement'.    
 
This position is however countered by a residue issue, which has been highlighted over several years 
that the number of implemented actions, still remains poor, with only a 1% improvement from last year 
(Previously 40% actioned, increased to 41% for 2019/20). Although arrangements were amended and 
clients were given prior notice additional steps need to be enacted. Internal Audit will be conducting a 
second follow up on open/ in progress actions and, should inactivity remain, escalation to the Corporate 
Governance Board and individual directorates on a quarterly basis will occur.  
 
Four audit opinion levels are in place and these are: no assurance, limited assurance, reasonable 
assurance and full assurance. Where there are mainly medium or low risk exceptions the annual audit 
opinion would be reasonable or full assurance. Limited Assurance is provided again this year, with the 
above narrative that the internal control framework in operation at Portsmouth City Council is improving. 

No Assurance 
 

Limited Assurance 
 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 

Full Assurance 
 

Any significant corporate weaknesses and agreed actions are reflected in the Annual Governance 
Statement. The impact of the Internal Audit work for 2019/20 may affect that year's work for External 
Audit. It may also inform their work for 2020/21 and where they consider there are weaknesses in 
control that could materially affect the accounts they may need to carry out further work to gain the 
necessary audit assurance required for a true and fair view of the financial position  
and compliance with professional codes of practice. 
 
Summary of significant governance issues for 2020/21 
 
Over the coming year, Portsmouth City Council will take steps to address the issues that have been 
identified in order to improve the Council's governance arrangements and improve assurance in the 
areas of most concern. Progress will be monitored and reported to the Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee regularly over the next year.  
 
Clearly, a very significant number of risks and governance exposures for the organisation arise from the 
immediate response to the Covid-19 pandemic, and these will need to be addressed as part of the 
recovery.  However, it must be recognised that the nature of the situation is that some areas of the 
business will still be working in a "response" phase even when others have moved onto a recovery or 
even business as usual footing, so there will be variation of approach across the organisation.  These 
issues will be reported on as part of the usual reporting against the matters in the Annual Governance 
Statement and summarised in the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. 
 
Signed on behalf of Portsmouth City Council       
 

 
 
Cllr Gerald Vernon-Jackson, Leader of the Council  Date  
 
 
 
David Williams, Chief Executive    Date  

 

Page 108



   

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee  

Date of meeting: 
 

20th November 2020 

Subject: 
 

Risk and assurance management policy   

Report by: 
 

Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager  

Wards affected: 
 

n/a 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The report presents the council's risk and assurance management policy to the 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee for approval.  
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee is asked to: 
 

1) Approve the attached Risk and Assurance Management Policy 
2) Agree to review the risk management policy in November 2022, including 

risks current at the time and lessons learnt over the previous year. 
 

3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council is committed to embedding a culture of risk awareness within our 

everyday activities such that formal processes and unnecessary documentation 
can be minimised but that risk management remains an effective part of the 
governance framework. 

 
3.2 The attached Risk and Assurance Management policy sets out how this will be 

achieved.  Significant features of the policy are: 
- Roles and responsibilities are set out clearly 
- Components of process, such as training and monitoring are clearly described. 

 
3.3 Whilst it is accepted that risk cannot be entirely eradicated, the following are 

areas on which the council will not compromise its position by taking a greater 
level of risk than is absolutely necessary. It will also take all reasonable steps to 
eliminate or mitigate the risks where identified, including but not limited to: 

 
- where there is risk of physical harm 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6



   

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

- where non-compliance with legislation could lead to imprisonment or 
significant fines. 

 
3.4 The Corporate Risk Directory is usually considered by the Governance and Audit 

and Standards Committee on a quarterly basis as part of the regular performance 
monitoring from the organisation.  This monitoring has been suspended as the 
organisation has focused on the response to the Covid-19 pandemic, but it is 
expected that this reporting will resume in early 2021.  The reduction in usual 
corporate monitoring has been noted as an exposure in the Annual Governance 
Statement for the year.  

 
4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.1 The policy has been in effect since 2013, and has been regularly reviewed to 

ensure that it is in line with the current structure.  For this review, references to 
outdated practices (such as staff completing risk forms) have been removed, and 
recommendations from a previous Internal Audit piece of work have been 
incorporated (including clarifying the learning and development expectation).   

 
5. Integrated impact assessment 
 
5.1 An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do not 

directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising from this 
report would be subject to investigation in their own right.   

 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 Legal considerations have been taken into account in the preparation of this 
 report and where appropriate embodied within it.  
 
7. Director of Finance's comments 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this 
 report.  
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Paddy May, Corporate Performance Manager  
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 - Risk and Assurance Management policy  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



   

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
PolicyTemplate V1.0 

 
 

 
Summary:  
 
Risk is a fact of life in an ever changing landscape. By attempting to foresee and 
avert problems in the delivery of services and maximise opportunities, it helps 
ensure that resources are used in the best way possible. Risk management is a 
fundamental part of how we operate and forms part of our Corporate Governance 
Framework. 
 
These Policy and Procedures are designed to support a risk culture which is 
embedded in the way we work rather than having a process which itself is used to 
drive risk management. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

ID RM-002 

Last Review 
Date 

November 2020 

Next Review 
Date 

November 2022 

Approval 
 

G&A&S 

Policy 
Owner 

Kelly Nash 

Policy 
Author 

Corporate Performance Manager 

Advice & 
Guidance 

Kelly Nash 023 9268 8157 kelly.nash@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 

Location Policy hub 

Related 
Documents 

http://intralink/Media/HST_2012_Apr_Corp_Health_and_Safety_Pol_3rd_edition.pdf 

Applicability All PCC staff 

Policy Title: Risk & Assurance 

 Management 

Page 113

mailto:kelly.nash@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
http://intralink/Media/HST_2012_Apr_Corp_Health_and_Safety_Pol_3rd_edition.pdf


 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

  

Section One: Risk Management Statement of Policy  
 

1. Statement of policy  
 

1.1 The Council is committed to embedding a culture of risk awareness within 
everyday activities such that formal processes and unnecessary documentation 
can be minimised, but that risk management remains an effective part of the 
governance framework. 

 
1.2 It is accepted that not all risks can be eliminated or mitigated, and a balance 

must always be struck between the costs of risk reduction against the likelihood 
and impact of the risk (risk exposure). 

 
1.3 Where the organisation is required to behave in a specific way to meet legal 

and financial governance requirements for example, statutory officers have 
determined corporate directive controls, such as the City Constitution which 
have been approved by Members. Compliance with these controls should 
prevent governance legal and financial threats arising in the first place. Where 
service controls are required these fall under the auspices of the relevant head 
of service, which includes their implementation and monitoring. 

 
1.4 Risk impacts can be financial loss, non-achievement of objectives, 

environmental damage, personal injury or ill-health, legal action and 
reputational damage or a mix of these.  Most serious risk impacts will include 
financial loss, legal action and reputational damage but the very worst are likely 
to include an element of either service failure, injury or environmental damage 
as well.  

 
1.5 Evaluation of the potential financial impact of a risk will include not only the 

direct costs such as fines, infrastructure repairs and liability claims but indirect 
costs such as loss of officer time, including support staff such as Finance and 
Legal, loss of staff morale and productivity, lost opportunities, increased 
insurance premiums and reduced funds which could impact on future service 
delivery. 

 
1.6 The Council as a public body has to protect and preserve its ability to provide 

services and ensure that assets are protected against significant loss and 
damage and interruption to service delivery is minimised.  
 

1.7 Whilst it is accepted that risk cannot be entirely eradicated, the following are 
areas on which the council will not compromise its position by taking a greater 
level of risk than is absolutely necessary and will take all reasonable steps to 
eliminate or mitigate the risks, including but not limited to: 
 
- Where there is risk of physical harm 
- Where non-compliance with legislation could lead to imprisonment or 

significant fines  
 
 

Page 114



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

SECTION TWO: Procedures 
 

2. Roles and responsibilities  
 
2.1 It is the responsibility of all members and employees to be aware of risks 

when carrying out their duties and to alert the relevant service manager to the 
threat. Managers must ensure that threats are properly evaluated and 
mitigated. 
 

2.2 The following table details the roles and responsibilities of Members and 
Officers of the Council 
 

Governance and Audit 
and Standards 
Committee 

1. Monitor the effectiveness of the Council's overall 
risk management arrangements as part of the 
Governance Framework 

2. Review and approve the Council's Risk 
Management Policy  

3. Seek assurance that risks are being managed 
effectively 

4. Review the adequacy of the system of internal 
control as highlighted by Internal Audit 

5. Promote member compliance with the RM Policy 

Cabinet/ Portfolio 
Holders/ all Members 

1. Seek assurance that risks are being managed 
effectively 

2. Set the Council's risk culture and appetite 
3. Consider risk implications when making or 

evaluating decisions 
4. Challenge the adequacy of controls or actions 

taken to mitigate identified risks. 

Chief Executive/ Deputy 
Chief Executive 

1. Determine the RM Policy and procedures and 
create the environment for them to work effectively 
including promoting and supporting a risk 
awareness culture, 

2. Maintain awareness and oversight of the most 
significant risks facing the organisation 

3. Obtain assurance from Directors that risks have 
been considered, in the delivery of their services 
and mitigated  

4. Challenge Directors on the adequacy of controls or 
actions taken to mitigate risks 

5. Ensure regular reporting to Governance and Audit 
and Standards Committee  

Corporate Governance 
Group 

1. To keep under review the Risk Management & 
Assurance Framework to ensure its adequacy & 
effectiveness 

2. To identify any themes that arise and propose 
corporate actions to mitigate or escalate as 
appropriate 
3. To review the risk register prior to submission to 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 

Page 115



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

4. To ensure that assurance for key areas is mapped 
and any gaps in assurance addressed 

Directors 1. Promote risk awareness and 
responsibilities to employees 

2. Consider risks to service delivery and 
evaluate appropriate responses including 
the introduction and monitoring of 
effective control 

3. Obtain assurance that risks have been 
considered, in the delivery of their 
services and mitigated  

4. Risk assess any decisions and option 
analyses 

5. Report promptly to the Chief Executive/ 
Deputy Chief Executive & relevant 
Portfolio Holders any perceived new risks 
or significant failures in controls 

6. Maintain channels of communication to 
encourage bottom up reporting of risks 
and control failures 

7. Ensure compliance with corporate 
directives controls as a first response to 
governance financial and legal threats. 

8. Where Directors are acting as Project 
Directors they must ensure that risks have 
been considered and mitigated (where 
possible) recorded and form part of the 
information to the Corporate Governance 
Group and Members 

Strategy Unit 1. Maintain the RM Policy, including highlighting 
where communications or training support are 
required  

2. Report on significant risks to G&A&S 
3. Maintain a Directory of most significant risks 

affecting the Authority 
4. Report to Corporate Governance Group and 

G&A&S within the relevant timing of the risks 
on mitigation with either assurance or alerting 
to weaknesses in actions 

Internal Audit and 
Assurance 

1. Carry out periodic audits on assurance and 
effectiveness of RM procedures 

2.   Assist in providing assurance on the management 
of risk and effectiveness of controls 

Managers, supervisors, 
team leaders 

1. Promote risk awareness and communicate 
responsibilities to employees 

2. Maintain awareness of the risks within their area of 
responsibility 

3. Actively encourage staff to report risk concerns 
4. Evaluate risks and appropriate responses 
5. Escalate risks that have significant impact to 

relevant Directors 

Page 116



 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

All employees (including 
contractors and partners) 

1. Be aware of threats, opportunities weaknesses or 
failures in control in their day to day activities 

2. Comply with controls that have been set up to 
mitigate risks and identify where they can be 
strengthened 

3. Report promptly to their manager any perceived 
new risks, failures in controls, lost opportunities or 
where controls can be strengthened 

 

 
 

3.  Training and Embedding  
 
3.1 Embedding the risk culture will be achieved by a combination of the following: 

 
(1) E-learning on Risk Awareness to be available to staff 
(2) Risks to be considered at DMT's, meetings with portfolio holders, one to 

ones and any other meetings held to discuss service performance, 
objectives, progress, new decisions, options, changes in working 
practices or legislation, 

(3) Risks identified by outside parties such as partners, contractors 
insurance providers etc. will be brought to the attention of the relevant  
manager and dealt with accordingly 

(4) Significant risks from Audit reports will be included in the Risk & 
Assurance Directory 

(5) Significant risks highlighted from Managers responses to the governance 
framework will also be included in the Risk & Assurance Directory 

(6) The Risk & Assurance Directory will be reported to Corporate 
Governance Group based on the timing of the risk. 
 

4. Corporate Risk and Assurance Directory  
 
4.1 The Risk & Assurance Directory will be a formal register of all significant 

strategic risks that could impact the Authority and will be maintained by the 
Strategy Unit. 

 

5. Directorate Risk and Assurance Directories 
 

5.1 Directorates will maintain their own risk and assurance directories.  Risks on 
these will be recorded in assurance categories (see 6.3) with the mitigating 
actions and person responsible.  

 
5.2 Risks will be profiled as High (red) Medium (Amber) or Low (Green). 

 
5.3 Each risk will contain a comment from the relevant Director re the risk appetite 

applied to the risk and any costs of mitigation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

6. Risk Assessments  
 
6.1 Significant risks from Directorate Risk and Assurance directories will be 

escalated to the Strategic Risk & Assurance Directory by the Director when 
the threat, likelihood and impact of the risk could cause: 
 

 the failure or unacceptable interruption of the delivery of a service that is 
provided to ensure support to vulnerable people, or to protect the 
environment 

 Personal Injury or harm  

 Loss of trust or integrity in the Council's dealings with others 

 Ineffective use of council resources resulting in objectives not being met 
or reducing resources such that it impacts on the delivery of other 
objectives or services. 

 A missed opportunity to contribute long term to objectives that  would 
make a positive difference to how a service is delivered 

 
6.2 Other activities that will identify significant risks to be escalated to the 

Corporate Risk & Assurance Directory include: 
 

 Project managers will provide regular feedback to relevant project boards. 
Any significant risks will be escalated to the Risk & Assurance Directory 
by the Project Director either directly to the Chief Executive/ deputy Chief 
Executive or via performance returns dependent on timing of the risk 

 

 Legal risks will be considered by the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Resources Portfolio holder and will be contained within their own register. 

 

 IT project risks will provide regular feedback to the project board/sponsor 
and any significant risks escalated to the Risk & Assurance Directory by 
the Project Manager. 

 
 Significant risks highlighted from the review of the Governance 

Framework will be escalated to the Risk & Assurance Directory by the 
Director concerned. 

 
6.3 Risk assessments will include direct and indirect costs of control, mitigation 

and exposure: 

 Staff costs, including HR, Legal and Finance (support staff costs) 

 Fines 

 Legal Claims 

 Increase in Insurance premiums 

 Infrastructure repairs 

 Hidden costs such as impact on staff performance and morale 

 Reputational harm 
 
6.4 Risk assessments should  also include the timing of the threat e.g. is the 

threat likely to be in the next few months? Coming year? Winter? Summer? 
Etc. If a time cannot be attributed to it the threat maybe incorrectly defined. 

 

Page 118



 

7 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

6.5 Examples of areas of risk include: 

 Business Continuity 

 Fraud 

 Security of data 

 People: Delegations, Competency of staff, compliance with Policies, 
Recruitment and performance, health and safety 

 Procurement and contract letting and monitoring 

 Finance; budgetary control, cash management 

 Organisation: governance, policies, priorities, consultation, 
communication, structures, security,  

 Service delivery; resources, partners, joint or shared working 

 Environment; buildings comply with legislation, legionella, asbestos, 
severe weather  

 
6.6 Examples of questions to consider when assessing risks include: 

 What are the threats (re fraud, business continuity etc) in particular which 
ones are key to your service delivery or could impact on another's service 
delivery? 

 What are the threats that could cause a service to fail? What would the 
impact of that failure be? 

 Are there are any compensating controls and if they are robust? 

 How do you gain assurance that they are? 

 What is the timing of the threat? Could it happen at any time? 

 What is the risk appetite? Is it ok for the threat to materialise because for 
example there is a backup plan that can be immediately (or quickly) 
implemented? 

 What is the cost of the control? 

 What would the cost of the threat (s) materialising be? 
 

6. Assurance  
 

6.1 All Directorates will have a mechanism to identify and assess risk on a 
continuous basis and determine mitigation. Controls introduced to mitigate 
threats must be monitored at regular intervals to ensure that they are 
effective. If they are not effective action to remedy the situation must be taken 
e.g. to review the control itself or enforcement. This testing of controls and any 
other mitigation will form the assurance that a threat is being managed. 

 
6.2 Assurance must be available in the form of evidence that can be verified (e.g. 

business continuity business plan and testing of its robustness) where 
significant risks are identified.  

 
6.3 To give assurance on the key areas (as defined from time to time by the 

Corporate Governance Group) an assurance map showing the evidence to 
support the management of those areas will be compiled and maintained by 
the Internal Audit Service. This map will currently cover the following areas: 

 Financial risks including risk of/exposure to fraud 

 Technical eg. cybercrime, system failure and disaster recovery 

 Political including decision-making  

Page 119



 

8 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Risk& Assurance Management v Final 2020 

 Legal  risk, including fulfilling Statutory obligations  

 Specific vulnerabilities including Legionella, Data Protection, Fire risk 
etc  

 

7.  Monitoring and Review  
 
7.1 The Risk & Assurance Directory and assurance map will be considered by 

Corporate Governance Group and G&A&S in accordance with timings of risks. 
 
7.2 Managers are responsible for monitoring their own risks in accordance with 

this policy and procedures and escalating where relevant  
 
 
 

Page 120



1 

 

 

 
Title of meeting: 
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 20th 
November 2020 
 

Subject: 
 

Statement of Accounts 2019-2020 

Report by: 
 

Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
To consider the Statement of Accounts for 2019/20. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
a) That the Statement of Accounts be approved 

b) That authority be delegated to the Chair of the Governance and Audit 
and Standards Committee to sign an amended 2019/20 Statement of 
Accounts after 20th November should this be required following 
comments by the auditor 

3. Background 
 

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 the Director of Finance and 
Information Services was required to sign and date the statement of 
accounts, and confirm that he was satisfied that the accounts presented a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at 31 March and of 
the authority's income and expenditure for 2019/20, by 31st August 2020.  
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 7



2 

From 1st September 2020 to 12th October 2020 any person was able to 
inspect the accounts of the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 
certain related documents (comprising books, deeds, contracts, bills, 
vouchers and receipts and other documents relating to those records). From 
1st September 2020 to 12th October 2020, a local government elector for the 
area of the Council, or his/her representative, could object to the Council’s 
accounts asking that the auditor issue a report in the public interest (under 
schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014) and/or apply to 
the court for a declaration that an item in the accounts is contrary to law 
(under section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014). These 
rights were not exercised in respect of the Council's draft Statement of 
Accounts for 2019/20.  

 
After considering comments from the auditors, and making adjustments that 
he felt were appropriate, the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 
Officer) has re-confirmed that he is satisfied that the Statement of Accounts 
presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at 31st 
March and of the authority's income and expenditure for 2019/20. A list of 
non-trivial adjustments made by the Director of Finance and Resources 
(Section 151 Officer) so far is contained in the Appendix. Any further non-
trivial adjustments made by the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 
151 Officer) will be tabled at the meeting. 
 
The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 includes an overview of the City 
Council's performance on pages 14 to 20 and a commentary on the financial 
statements on pages 20 to 35. 
   

4. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 now require members of the 
Council to: 
 

a) consider the statement of accounts; 
b) approve the statement of accounts by a resolution 
c) ensure that the statement of accounts is signed and dated by the 

person presiding at the committee at which that approval is given 
 
Portsmouth City Council discharges these responsibilities through its 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee. 
 
The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee now have two options: 
 

1) Approve the statement of accounts 
2) To identify areas of concern and not approve the accounts 

 
In considering the statement of accounts the Committee should take into 
account any comments made by the auditor. 
 

Page 122



3 

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 the Council must publish its 
accounts together with any certificate or opinion entered by the auditor by 
30th November.  
The audit of the Statement of Accounts is ongoing. Therefore it is 
recommended that authority be delegated to the Chair of the Governance 
and Audit and Standards Committee to sign an amended 2019/20 Statement 
of Accounts after 20th November should this be required following comments 
by the auditor 

5. Integrated impact assessment 
 

An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do 
not directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising 
from this report would be subject to investigation in their own right  

 
6.  Legal implications 
 

The Section 151 Officer is required by the Local Government Act 1972 and 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to ensure that the Council’s 
budgeting, financial management, and accounting practices meet the 
relevant statutory and professional requirements. Members must have 
regard to and be aware of the wider duties placed on the Council by various 
statutes governing the conduct of its financial affairs. 

If the statement of accounts is not approved by the Committee by 30th 
November the Council will be in breach of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. Failure to approve and publish the accounts within the 
timeframe set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 would 
represent a potential risk to the reputation of the Council. 

7.  Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer) comments 
 
All financial considerations are contained within the body of the report and 
the attached appendix. 

 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………. 
Signed by Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer)  
 
Appendix: List of non-trivial amendments made by the Director of Finance 
and Resources (Section 151 Officer) (to be tabled at the meeting) 
 

Page 123



4 

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 

 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to 
a material extent by the author in preparing this report: 

 

Title of document Location 

1 Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 

Legislation.gov.uk website 

2 Information pertaining to 
the audit in the 
possession of the Council 

Financial Services 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



5 

 
 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 

Non-Trivial Adjustments Made to the Accounts Since Publication on 7 August 

 

Narrative Statement - Impact of COVID-19 

It was stated that the Council has so far been awarded government grants of £14m, 

leaving a shortfall of £18m. In October the Government received a further tranche of 

government grant of £5m. As a consequence the Council has now been awarded 

government grants of £19m leaving a shortfall of £7m. 

Statement of Accounting Policies (Note 1) 

It was stated that the net total impact of COVID-19 on the General Reserves is 

currently estimated to be a reduction of £18m. In October the Government received 

a further tranche of government grant of £5m. As a consequence the net total impact 

of COVID-19 on the General Reserves is now estimated to be a reduction of £7m. 

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature (Note 8) 

The analysis of expenditure was incorrect. Employee benefits expenses are 

£1,756,000 more than stated, other services expenses are £6,159,000 less than 

stated, and depreciation, amortisation, impairment, revaluations are £4,403,000 

more than stated. Total expenditure is correctly stated at £642,130,000. 

Operating Leases - City Council as Lessee (Note 37) 

Future rent payments on Limberline Industrial Estate were miscalculated. As a 

consequence total minimum lease payments were understated by £5,468,000 with 

the correct total being £33,992,000. The total rents including contingent rents were 

also understated by £5,468,000 with the correct total being £60,318,000.  

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Statement of Accounts 2019/20

P
age 291



www.portsmouth.gov.uk2

Topic Areas
• Legislative Background

• The 8 Financial Statements Requiring Approval

• Financial Statement Relationships

• Financial Statements Comparability

• Big Picture

• General Fund Performance vs Budget

• Portfolio Performance vs Budget

• Key Messages From the Accounts

• Usable Revenue Reserves & Net Worth

• Emerging Audit Issues

• Questions

P
age 292



www.portsmouth.gov.uk3

Legislative Background
• Accounts & Audit Regulations – Financial Statements 

Signed by S151 by 31st May and Financial Statements 
must normally be approved by G&A&S by 31st July.

• However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic the 
regulations have been amended and require the 2019/20 
Statements to be signed by S151 by 31st August and 
approved by G&A&S by 30th November 

• 8 statements to be approved

• Format of Accounts is prescribed in law – governed by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

• Not directly comparable to how the Council sets its 
budget (due to IFRS) although CI&E Statement is 
presented in a Portfolio format

P
age 293



www.portsmouth.gov.uk4

Financial Statements

• 8 Statements Require Approval

– Statement of Responsibilities (page 36)

– Movement in Reserves Statement (page 39)

– Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (page 40)

– Balance Sheet (page 41)

– Cash Flow Statement (page 43)

– Notes to the Financial Statements (page 44 to 138)

– Collection Fund (page 139)

– Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (page 144)

P
age 294



www.portsmouth.gov.uk5

Financial Statement Relationships
HRA

Income & Expenditure

2019/20 Deficit £10.2m

(2018/19 Deficit £26.4m)

Comprehensive I&E Account

Income (All Services)

Expenditure (All Services)

2019/20 Deficit £36.7m

(2018/19 Surplus £41.0m)

Movement In Reserves Statement

CI&E Surplus/Deficit

Transfers to/from Non Usable & 
Usable Reserves

GF & HRA Surplus/Deficit 
Transferred to Usable Reserves

2019/20 Tfr from GF Reserve 
£0.4m & Tfr from HRA Rsrv

£1.5m

(2018/19 Tfr to GF Reserve £3.5m & 
Tfr from HRA Reserve of £3.5m )

Collection Fund

Income (CT & NNDR)

Expenditure (CT & NNDR)

2019/20 Surplus £2.3m

(2018/19 Surplus £4.0m)

Note: General Fund Reserve Includes Schools Reserves. 2019/20 MIRS Includes a transfer from School Reserves of £0.4m

Net Worth Total 
Reserves

Usable 
Reserves

Non 
Usable 

Reserves

Liabilities

Assets

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2019/20 £56.4m

(2018/19 £26.6m)

P
age 295



www.portsmouth.gov.uk6

Financial Statements Comparability

• CI&E Statement is comparable with Private Sector

• CI&E Statement and PCC Budget – Not Comparable

But

• Can compare “Bottom Line” i.e. transfers to and from 
Usable Reserves in PCC Budget with Movement In 
Reserves Statement  

P
age 296



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

The Big Picture

£m

Actual surplus transferred to General Fund Reserve (excl. Schools) 0.0

Less:

Planned Contribution to GF Reserves 0.0

Over/Underspending Spending compared to Revised Budget 0.0

Add:

Unplanned improvement in Collection Fund 0.3

Total Net improvement in Forecast by 2021/22 0.3 

Note:
HRA deficit of £1.5m Vs Revised Budget £0.9m deficit = £0.6m overspend

Schools deficit £0.4m = contribution from Schools Reserves

7

P
age 297



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

GF Performance vs Budget - £0.0m
2018/19 2019/20

£m Main Budget Variances £m

7.5 Children’s Social Care* 3.2

1.8 Health & Social Care* 2.2

(9.3) Release From Contingency to meet overspending above (5.4)

(1.8) Other Portfolio Variances (before transfers to Portfolio Res)* (0.4)

1.8 Tfr of Portfolio under/over spending to Portfolio Specific Reserves 0.4

(0.5 Windfall Savings/Costs (e.g. Investment Properties & Hsng Ben)* 0.1

0.2 General Contingency not used (2.9)

(0.2) Additional Government Grants (0.1)

(0.4) Pension Costs, Treasury Management, Portico & Other Costs (0.4)

(0.9) Underspend Before Transfer to Revenue Reserve For Capital (3.3)

0.9 Transfer to Revenue Reserve For Capital (Full Council Feb 2020) 3.3

0.0 General Fund Over/Underspend Compared to Revised Budget 0.0

* Portfolio & Committee Performance vs Revised Budget – £5.1m Overspend 
(£7.0m Overspend in 2018/19) 

8

P
age 298



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Portfolio Performance vs Budget £5.1m
Portfolio/Committee £000’s

Children’s Social Care 3,153

Health, Wellbeing & Social Care 2,204

Housing (General Fund) 284

Education 100

Leader                                                                                                    (451)

Community Safety                                                                                   (78)

Environment & Climate Change (78)

Resources (36)

Culture, Leisure & City Development (8)

Traffic & Transportation (2)

Total Portfolio & Committee Net Overspend 5,088 

9

Increasing client volumes & complexity of client needs

Increasing numbers of looked after children

Additional Investment Property Income (£0.4m) & Port Income (£0.1m)

Increase in families requiring B&B Accommodation

Additional Home to School Transport Costs (£0.3m) offset by staff vacancies (£0.2m)

staff vacancies 

Higher Waste Collection & Disposal profit share 
with contractor 

Staff vacancies (£0.2m), lower Coroner costs (£0.1m), increased income from the 
sale of services (£0.1m) offset by higher IT Costs (£0.4m)

P
age 299



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Changes in Accounting Treatment

No changes in accounting treatment since 2018/19 accounts 
were approved

10

P
age 300



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Key Messages From 2019/20 Accounts
• Gross Cost of Services £642m (2018/19 £639m)

• Long Term Asset Values £1.8bn (up by £0.1bn primarily increase in value of 
Property, Plant & Equipment offset by a reduction Long Term Investments -
£66m)

• Long Term Borrowing (For Capital Expenditure) increased by £81m to 
£661m (includes investment properties)

• Short Term Debt owed to PCC down from £54.8m to £52.5m

• Short Term Creditors (Money owed by PCC to others) up from £54.9m to 
£62.4m

• Cash & Cash Equivalents increased by £29.8m to £56.4m

11

P
age 301



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Usable Revenue Reserves - £226.4m

• Pooled Business Rates down £5.8m to Nil

• ASC In-House Residential Reserve down £2.9m to £0.8m

• Highways PFI Reserve down £1.7m to £6.1m

• HRA General Balance down £1.5m to £20.1m

• Portfolio Reserves down £1.5m to £6.2m

• Public Health Reserve down £0.8m to £1.6m

• ASC Transformation Fund down £0.4m to £2.4m

• HRA Capital Reserve down £0.4m to £0.4m

• School Reserves down £0.4m to £4.1m

12

Will fund known future commitments

Committed to fund HRA Capital schemes

Budget uncertainties – Rent Cap & Maint. Post 
Grenfell

Committed to meet Portfolio Holder approved initiatives

Set aside to fund ASC initiatives intended to 
reduce ongoing financial pressures

Ringfenced to meet Public Health expenditure

Pools abolished 31st March 2020 by Govt. PCC 
share moved to Revenue Reserve For Capital

Redesign of Hilsea, Edinburgh, 
Sheerwater, & Harry Sotnick

Ring fenced to meet schools expenditure

P
age 302



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Usable Revenue Reserves Continued

• MTRS Reserve up £0.5m to £21.3m

• Sports & Leisure Sites Maint. up £0.5m to £1.7m 

• Lakeside Maint. up £2.2m to £2.2m

• Property Investment Reserve up £2.4m to £4.8m

• Revenue Reserve For Capital up £5.4m to £41.6m

• Property Re-Investment Reserve up £5.5m to £17.4m

• COVID-19 Reserve up £6.0m to £6.0m

• All Other Reserves up (net) by £0.9m to £32.7m

• General Fund Balance remains at £23.0m

• City Deal Reserve remains at £24.6m 

• Highways Maintenance Commuted Sums Remains at £9.3m

13

Uncommitted balance £8.0m (£5m now allocated as a 
contribution towards additional cost of Covid)

Mitigation of risk from fall in Inv. Property
values

Set aside as financing for replacement 
investment properties

Govt. Grant paid March 2020. Expenditure will be 
incurred 2020/21

Fully committed or earmarked for 
catalytic schemes 

Will fund known maintenance liabilities

Will fund known maintenance liabilities

Higher than minimum level due to budget 
uncertainties – in accordance with budget strategy

Govt. Grant relating to Tipner Regeneration

Future highways 
maintenance that will be 
undertaken within the 
Highways PFI

P
age 303



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Councils Net Worth – 0.84bn (2018/19 0.87bn)

£0.8bn
2018/19 (0.9bn)

£0.8bn
2018/19 (0.9bn)

Unusable 
Reserves £0.5bn

Usable Capital 
Reserves 0.1bn

Usable Revenue 
Reserves 0.2bn

Long Term 
Liabilities (£1.2bn)

Current Liabilities 
(£0.2bn)

Current Assets 
£0.4bn

Long Term Assets 
£1.8bn

14

P
age 304



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Summary

• Transfer to General Fund Reserve of £0.0m

• Overall Improvement in PCC Forecast General Fund 
Financial Position by 2021/22 of £0.3m

15

P
age 305



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Emerging Audit Issues
• Narrative Statement - Impact of COVID-19

It was stated that the Council has so far been awarded government grants of £14m, leaving a 
shortfall of £18m. In October the Government received a further tranche of government grant of 
£5m. As a consequence the Council has now been awarded government grants of £19m leaving 
a shortfall of £7m.

• Statement of Accounting Policies (Note 1)
It was stated that the net total impact of COVID-19 on the General Reserves is currently 
estimated to be a reduction of £18m. In October the Government received a further tranche of 
government grant of £5m. As a consequence the net total impact of COVID-19 on the General 
Reserves is now estimated to be a reduction of £7m.

• Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature (Note 8)
The analysis of expenditure was incorrect. Employee benefits expenses are £1,756,000 more 
than stated, other services expenses are £6,159,000 less than stated, and depreciation, 
amortisation, impairment, revaluations are £4,403,000 more than stated. Total expenditure is 
correctly stated at £642,130,000.

• Operating Leases - City Council as Lessee (Note 37)
Future rent payments on Limberline Industrial Estate were miscalculated. As a consequence 
total minimum lease payments were understated by £5,468,000 with the correct total being 
£33,992,000. The total rents including contingent rents were also understated by £5,468,000 
with the correct total being £60,318,000.

• The external Audit is ongoing

16

P
age 306



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Recommendations to G&A&S

• The Statement of Accounts must be approved by 30th

November. Agenda item on 20th November meeting will be 
the approval of the Statement of Accounts 2019/20

• Delegation to Chair to Approve any further changes  

17

P
age 307



www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Questions?

18

P
age 308



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

1 

 
 
Title of meeting: 
 

 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 
Cabinet 
City Council 

Date of meeting: 
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 20th 
November 2020 
Cabinet 1st December 2020  
City Council 8th December 

Subject: 
 

Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

 
Report by: 
 

 
Chris Ward, Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 
Officer) 

 
Wards affected: 
 

 
All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: Yes 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 
 

This report outlines the Council's performance against the treasury 
management indicators approved by the City Council on 17th March 2020.  
 
The Council borrowed £60m in quarter 1 of 2020/21. No further borrowing 
was undertaken in quarter 2 of 2020/21. 
 
Investment returns have continued to be on a downward trend in line with the 
likelihood that increases in Bank Rate are unlikely to occur before 2023. 

 
2. Purpose of report  

 
The purpose of the report is to inform members and the wider community of 
the Council’s Treasury Management position, ie. its borrowing and cash 
investments at 30th September 2020 and of the risks attached to that 
position. 

Whilst the Council has a portfolio of investment properties and some equity 
shares which were acquired through the capital programme; these do not in 
themselves form part of the treasury management function. 

Page 309

Agenda Item 8



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

2 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

 It is recommended that the following be noted: 

 3.1 That the Council's Treasury Management activities have remained within the 
Treasury Management Policy 2020/21 in the period up to 30th September 
2020.  

 3.2 That the actual Treasury Management indicators as at 30th September 2020 
set out in Appendix A be noted. 

4. Background 
 

The Council's treasury management operations encompass the following: 

 Cash flow forecasting (both daily balances and longer term 
forecasting 

 Investing surplus funds in approved cash investments 

 Borrowing to finance short term cash deficits and capital payments 

 Management of debt (including rescheduling and ensuring an even 
maturity profile) 

 
The key risks associated with the Council's treasury management operations 
are: 

 Credit risk - ie. that the Council is not repaid, with due interest in full, 
on the day repayment is due 

 Liquidity risk - ie. that cash will not be available when it is needed, or 
that the ineffective management of liquidity creates additional, 
unbudgeted costs 

 Interest rate risk - that the Council fails to get good value for its cash 
dealings (both when borrowing and investing) and the risk that interest 
costs incurred are in excess of those for which the Council has 
budgeted 

 Maturity (or refinancing risk) - this relates to the Council's borrowing or 
capital financing activities, and is the risk that the Council is unable to 
repay or replace its maturing funding arrangements on appropriate 
terms 

 Procedures (or systems) risk - ie. that a treasury process, human or 
otherwise, will fail and planned actions are not carried out through 
fraud or error   

 
The treasury management budget accounts for a significant proportion of the 
Council's overall budget. 

Page 310



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

3 

 
The Council's Treasury Management Policy aims to manage risk whilst 
optimising costs and returns. The Council monitors and measures its treasury 
management position against the indicators described in this report. Treasury 
management monitoring reports are brought to the Governance and Audit 
and Standards Committee for scrutiny.   
 
The Governance and Audit and Standards Committee noted the 
recommendations to Council contained within the Treasury Management 
Policy 2020/21 on 3rd March 2020. The City Council approved the Treasury 
Management Policy 2020/21 on 17th March 2020.  
 

5. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

 To highlight any variance from the approved Treasury Management Policy 
and to note any subsequent actions. 
 
To provide assurance that the Council's treasury management activities are 
effectively managed. 

 
` 6.  Integrated impact assessment 

 
An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do 
not directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising 
from this report would be subject to investigation in their own right  
 

7.  Legal Implications 
 

The Section 151 Officer is required by the Local Government Act 1972 and 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to ensure that the Council’s 
budgeting, financial management, and accounting practices meet the 
relevant statutory and professional requirements. Members must have 
regard to and be aware of the wider duties placed on the Council by various 
statutes governing the conduct of its financial affairs. 

8.  Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) comments 
 
All financial considerations are contained within the body of the report and 
the attached appendices. 

 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Signed by Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
 

Appendices: 
 
Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

Page 311



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 

4 

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to 
a material extent by the author in preparing this report: 

 

Title of document Location 

1 Treasury Management Records Financial Services 

 

Page 312



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

1 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW 2020/21 

A1. SUMMARY OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICTORS 

The City Council originally approved the authorised limit (the maximum amount of 
borrowing permitted by the Council) and the operational boundary (the maximum 
amount of borrowing that is expected) on 11th February 2020. The Council's debt at 
30th September was as follows: 

 
  

Prudential Indicator Limit 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

Authorised Limit - the maximum amount of borrowing 
permitted by the Council 

883 786 

Operational Boundary - the maximum amount of 
borrowing that is expected  

868 786 

 
The maturity structure of the Council’s fixed rate borrowing was: 

 
 Under 1 

Year 
1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Minimum 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Maximum 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

10% 10% 10% 20% 30% 30% 40% 40% 

Actual 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

1% 1% 4% 11% 18% 7% 31% 27% 

 

Page 313



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

2 

 

The maturity structure of the Council’s variable rate borrowing was: 
 

 Under 1 
Year 

1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Minimum 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Maximum 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

10% 10% 10% 20% 30% 30% 30% 30% 

Actual 
proportion 
of loans 
maturing 

2% 2% 6% 11% 22% 24% 19% 14% 

 
 

Surplus cash invested for periods longer than 365 days at 30th September 2020 was: 
 

 Limit 

£m 

Quarter 2 Actual 

£m 

Maturing after 31/3/2021 117 80 

Maturing after 31/3/2022 50 38 

Maturing after 31/3/2023 50 20 

 

A2. GOVERNANCE 

The Treasury Management Policy approved by the City Council on 17th March 2020 
provides the framework within which treasury management activities are undertaken. 

There have been no breaches of these policies during 2020/21 up to the period ending 
30th September 2020.  

Page 314



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

3 

 

 

A3.  BORROWING ACTIVITY 

Gilt yields had already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus 
crisis hit western economies during March. After gilt yields initially spiked upwards 
in March, we have seen yields fall sharply in response to major western central 
banks taking rapid policy action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets 
during March, and starting massive quantitative easing driven purchases of 
government bonds: these actions also acted to put downward pressure on 
government bond yields at a time when there has been a huge and quick expansion 
of government expenditure financed by issuing government bonds. Such 
unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” times would have caused bond yields 
to rise sharply.  At the close on 30th September, all gilt yields from 1 to 6 years were 
in negative territory, while even 25-year yields were only at 0.76% and the 50 year 
at 0.60%.  
 
From the local authority borrowing perspective, HM Treasury imposed two changes 
of margins over gilt yields for Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) rates in 2019/20 
without any prior warning. The first took place on 9th October 2019, adding an 
additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates.  That increase was then, 
at least partially, reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11th March 2020, but not 
for mainstream non-HRA capital schemes.  At the same time the Government 
announced in the Budget a programme of increased infrastructure expenditure. It 
also announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on possibly 
further amending these margins; the HM Treasury consultation was initially due to 
end on 4th June, but that date was subsequently put back to 31st July.  To date, the 
outcomes of the consultation have yet to be announced but it is clear that HM 
Treasury will most likely no longer allow local authorities to borrow money from the 
PWLB to purchase commercial property if the primary aim is to generate an income 
stream (assets for yield). The definition of such commercial activity in the 
consultation is vague. 
 
Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current 

situation is as follows: -  

 

 PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 

 PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 

 PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 

 PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

 Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 
The Council qualifies to borrow from the PWLB at the certainty rate for both General 
Fund and Housing Revenue Account purposes. It is possible that the non-HRA 
Certainty Rate will be subject to revision downwards after the conclusion of the HM 
Treasury consultation; however, the timing of such a change is currently an 
unknown, although it would be likely to be within the current financial year.  
 

Page 315



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

4 

 

There has not been a great deal of volatility in PWLB rates since the start of the 
financial year, apart from a more significant spike up during the second half of 
August into early September. This is shown in the graph below. 
 

 

 
There is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years 
as it will take economies, including the UK, a prolonged period to recover all the 
momentum they have lost in the sharp recession caused during the coronavirus 
shut down period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period.  
£60m was borrowed from the PWLB at the HRA certainty rate in the first quarter of 
2020/21 to fund the HRA capital programme. This was because PWLB rates were very 
low and because the Council may not be able to access funding from the PWLB in 
future because of its commercial activities. These loans were all for £20m and are 
repayable in 50 years at maturity. These loans have an average interest rate of 1.17%.  

Whereas this authority has previously relied on the PWLB as its main source of funding, 
it now has to fundamentally reconsider alternative cheaper sources of borrowing. At the 
current time, this is a developmental area as this event has also taken the financial 
services industry by surprise. Various financial institutions have entered the market and 
made products available to local authorities. However, the market has yet to settle 
down. Members will be updated as this area evolves. 

The Municipal Bonds Agency plans to offer loans to local authorities in 2020. This 
Authority may make use of this new source of borrowing as and when appropriate. 

At the start of the year, the Council had £30m of short term loans to help fund the 
payment of 3 years' of employer's pension contributions in advance in return for a 
discount. These loans were repaid in the first quarter of 2020/21. 

 

Page 316



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

5 

 

The Council's gross borrowing at 30th September 2020 of £786m is within the Council's 
Authorised Limit (the maximum amount of borrowing approved by City Council) of 
£883m and also within the Council's Operational Boundary (the limit beyond which 
borrowing is not expected to exceed) of £868m. 
 
The Council plans for gross borrowing to have a reasonably even maturity profile. This 
is to ensure that the Council does not need to replace large amounts of maturing 
borrowing when interest rates could be unfavourable. 
 
The actual maturity profile of the Council's borrowing is within the limits contained within 
the Council's Treasury Management Policy (see paragraph A1). 
 
Early Redemption of Borrowing 
 
Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current economic climate and 
following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which has impacted 
PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. During the quarter ended 30th 
September 2020 no debt rescheduling was undertaken. 

 
With the exception of two loans all the Council's borrowings to finance capital 
expenditure are fixed rate and fixed term loans. This reduces interest rate risk and 
provides a high degree of budget certainty.  
 
The Council's borrowing portfolio is kept under review to identify if and when it would be 
financially beneficial to repay any specific loans early. Repaying borrowing early 
invariably results in a premium (early repayment charges) by the PWLB that are 
sufficiently large to make early repayment of borrowing financially unattractive to the 
Council. 
 
No debt rescheduling or early repayment of debt has been undertaken during the two 
quarters of 2020/21 as it has not been financially advantageous for the Council to do so. 

Page 317



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

6 

 

 
A4. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 
 

Although the credit rating agencies changed their outlook on many UK banks from 
stable to negative outlook during the quarter ended 30th June 2020, due to upcoming 
risks to banks’ earnings and asset quality during the economic downturn caused by 
the pandemic, the majority of ratings were affirmed due to the continuing strong credit 
profiles of UK banks. However, during Q1 and Q2 2020, banks did make provisions 
for expected credit losses and the rating changes reflected these provisions. As we 
move into the next quarters ahead, more information will emerge on actual levels of 
credit losses. This has the potential to cause rating agencies to revisit their initial 
rating adjustments later in 2020. These adjustments could be negative or positive, 
although it should also be borne in mind that UK banks went into this pandemic with 
strong balance sheets. Indeed, the Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6th 
August revised down their expected credit losses for the banking sector to 
“somewhat less than £80bn”. They stated that, in their assessment, “banks have 
buffers of capital more than sufficient to absorb the losses that are likely to arise 
under the Monetary Policy Committee's (MPC) central projection”. The FPC stated 
that for real stress in the sector, the economic output would need to be twice as bad 
as the MPC’s projection, with unemployment rising to above 15%.  
 
All three rating agencies have reviewed banks around the world with similar results in 
many countries of most banks being placed on negative watch, but with a small 
number of actual downgrades. 
 

Although credit default swap (CDS) prices (these are market indicators of credit risk) 
for UK banks spiked upwards at the end of March / early April due to the liquidity 
crisis throughout financial markets, CDS prices have returned to average levels since 
then, although they are still elevated compared to end-February.   

 
Uncertainty over Brexit caused the MPC to leave Bank Rate unchanged during 2019 
and at its January 2020 meeting. However, since then the coronavirus outbreak has 
transformed the economic landscape: in March, the MPC took emergency action 
twice to cut Bank Rate first to 0.25%, and then to 0.10%.   
 
Actual market investment rates (London Interbank Bid rate) are shown in the graph 
below. 

 

Page 318



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

7 

 

 
 

It is now impossible to earn the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous 
decades as all investment rates are barely above zero now that Bank Rate is at 
0.10%, while some entities, including more recently the Debt Management Account 
Deposit Facility (DMADF), are offering negative rates of return in some shorter time 
periods. Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank Rate are 
unlikely to occur before 2023, investment returns are expected to remain low.  
 

Page 319



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

8 

 

The Council's cash investment portfolio consists of the following. 

 Portfolio 
at 31st 
March 
2020 

Return 
in 

2019/20 

Portfolio 
at 30th 
June 
2020 

Annualised 
Return to 
30th June   

2020 

Portfolio at 
30th 

September 
2020 

Annualised 
Return to 

30th 
September  

2020 

Plain vanilla interest 
bearing deposits 

£375.7 0.98% £374.2m 0.98% £415.0m 0.92% 

Tradable structured 
interest bearing 
deposits where the 
interest rate or the 
maturity date is 
determined by certain 
criteria 

£9.7m 2.05% £10.2m 22.55% £10.3m 13.88% 

Externally managed 
corporate bonds 

£7.4m -1.16% £8.0m 24.28% £8.0m 18.92% 

Total £392.8m 0.99% £392.4m 2.02% £433.3m 1.58% 

 

Plain Vanilla Interest Bearing Deposits 

As previously reported in the Treasury Management Outturn Report for 2019/20, the 
return on plain vanilla interest bearing deposits in 2019/20 was reduced through the 
need to provide £0.6m to write off the investment in Victory Energy Services Limited 
(VESL). The underlying return on these deposits in 2019/20 before providing for the 
write off of the investment in VESL was 1.16%. Therefore the underlying return on 
these investments has fallen by 24 basis points in the first half of 2020/21. This trend 
is expected to continue as when the current investments mature, it is unlikely that it will 
be possible to replace them with new investments paying the previous rates. 

Tradable Structured Interest Bearing Deposits 

This now consists of a single collared floating rate note purchased in June 2018 with a 
nominal value of £10m maturing in June 2023. Interest is paid at the 3 month London 
Inter Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR) with a floor of 1.60% and a cap of 3.50%. Interest is 
currently being paid at 1.60%. 
 
At the end of 2019/20 this investment had a market value of £9.7m because the 
financial markets had become illiquid.  
 
However, liquidity has returned to the financial markets and the guaranteed return of at 
least 1.60% is very attractive against the current 3 month LIBOR rate of 0.06%. 
Consequently at 30th September 2020 this investment had a market value of £10.3m. 
The market value of this investment should be £10m when it matures in June 2023. 
 

Page 320



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

9 

 

Externally Managed Corporate Bonds 
 
The shortage of liquidity in the financial markets in March 2020 also caused the market 
value of corporate bonds to fall sharply. As a consequence of this the Council's 
externally managed corporate bonds made a negative return of 1.16% in 2019/20.  

The corporate bond portfolio has been defensively managed and has no direct 
exposure to the energy, travel, hospitality, or non-food retail sectors. Now that liquidity 
has returned to the financial markets the value of the corporate bond portfolio has 
made a strong recovery.  
 
Overall Return 
 
The Council made an overall return of 1.56% on its cash investments in the first half of 
2020/21. The chart below shows the source of the Council's cash investment income. 
 

Plain Vanilla 
Interest Brearing 

Deposts
57%

Tradable Structured 
Interest Bearing 

Deposits
21%

Externally Managed 
Corporate Bonds

22%

Where Investment Income Came From

 
 
43% of the Council's investment income came from externally managed corporate 
bonds and tradable structured interest bearing deposits, despite these investments 
making up less than 5% of the investment portfolio. However, much of these gains 
result from a recovery in the market value of these investments and the level of returns 
experienced in the first quarter of 2020/21 is not being sustained. 
 
Over the remainder of the year, the vast majority of the Council's investment returns 
will come from plain vanilla interest bearing deposits which make up over 95% of the 
investment portfolio. The returns on this type of investment are falling in line with 
market interest rates. 
 

Page 321



Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2020/21 (Appendix) 
 

10 

 

Given these factors, the return on the Council's investments over the remainder of the 
year is likely to be around 1%. 
 

A5. COMBINED BORROWING AND INVESTMENT POSITION (NET DEBT) 
 
The Councils net debt position at 30th September 2020 is summarised in the table 
below. 

 Principal Average Interest 
Rate 

Interest to 30th  
September 2020 

Borrowing 
(including finance 
leases & private 
finance initiative 
(PFI) schemes) 

£786m 3.44% £13.5m 

Investments (£433m) (1.58%) (£3.2m) 

Net Debt £353m  £10.3m 

 

*Although the Council's investments were £433m at 30th September 2020, the average 
sum invested over this period was £404m. 

 
 

 

Page 322



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 

Date of meeting:            
 

20 November 2020 14:00 

Subject: 
 

PCC companies - Shareholder Committee terms of reference 

Report by: 
 

City Solicitor  

Wards affected: 
 

all 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 
In accordance with the Cabinet meeting of 26 March 2020 and the recommendation… the 
City Solicitor prepares and drafts a protocol - by the Governance and Audit Committee as a 
reference and guide for the overall corporate governance structure (i.e. company structure and 
board composition) relating to PCC owned companies and incorporated within the PCC's 
constitution.  
 
This report sets out the detail and terms of reference to be included within the constitution and 
adopted by the to be incorporated Shareholder Committee.  

 
 
2. Recommendations 
 

i. Approve the Shareholder Committee terms of reference at appendix A and  
delegate to the City Solicitor they are incorporated within the Council's 
constitution; and  

 
ii. Note the Local Government Lawyer best practice guidance (at appendix B) and 

delegation provided to the City Solicitor to work with all PCC owned companies 
to ensure the necessary constitutional changed and guidance is on boarded 
by the Shareholder Committee post incorporation.  

 
 
3. Background 
 
A report was taken to and approved by cabinet on 26 March 2020 (the Report") at link ( 
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26711/PCC%20Company%20Directors
%20report.pdf) the purpose of which was to provide Members with advice on the board 
composition of companies to which the Council is the sole shareholder and in particular to 
approve the necessary constitutional internal decision making structures in terms of exercising 
the Council shareholder function going forward. 

Page 323

Agenda Item 9

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26711/PCC%20Company%20Directors%20report.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26711/PCC%20Company%20Directors%20report.pdf


 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

The Report noted and drew down from best practice guidance and expert external legal advice 
in terms of local authority companies generally as well as the legal responsibilities of company 
directors whilst seeking to operate in a collaborative and transparent manner.  
 
Crucially the Report highlighted the importance of the Shareholder - the Council and the way in 
which the Council can exercise such Shareholder Function.  
 

4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
Following the Ravelin Group cabinet report dated 26 February 2019 - the Council's internal  
Legal Service carried out a review of the current structure of Council owned companies.  
 
Local authorities have begun to act more commercially when it comes to carrying out service 
functions and in order to address continuing financial cuts to service provision. As such, 
other appropriate vehicles for delivery are necessary.  
 
The General power of competence under the Localism Act1 allows for local authorities to trade 
and charge for services for a commercial purpose provided this is done so through the 
appropriate separate legal entity. The basis for this is to provide an appropriate vehicle to enable 
company activity that is effective, legally accountable and transparent.  
 
Following on from the above there have been, a number of "lessons learnt" reviews carried out 
nationally. In response to best the practice lessons learnt reviews - in January 2016, the Cabinet 
Office published Guidance for Directors of Companies Fully or partly owned by the Public Sector. 
Following on from the Guidance the Lawyers in Local Government Group worked up an 
appropriate model,(attached at appendix B - ("the Code") to assist local authorities to work their 
way through difficult issues arising when setting up a wholly and/or party owned company.  
 
The Code sets out a detailed best practice approach to the practical implications of how a 
Council as a (shareholder) member of a company might make decisions relating to that company 
through a separate Council shareholder committee providing oversight from a shareholder's 
perspective of the company's business and take relevant decisions on "reserved matters".  
 
As such, necessary constitutional updates are required to ensure national best practice 
guidance is adopted to assist in ensuring all Council companies are legally accountable and 
transparent. 
 

 
5. Integrated impact assessment 
 
5.1  An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do not 

directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising from this 
report would be subject to investigation in their own right  

 
6. Legal implications 
 
6.1 Legal implications are contained within the body of this report.  
 
7. Director of Finance's comments 

                                            
1 Section 3 and section 4 

Page 324



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications of the recommendations within this 

report. 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A - Shareholder Committee terms of reference  
Appendix B - The Lawyers in Local Government Group ("LLG") the Code of Practice 
(committee structure and officer example)  
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 

Appendix A 

SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

1. Purpose of the Shareholder Committee 

 

1.1. The purpose of the Shareholder Committee is to exercise the shareholder functions of the 

Council for Ravelin Group companies and provide the strategic oversight and guidance and 

to represent the Council as Shareholder Representative at meetings with the companies. 

 

1.2. In particular, the Shareholder Committee will be responsible for: 

 

1.2.1.  Incorporating and winding down of any Ravelin Group companies, including 

constitutional matters such as:- 

1.2.1.1. Varrying Articles of Association; 

1.2.1.2. Changing the names of companies and registered addresses; 

1.2.2.  Approving Shareholders Agreements; 

1.2.3.  Approving the annual Business Plans of the companies; 

1.2.4.  Approving any action which is inconsistent with the approved Business Plan;  

1.2.5.  Monitoring performance of the companies against the approved Business Plans; 

1.2.6.  In consultation with Section 151 Officer, approving any investment of funds together 

with any terms of loan agreement to Ravelin Group companies; 

1.2.7.  Appointing and dismissing of directors; 

1.2.8.  Approving major business transactions; 

1.2.9.  Approving the issuing or reduction of share capital; 

1.2.10. Approving the appointing of the auditors; and 

1.2.11. Approving any other matter which is defined as the Reserved Matter in Shareholders 

Agreements. 

 

2. Membership 

 

2.1. The Shareholder Committee shall consist of the Leader together with 5 members drawn from 

the elected Members of the Council. Other members of the Council (who are not directors of 

any of the companies concerned) may attend and vote as substitutes in the event that an 

appointed member of the Shareholder Committee is unable to attend 

 

2.2. The membership of the Shareholder Committee will reflect the political proportionality of the 

Full Council.  

Page 327



DRAFT 

 

2.3. As the role of the Shareholder Committee is to advise and discharge executive functions in 

relation to company matters and to exercise the role of the Shareholder Representative, only 

Cabinet members can be members of the Shareholder Committee with voting rights, 

although other Cabinet members and non-Cabinet members can be invited to attend, without 

voting rights. 

 

2.4. The Leader will be the chairman of the Shareholder Committee and will have the casting 

vote in the event that a majority decision cannot be reached. Vice Chair will be selected from 

the elected members of the Shareholder Committee. 

 

2.5. The necessary quorum for the meeting will be no less than 2 elected and vote rights bearing 

Members of the Council present. 

 

 

3. Meetings 

 

3.1. The Shareholder Committee will meet as regularly as required to ensure proper exercise of 

its functions but not less than quarterly. 

 

3.2. The members of the Shareholder Committee may invite the Chief Executive, Section 151 

Officer, City Solicitor, Officer of the Council or their deputies and any other persons as 

required who will be the advisers to the Shareholder Committee.  

 

3.3. It is anticipated that the Directors of Ravelin Group companies will be invited if their input is 

required to make an informed decision. 

 

4. Administration 

 

4.1. The agenda of the meeting together with any supporting documentation will be provided to 

the members of the Shareholder Committee at least 5 working days in advance. This notice 

period may be waived if the Chair of the Shareholder Committee so agrees. 

 

4.2. The meetings of the Shareholder Committee will be minuted which will subsequently be 

approved at the next meeting.  

 

 

 

Page 328



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GUIDANCE 
NOTE 

 

THE GOVERNANCE OF COUNCIL INTERESTS IN COMPANIES 

- CODE OF PRACTICE (cabinet and scrutiny example) 
  
Contents 

1. Introduction          1 
  
2. Background          1 

(a)    local authority trading 

(b)    the local authority company 

(c)     other local authority entities 

  
3. Guidance          5 
  
4. Principles of Governance of Council Companies     5 

I.     Controls and freedoms  

II.    Relationship, integrity and accountability 

III.   Understanding of roles 

  
5. Ownership and Control of the Company     7 
  
6. The Shareholder Group        9 
  
7. Scrutiny          10 
  
8. Investment and Finance        12 
  
9. Companies Structure       12 
  
10. The Company’s Board        13 
  
11. Conflicts of Interest       16 
  
12. Managed Services, Support Arrangements and Employees 17 
  

Appendices 

  
A1. Shareholder Group Terms of Reference     20 

  
A2. Shareholder Agreement Outline     24 

  

Page 331



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 1
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

A3. Director’s duties Briefing Note       25 

Page 332



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 2
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

The Governance of Council Interests in Companies - 
Code of Practice 
  

1.  Introduction 

  
1.1  The purpose of this Code of Practice is to provide a reference point to the 

Council [local authority] and interested parties (councillors, officers, company 
representatives and contractors) in understanding the requirements of the 
Council in setting up a local authority company, and in particular a local 
authority trading company (LATC), and how the governance arrangements for 
that company will work once set up. 
  

1.2      The OECD/G20 helps define corporate governance by saying that it: 

-     “involves a set of relationships between a company’s management, its board, 
its shareholders and other stakeholders; and 

-     “provides the structure through which the objectives of the company are set, 
and the means of attaining those objectives and monitoring performance are 
determined”.1 

  
1.3     This Code of Practice therefore sets out how the Council will normally go about 

managing those relationships and ensuring that a company will go on to deliver 
the objectives established for it by the Council. It also briefly explains and 
makes reference to the law and basic requirements placed upon a local 
authority in establishing or owning companies. 

  
1.4     The Code of Practice is set out as:  

• an explanatory background;  

• a set of guiding principles; and then  

• a set of working expectations.  
  
1.5       Attached, as appendices, are also key documents used in this process. 
  
  
2.  Background  
  

(a) Local authority trading and the local authority trading company 2 

  
2.1 There are long-established powers for councils to trade. Among the most 

important is the Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970, which 
authorises councils to enter into agreements with other local authorities and 
other designated public bodies, for the provision of goods, materials and 
administrative, professional and technical services, for the use of vehicles, plant 
and apparatus and associated staff, and for the carrying out of maintenance. 
Payment terms are set out in an agreement. These are not limited to cost 

 
1 “G20/OECD Principles of Corporate Governance - OECD Report to G20 Finance Ministers and 
Central Bank Governors” - September 2015 

2 Source: Local Government Association Briefing 

Page 333



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 3
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

recovery. The 1970 Act is the bedrock of trading within the public sector and 
there is substantial experience of its operation. But the Act is limited in scope. 
For example, it does not allow trading with the private sector or the public at 
large. Other established trading powers are specific in nature, such as the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, which enables councils to 
enter into agreements with anyone for the use of spare computer capacity.  

  
2.2 The Local Government Act 2003 added new possibilities to charge for services, 

to both provide extra services at cost and to trade with the private sector. Under 
the 2003 Act, the Government authorizes trading by means of a trading order. 
The Trading Order currently in force was made in 20093, which permits all 
councils in England to trade or "to do for a commercial purpose", anything which 
they are authorised to do for the purpose of carrying on their ordinary functions, 
which includes use of the granted general power of competence.  

  
2.3 Under that 2003 Act and Trading Order, as augmented by the Localism Act 

2011, for a local authority to exercise the power to do things for a commercial 
purpose (which the authority couldn’t otherwise do), then it must be done 
through a company. Councils are thus enabled to establish a company by which 
they can trade with the private sector for a profit - that is to enter into commercial 
contracts. The profits may then go back to the council through dividends or 
service charges.  

  
2.4 The reason given for this legislative requirement was that: 

“local authorities and their trading arms have to be on a level playing field 
with the private and commercial sector in both a positive and negative way. 
They should not be at a disadvantage, but they should not have an 
outstanding advantage. Taxation is a particular issue. It is right to carry 
forward the requirement that such bodies should be companies and trading 
as such.” 

  
2.5 To exercise the power to establish a company and trade, a local authority must 

first approve a business case ('a comprehensive statement') covering: 

-       the objectives of the business; 

-       the investment and other resources required to achieve those objectives; 

-       any risks the business might face and how significant these risks are; and 

-       the expected financial results of the business, together with any other 

relevant outcomes that the business is expected to achieve. 
  
2.6 That business case is then implemented and refreshed by way of a business 

plan, which should be updated and submitted for approval each year, to guide 
the company in carrying out its continuing activities. 

  
2.7 The local authority must also recover the costs of any accommodation, goods, 

services, staff and anything else they supply to the company under any 
agreement or arrangement. This is an absolute requirement and distinct from 

 
3 The Local Government (Best Value Authorities) (Power to Trade) (England) Order 2009 

Page 334



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 4
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

the various rules on procurement or providing state aid. 
  
2.8 Other important legal, commercial and financial considerations for councils or 

fire and rescue authorities setting up a trading company include company law 
issues, the cost of bidding for contracts, tax liability (corporation tax and VAT), 
EU procurement law and state aid rules and employment law (TUPE and 
pensions).  

  
(b) The Local Authority Company 

2.9 The kind of company that must be utilized to enable the Council to trade in this 
way is defined in Part V of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (‘LGHA 
89’). That lists: 
- a company limited by shares; 
- a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital; 
- a company limited by guarantee and having a share capital; 
- an unlimited company; 
- a society registered or deemed to be registered under the Industrial and 

Provident Societies Act 1965.   
  
2.10 The LGHA 89, and the current Order4 made under it, places local authority 

companies into one of three categories, being controlled or influenced by the 
local authority (a regulated company) or a company in which the local authority 
has a minority interest. It then goes on to set out a number of additional 
restrictions and requirements to which the local authority and the regulated 
company (or society) and any subsidiaries must adhere.  

  
2.11 The reasons for these extra requirements were described by the Government 

of the day, when setting out the reasons for the LGHA 89, as being that:  

"when a company is effectively under the control of a local authority… the 
most significant controls that Parliament has laid down for the conduct of 
local authorities should apply to that company." 

 

2.12 These requirements cover issues of audit, payments, delivery of information to 
the authority’s members and identification. For example, a regulated company 
is required to mention that it is a company controlled, or as the case may be 
influenced, by a local authority, naming the relevant authority or authorities, on 
all relevant documents, which are defined by reference to the companies 
legislation and are the same documents on which a company is required to 
disclose its registered name5, such as business letters, its order forms and its 
websites. 

 

(c) Other Local Authority Entities 

  

 
4 The Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995 

5 “…being of any kind mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (d) of section 349(1) of the 1985 Act” - now 

Regulation 24 of the Company, Limited Liability Partnership and Business (Names and Trading 
Disclosures) Regulations 2015 made under the replacement section 82 of the 2006 Act.  
 

Page 335



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 5
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

2.13 If it isn’t needed as a means by which it can trade, a local authority is free to 
involve itself in any one of a number of different forms of sole and joint ventures 
to best assist it in achieving its goals and aims, which may or may not involve 
establishing an entity that has a separate legal personality. These may also be 
as above, companies as defined by the Companies Act and which can include 
an industrial or provident society or a community interest company. They may 
alternatively be established as a distinct trust, with the council or appointees as 
trustee. They may be embodied as limited liability partnerships. They may also 
exist simply as unincorporated partnerships, with other public bodies or private 
persons (that can often act as if they were a distinct entity), such as the Local 
Economic Partnership.  

  
2.14 There are certain rules yet to be brought into force, and the Secretary of State 

holds reserve powers, that may require, prohibit or regulate the taking of 
specified actions by entities connected with a local authority and those 
appointed to or representing the local authority at them6. In this respect: 

-    “entity” means any entity, whether or not a legal person, and  

-     an entity is stated to be “connected with” a local authority if financial 
information about that entity must be included in the local authority’s 
statement of accounts. 

  
2.15 Whilst this Code of Practice will apply to all companies in which the Council has 

an interest, it may not be as appropriate for the governance of the Council’s 
relationship with other entities which it is connected to, is a member of or has 
an interest in. In these instances, regard will be had to this Code but its 
application will be determined on a case by case basis.  

  
Limited Liability Partnerships 

 
2.16  Particular amongst these is the limited liability partnership (LLP), which are an 

increasingly common entity of which local authorities are a member. A limited 
liability partnership is a body corporate (with legal personality separate from 
that of its members) and is formed of ‘two or more persons associated for 
carrying on a lawful business with a view to profit’7. An LLP will also file annual 
accounts and be registered with Companies House. 

 
2.17 LLP’s have a number of advantages for local authorities, including significant 

tax advantages and that it lies outside of the regulation applicable to local 
authority trading companies. Unlike a company, however, an LLP is not a 
vehicle by which the Council can undertake commercial activities via the 
general power of competence under the Localism Act 2011 or the charging and 
trading powers under the Local Government Act 2003, so a key disadvantage 
is that it must rely on specific local government powers and the vires of the 
functions included must be carefully considered. An LLP is also not suitable for 
later conversion to a company or to be formed as a charitable body. An LLP is, 
therefore, very well suited to forming joint ventures to deliver local government 

 
6 Section 212 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

7 Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 

Page 336



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 6
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

functions such as land and property development8. 
 
2.18 The cross-application of this Code will therefore particularly apply to limited 

liability partnerships (LLP), where the management agreement will reflect many 
of the elements of the articles or shareholder agreement referred to below. This 
will include, for example, the same reserved decision making in respect of 
appointment of representatives to the partnership management board, receipt 
of financial and other information by the Council and that the venture is limited 
to only undertaking its business in accordance with the approved business plan. 

 
  
3.  Guidance 

  
3.1 In exercising the power to establish a local authority trading company (LATC), 

local authorities were obliged under the 2003 Act to have regard to Statutory 
Guidance. The “General Power for Local Authorities to Trade in Function 
Related Activities Through a Company”9 was issued and it is to this document 
that this and other councils in establishing the companies have had regard to.  

  
3.2 That Statutory Guidance is now out of date, however, and was withdrawn as of 

17th June 2014. Whilst new guidance is awaited, the withdrawn guidance 
nevertheless remains useful and largely very relevant. Where it is still relevant, 
this Code has had regard to it and, where associated with the principles of this 
Code, accompanying direct quotes from the Government Guidance are 
included throughout. 

  
3.3 All listed companies are subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code10. The 

Council will expect all of its companies and their subsidiaries, and indeed any 
company with which it is associated, to adopt the “comply or explain” approach 
of the UK Corporate Governance Code as a demonstration of best practice in 
corporate governance. 

  
3.4 The Corporate Governance Guidance and Principles for Unlisted Companies in 

the UK11 and also the Corporate Governance Handbook12 have additionally 
been utilised in the compiling of this Code of Practice. 

  
3.5 The Council itself has adopted a NNN Council Code of Corporate Governance 

and the approach of this Code of Practice will fall to be associated with the 
provisions of that Code. 

  
  
4.  Principles of Governance of Council Companies  
  
4.1 In setting out the governance relationship between the Council and its 

 
8 “Structures for Collaboration and Shared Services: Technical Notes” (DCLG) 
9 First published: 29 July 2004: UK Govt Archive 

10 September 2014: Financial Reporting Council 
11 First edition: November 2010: Institute of Directors (IoD) and European Confederation of Directors’ 
Associations (ecoDa) 

12 Third edition 2013: Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (ICSA) 

Page 337



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 7
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

companies, group of companies and organisations it has invested in, this Code 
has three key underpinning principles. These are as follows, preceded by a 
relevant quote on the subject from the Government Guidance. 

  
  

I. Controls and Freedoms  
  
 The Guidance: 
  
4.2 “A successful company will be one that works alongside the authority in 

delivering joint objectives. The authority will have to consider how to balance 
the need to assist the company to achieve its trading objectives with the 
principles of transparency, accountability and probity.” 

  
 The Principles 

  
4.3 It is recognised that, whilst appreciating this should not be unfettered, a trading 

company needs to be given commercial freedoms to enable it to succeed. 
  
4.4 Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that: 

• the company will be provided with sufficient freedoms to achieve its 
objectives; and 

• the Council will retain sufficient controls to ensure that its investment is 
protected, that appropriate social and financial returns on investment can be 
obtained and that the trading activities of the companies are conducted in 
accordance with the values of the Council. 

  
  

II. Relationship, Integrity and Accountability  
  
The Guidance: 

  
4.5 “It is important that trading companies can operate on an equal footing with their 

competitors, but it is equally important that they are not used as a device for 
inhibiting legitimate public access to information about local government and 
local government services.” 

  
The Principles 

  
4.6 It is recognised that, whilst appreciating its procedures operate in a way that 

protects the company’s commercial interests, those procedures should ensure 
that the Council can carry out its functions as an investor, as a trustee of public 
funds and a local authority committed to both due responsibility for the exercise 
of its functions and for providing a vision for the City.   

  
4.7 Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that: 

• the executive can make investment decisions based upon complete and 
accurate consideration of business cases and business plans; 

Page 338



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 8
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

• the executive can evaluate social and financial benefits and returns on 
investment; and 

• the Council’s overview and scrutiny committees are able to exercise their 
powers in relation to the executive’s decision making 

in a manner that ensures the companies can provide full and frank financial and 
business reporting against their business plans and be open to an appropriate 
level of scrutiny without fear of commercial confidentiality being breached. 

  
  

III. Understanding of role 

  
The Guidance: 

  
4.8 “A trading company will be a separate legal entity from a local authority. It will 

derive its legal authority from its Memorandum of Association and the 
Companies Acts. Its directors and officers will derive their authority from the 
articles of association and the law relating to companies. 

… 

“Those “who are appointed directors will participate directly in the activities of 
the company, and are answerable to the company and have the powers and 
duties of company directors whilst they do so. 

… 

 “Local authority members and officers should be aware of potential conflicts of 
interest when carrying out their roles for their authorities, or when acting as 
directors of trading companies.” 

  
The Principles 

  
4.9 It is recognised that, as company ventures have a separate legal personality to 

the local authority, the success and good governance of the company venture 
depends upon those involved understanding their role and responsibilities 
collectively and individually.  

  
4.10 Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that there is 

sufficient induction, training and other materials in place so that: 

• their legal duties; 

• stewardship of assets; 

• the provisions of the governing documents; 

• the external environment; and 

• the total structure of the organizations and the venture 

are appropriately understood by Members of the Council in their role as part of 
the executive or of overview and scrutiny, by officers of the Council associated 
with these duties and by the directors of the companies. 

  
  

Page 339



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 9
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

5.  Ownership and control of the company 

  
5.1 NNN Council, the local authority as a corporate body, will be a member of the 

company. The membership will be as guarantor if a company limited by 
guarantee or, as will be the norm if a LATC, the holder of shares (perhaps the 
only share) in a company limited by shares.  

  
5.2 The rights and duties as a member of the company will, however, almost always 

fall to be exercised as an executive responsibility. This means that decisions to 
be taken by the Council as a member of the company (as shareholder) fall to 
be decided on by the elected Mayor/Leader. In the normal way, therefore, these 
functions may be delegated by the Mayor/Leader to the cabinet or an officer 
and will be subject to key decision and access to information rules, call-in and 
review by overview and scrutiny committee. 

  
5.3 For ease of use, where decisions are to be taken by the local authority as a 

member of a company, those decisions are referred to in this Code as being 
taken by ‘the executive’.  

  
5.4 The authority of the shareholder is exercised where decisions of the company 

are reserved for approval of the executive before they can be implemented, but 
also directly in the form of a shareholder’s written resolution or at the company’s 
general meetings.  

  
5.5 At the company general meetings the executive will be present and voting as a 

member of the company, where this presence and voting will be in the form of 
a single person known as the ’shareholder representative’.  

  

5.6 Decisions to be made by the executive, rather than left to the company itself, 
are known as ‘reserved matters’. Reserved matters cover such things as the 
approval of the company’s annual business plan or mid-year amendments to it, 
the appointment of directors, certain key financing decisions and so forth. These 
are established either through agreement with the company, known as a 
shareholders agreement, or as set out in the company’s governing articles of 
association. 

  
5.7 The relationship between the local authority (and the companies it is a member 

of) is governed by these and other key documents that are required to establish 
a local authority company, and a trading company in particular. In establishing 
the local authority’s company and then in governing the relationship with what 
is now a separate legal personality, the executive will need to put in place the 
following documents: 

• The business case which assesses the risk involved in the proposed trading 
enterprise and decides whether or not it should be established and proceed 
to trade; the ‘comprehensive statement’ referred to in 2009 Order. It starts 
the process of business planning. 

• The articles of association, or the memorandum and articles of association 
as it used to be called, which is the constitution of the company. This is the 
legal documents required to set up a limited company and give details of its 

Page 340



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 10
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

name, aims and authorised share capital, conduct of meetings, appointment 
of directors and registered office. 

• The shareholders agreement, or management agreement, which sets out 
the rights of the Council as the sole or co-shareholder and how it can 
exercise those rights. It details the powers of the board of the company and 
how and when the shareholder might influence those powers. It is important 
to note that the shareholder agreement is capable of being developed and 
added to as the company develops.  

• The financial agreements which are the commercial agreements that set 
out what assistance is to be provided and on what terms. This may be purely 
financial, such as a direct loan or a facility such as a parental guarantee, and 
made on commercial terms. It may also be in the form of goods, services or 
staff to be provided and set out in a resourcing agreement or a service level 
agreement, which is likely to be on a service charge or cost recovery basis. 
The agreements may require regular and detailed access to information and 
financial reporting to the Council and/or holding company. 

• The business plan which sets out the objectives of the business, how they 
are to be achieved and standards met adjusted in the light of experience and 
changing circumstances. It is a comprehensive analysis of the business 
situation at a particular point in time. It is often referred to as the annual 
business plan because it is expected to be submitted for shareholder 
approval annually. 

  
5.8 A model shareholder agreement for use with the holding company, setting out 

the principal decisions reserved for the executive’s approval, including 
subsidiaries of the company as a group, is outlined at Appendix 2. 

  
  
6.  Shareholder Group or Board 

  
6.1 The structure described above creates a governance process whereby, so far 

as appropriate under this Code’s Principles, the company is left to get on with 
its business. Following the UK Corporate Governance Code, the companies will 
utilise a unified board, with appropriate non-executive directors providing 
outside expert help and with board committees (such as an audit committee) to 
provide oversight and ensure delivery.  

  
6.2 The Mayor/Leader, in turn, will seek to inform the executive decisions and to 

hold the company to account by utilising a reflection of the company board 
structure in the form of a Shareholder Group, including external expertise and 
sub-groups. The role of this group is to provide the necessary oversight from a 
shareholder’s perspective that the parameters, policies and boundaries that the 
executive as the shareholder has established for the company are being 
adhered to. In it, the Mayor/Leader (or his or her appointee) remains the 
decision maker but the Group act as advisors in the making of those executive 
decisions. 

  
6.3 Such a Shareholder Group is considered to be an effective means of 

Page 341



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 11
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

governance of the companies. This is because it allows for decision making and 
discussion in an informed atmosphere, which also provides the executive with: 

• a mechanism to communicate the shareholders’ views to the company; and 

• a means to evaluate the effectiveness of the company board and the delivery 
of the company performance against strategic objectives. 

  
6.4 It is intended that the Mayor/Leader (or his/her appointee) will make most 

decisions concerning the executive’s role in respect of company interests at 
meetings of the Shareholder Group (in a similar manner to the Mayor/Leader’s 
executive decisions made at various partnership boards and the health and 
well-being board). It is envisaged that key decisions concerning the companies 
will, however, still normally be made at meetings of the Cabinet.  

  
6.5 The Terms of Reference for the Shareholder Group are set out at Appendix 1. 
  
  
7.  Scrutiny  
  
7.1 The overview and scrutiny committees have a significant role to play to ensure 

that the company is able, and the executive has properly required the company, 
to make sufficient returns for the investment to be worthwhile and, indeed, 
ensure that the social objects set for it are not lost in the drive towards the 
overriding and essential requirement for the company to be economically 
successful. 

  
7.2 It is the executive, the Mayor/Leader and Cabinet, who is responsible for 

approving the business case to establish a company, of setting the right balance 
between the economic, social and environmental objects of a company when it 
is established and of subsequently exercising the Council’s powers as 
shareholder. 

  
7.3 Once established, the company must then get on with the business of delivering 

the objectives with which it has been tasked, within the parameters set for it. It 
must be otherwise free, however, to operate in its own best interests and to 
compete on an even basis with its competitors in the marketplace. 

  
7.4 Again, it is the executive, either generally or when considering reserved 

matters, to whom the company must answer and by whom it is held to account 
for its success, or failure, in achieving the objectives set for it. 

  
7.5 The key role of overview and scrutiny is then to advise the executive and hold 

it to account on behalf of the wider public interest and its role within the Council.  
  
7.6 This creates a flow of information and accountability, in which  

-       the company needs to get on with the business of delivery;  

-       the executive needs to make the company decisions reserved to it and to 

hold the company to account for performing against them; and  

Page 342



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 12
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

-       Members as part of overview and scrutiny need to advise on or scrutinise 

the decisions of the executive.  

This needs to be done in a trading environment that requires them all to make 
speedy and reactive commercial decisions and to handle often highly valuable 
and commercially sensitive information. 

  
7.7 Overview and Scrutiny, to fulfil its role, requires a means of access to the 

sensitive information and debate that inform the Shareholder Group and the 
Mayor/Leader’s decision making, without either oppressing that process or 
endangering its own strictly non-executive role. 

  
7.8 To this end it is considered that the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board (OSM) is best placed to be involved, use his/her knowledge 
of this committee and its remit to sift the information and be alert to those 
matters that need to be bought to the overview and scrutiny committees’ 
attention and be investigated further. Accordingly, the Chair will be invited to 
the forum created to handle this crucial information flow, the Shareholder 
Group. To retain the independence required of the OSM Chair, this is not 
membership as direct advisor as part of the decision making, but as an informed 
observer. 

  
7.9 Overview and Scrutiny committees may then review any matter concerning the 

Council’s companies and make proper use of its full powers and function, 
having had these matters drawn to its attention by, and with the benefit of, a 
fully informed Chair. 

  
7.10 In carrying out any such review, the Government Guidance states that: 

“The local authority should ensure that its overview and scrutiny committees 
are able to exercise their powers in relation to the discharge of local authority 
functions under the relevant legislation. 

  
7.11 To this end, the legal framework for local authority companies includes an 

express requirement concerning the provision of information to Members of the 
Council, which reflects the similar provision in relation to local authorities 
generally. This states that a local authority regulated company “shall provide to 
a Member of the Council such information about the affairs of the company as 
the member reasonably requires for the proper discharge of his duties.”13   

  
7.12 The exception here is that the company cannot be required to provide 

information in breach of any enactment, or of an obligation owed to any person. 
  
7.13 It is also worth noting that, where a Member or an officer has become a member 

or director of a local authority company, the local authority must make 
arrangements for them to be open to questioning about the company’s activities 
by Members of the Council at a meeting of the authority, or a committee or sub-
committee, or by cabinet members in the course of proceedings of the cabinet 
or a committee of the cabinet. Importantly, the Member or officer is not required 

 
13 Article 7, Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995 

Page 343



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 13
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

to disclose confidential information about the company. 
  
  
8.  Investment and Finance 

  
8.1 The balance of how each company venture may be financed will be assessed 

and set out in the business case, required at the very beginning of the venture 
and the incorporation of the company as described above, and in business 
plans as made or amended and agreed by the executive. Each decision will 
take into account state aid implications and such matters as where legislative 
and regulatory requirements demand full cost recovery or standard commercial 
terms to be applied. 

  
8.2 Where the purpose of a company is to better utilise assets owned by the 

Council, for example, the principal investment in the company is likely to be 
those assets. The assets may then be made use of by the company through 
their being transferred in their entirety from the Council to the company or by 
being provided to the company by the Council under a lease, loan or use 
agreement.   

  
8.3 Investment at the initial stage of a trading company will normally be by way of 

purchase of share capital, either directly in the company or, more likely, via 
NNN Holding Limited, often together with a loan or loan facility on commercial 
terms. This is to fund those costs which arise at the start of the company or 
company joint venture, including the holding company and its subsidiaries, to 
cover initial set up costs, working capital costs and collateral costs. For 
purchased company interests, share value should reflect the fair value of the 
going concern. 

  
8.4 Direct investment may well also be by various other forms of agreement. This 

may be for the supply of monies, directly as a loan or under a parental 
guarantee, credit agreement, facility and so forth, which should be on standard 
commercial terms. It may also be for the supply of goods, property or staff, as 
described above and at section 12 below. 

  
  
9.  Companies Structure 

  
9.1 The principal means by which the local authority will normally own and hold 

interests in its trading and other forms of company will be through a single 
company (the Company), acting as a holding company. Wherever practically 
feasible and advantageous to the authority, each of the individual company 
ventures will then be a subsidiary of the single company and they will operate 
together as part of the a group of companies.      

  
9.2 The primary objective of a group structure is that the Company, as a holding 

company, is able to provide a single point of focus for leadership of the 
authority’s commercial activity, communication with the authority, utilisation of 
shared resources and as a forum for strategic decision-making across the 
group. Its board of directors will set the overall strategy in relation to the 

Page 344



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 14
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

activities of its subsidiaries.  
  
9.3 In doing so, the board of  the Companywill also sign off all business plans and 

hold its subsidiaries to account. The executive, supported by the Shareholder 
Group, will approve any decisions that would have an effect on the 
shareholder’s rights and hold the group of companies to account as a whole. 

  
9.4 The subsidiary companies will, therefore, be expected to adopt a common 

‘group’ approach, with the managing director and the Company’s board holding 
a clear leadership role on behalf of the authority. This will, for example, involve 
the group of companies: 
(a) using existing Council policies and strategies where appropriate andthe 

company and its subsidiaries, wherever practicable; 
(b) adopting a common approach across the group on branding and its 

finance, ethics and procurement policies and practices; 
(c) being required by the authority to have the holding company approve the 

procurement and authorisation of spend levels set by each company for 
its directors and staff; and 

 (d) also having more detailed matters to  be set as a common approach by 
the company for itself and its subsidiaries by the holding company, where 
it considers that that will increase effectiveness, efficiency and engender 
common understanding, which is likely to include such things as group 
financial procedure rules, fraud and whistle-blowing policies, decision 
making levels and procedures, capability and disciplinary procedures, 
health and safety practices and so forth.  

  
9.5 The Company will similarly provide a natural home and conduit for support and 

control roles that will be common across the group, such as company 
secretarial services, procurement, finance and human resources. These fall into 
two groups. The first is those services that would be better employed directly 
by the holding company, such as financial and payroll systems for example. 
The other are those provided as managed services to the companies by the 
Council, under a resourcing agreement (or service level agreement), because 
this is more cost effective, appropriate or is a demand of the shareholder, such 
as HR or company secretarial and legal services. (This is described further at 
section 12 below). 

  
9.6 The secondary purpose is financial, in that group companies can share VAT 

registration where appropriate and can be treated as holding group accounts. 
The latter means that reporting is as one set of accounts and that profit and loss 
can be distributed across the group, setting one off against another, as might 
be desired to meet the aims and values set for the group.  

  
9.7 The executive will approve the appointment of auditors for the group and its 

accounts will appear as part of the Council’s financial statements. 
  
  
10.  The Company’s Board  
  
10.1 The Government Guidance advised that a local authority company will be run 

Page 345



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 15
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

by its board of directors answerable to the shareholders, in accordance with the 
articles of association, and goes on to suggest that a board of between 3 and 8 
directors is most likely to be practical (although this will be dependent on the 
circumstances of each company). The participating Local Authority should be 
represented on the board of its company.  

  
10.2 The representatives who are appointed directors by the executive will 

participate directly in the activities of the company and are answerable to the 
company and have the powers and duties of company directors whilst they do 
so. Accordingly, the Government Guidance goes on to suggest that this 
requirement in a trading company and the accompanying conflict of interests 
that may arise means that officers are better placed to fulfil this role.  

  
10.3  Whilst it will therefore be the norm that officers, not members, will be appointed 

as directors, this should not prevent the Council from appointing Members as 
directors where that is considered to be in the best interests of the company 
and the Council. If Members of the Council are appointed as directors of a 
company, the following paragraphs should be borne in mind and, in particular, 
that the member notes that: 

-        Conflicts of interest may be waived by a company but, as a matter of public 

law, never in the decision making of the Council: the Council Member / 
company director will always have a conflict of interest when it comes to 
their role as a councillor that must be resolved and resolved in the favour of 
the company. A Member as director, therefore, must not be a party to 
making a decision of the Council affecting the company, but may proffer 
evidence or advice to the Council on the company’s behalf when invited to 
do so. 

-        Liaison should be through the key Member and/or officer concerning the 

company and the Council’s activities 

-      The Member’s Code of Conduct applies to a Member’s activity as a director, 

except only where it directly conflicts with the interests of the company and, 
where that may be the case, the potential conflict notified to the company 
secretary and to the Council’s monitoring officer. 

-       The only monies or other remuneration to be received by the Member in 

connection with the directorship will be as a special responsibility allowance 
(SRA) given by the Council to the amount of the corresponding SRA in the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

  
10.4 As the holding company for the group, the Company board of directors will be 

formed of: 

• Executive directors, being: 

o the managing director;  

o with the option of the managing directors of the authority’s principal trading 
companies where appropriate 

• Non-executive directors, being: 

o a chief officer of the Council (Chair of the Board);  

Page 346



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 16
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

o independent person(s) appointed to bring oversight, experience and skills 
that would be advantageous and appropriate for the companies;  

o other senior officers of the Council as appropriate; and 

o Members of the Council if considered advantageous and appropriate. 
  
10.5 The chair of the board of directors, as Council appointee, will have a deciding 

say to be exercised through means of a ‘golden vote’ procedure on the board. 
This approach is to ensure that the Council’s officers will always be able to out-
vote the directly appointed directors on the holding company. Such matters as 
the quorum requirement for board meetings of the company and the like will be 
expected to reflect that objective. 

  
10.6 The Company will have two standing committees, which will be as follows: 

• The Remuneration Committee, which will conduct appointments and 
remuneration decisions and recommendations to the Council (where an 
appointment is not wholly reserved to the Council).  

• The Audit Committee, which will fulfil the same role and function as the 
Council’s Audit Committee, the outputs of which will feed into the holding 
company board, the company business plans and the Council’s own 
statement of accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

  
10.7 In respect of the individual wholly owned trading companies, non-trading 

(Teckal) companies and joint ventures, the appointment of directors of the 
company will be as are considered best to meet the requirements of the 
subsidiary or venture concerned.  

  
10.8 Where an officer or Member is placed on a company board, he or she will be 

provided with an indemnity for their actions in that role. This is provided for 
under the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004. 
It should be noted, however, that any such indemnity only covers actions taken 
honestly and in good faith.  

  
10.9 Appointments of an officer as a company director will be of the relevant post or 

office of the Council, not as an individual. This will be reflected within each of 
the companies’ articles in that if any one of the Council appointed directors 
ceases to be an employee, office holder or Member of the Council, as 
applicable, then they automatically also cease to be a director of the 
company.             

10.10 The remuneration of officers of the Council appointed directors to a company 
controlled or influenced by the Council, other than permitted expenses, will be 
met by the Council and not the company. This is because, whilst that director’s 
overriding duty is to the company, that person’s role as director on the company 
board is only because of, and in fulfilment of, their employment as an officer of 
the Council, for which they are remunerated by the Council under that contract 
of employment. The position on the company is an inherent part of their job, for 
which payment is not to be made twice, directly or by different persons, for the 
same work. 

Page 347



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 17
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

10.11 That is not to say that the Council would fail to recognise that the position of an 
officer appointed as a company director or company officer will include distinct 
and potentially onerous additional responsibilities. Rather, it is that it is the 
Council that needs to recognise the value of those responsibilities, through a 
job evaluation process or other means by which the Council sets salaries, in 
considering any review of an officer’s remuneration. To do otherwise risks a 
future action against the officer or the Council and, if a payment were made to 
a Council officer by the company that was considered to be a fee or reward 
accepted under the colour of his or her office or employment other than his 
proper remuneration, that officer may also have committed a criminal offence14.  

10.12 The law requires that, where a Member of the Council is a director of a regulated 
company, the Member may only receive payment for that directorship up to the 
amount payable for that role under the authority’s Special Responsibility 
Allowance (SRA)15, set as a result of the recommendation of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel16. These payments may be made by the company directly 
or, more normally and as would be the case here, by the Council for reasons of 
simplicity, accounting and accountability. 

10.13 The view behind this is that the regulated company is, in fact, simply a part of 
the Council. In the same way that there is a bar on Members of the Council 
being employees, the philosophy runs akin to that for officers in that the Council 
may not pay a councillor for any other activities they may carry out as a Member 
of the Council other than through their SRA.  

  
11.   Conflicts of interest 
  
11.1 The Government Guidance states that “Local authority members and officers 

should be aware of potential conflicts of interest when carrying out their roles 
for their authorities, or when acting as directors of trading companies.” 

  
11.2 There will always arise a point where, in matters of reporting, contractual 

discussion, investment requests or resourcing agreements, there is potential 
for the same person to be a decision maker or advisor both for the Council and 
the company.  

  
11.3 This is a reflection of the position of each company as a separate legal entity 

and that the directors of each company are subject to. As the Corporate 
Governance Guidance and Principles puts it: 

  
‘An important principle of Company Law is that directors have a duty to 
promote the success of the company as a whole. They are specifically 
prohibited from directing the activities of the company in favour of themselves 
or particular shareholders and/ or stakeholders’. 

  

 
14 s117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972  

15 Article 5 of the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995 

16 Reg 21 of the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 

Page 348



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 18
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

11.4 Appendix 3 sets out a briefing for directors’ duties. 
  
11.5 An essential element of this in terms of this Code is that, whilst changes to the 

Companies Act and current articles of association allow for appropriate 
provisions dealing with conflicts of interest and the ability of company directors 
to authorise them, an officer of the Council or a Member can never waive their 
duty to act in the public interest in exercising their responsibility for functions of 
the Authority. This will, on occasion therefore, create an inescapable conflict of 
interest between someone’s role as a Member or, more likely, as an officer of 
the Council and as a director of a company, of which those involved need to be 
aware. 

  
11.6 There are also natural points where it is expected that the Council and one of 

its trading companies will take a different approach. In this respect, the 
Government Guidance states that: 

“The local authority should consider appointing a ‘contract officer’ and/or 
‘contract member’ with primary responsibility for liaison between the 
company and the authority, and for access to information about it. It might 
wish to place limitations on these individuals to ensure that they are fully 
accountable to the authority as a whole and to ensure that the Section 151 
Officer/Monitoring Officer countersigns major decisions about the company’s 
operations.” 

  
11.7 This is the role of the Shareholder Group. In support of that function, the Council 

will appoint a lead authority and client-side officer to lead on managing 
contractual arrangements with the companies and in holding of the companies 
to account. 

  
11.8 A certain form of wholly owned local authority also exist to provide services 

directly to or for the Council (known as a ‘Teckal’ company). The relationship 
between the authority and the company are set out in a contract for services In 
this scenario, clear separation is required between commissioner and provider 
and there will be a requirement for further support to be provided, beyond the 
position of lead authority and client officer. 

  
11.9 Officers placed into any of these roles are, at some point, likely to find 

themselves in a position where they are, or are negatively seen to be, acting 
against the interest of their own authority and also challenging the Council as 
their employers or senior managers to whom they might normally answer to. As 
a result of such activities, their performance in the company or actions they feel 
are required of them by the company, some of those officers may even find 
themselves in a position where it is no longer felt tenable that they can be 
appointed by the authority as a director of a company. The Council as an 
employer, from the viewpoint of both the executive and overview and scrutiny, 
wholly recognises these unusual positions that such officers may find 
themselves. The Council therefore undertakes that no officer will suffer any ill 
affect to his or her employment or career with the authority for fulfilling these 
activities to the best of their ability or in undertaking these actions asked of 
them. 

Page 349



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 19
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

  
  
12.  Managed Services, Support Arrangements and Employees 

  
12.1 The authority is required under the 2009 regulations to recover the costs of any 

accommodation, goods, services, staff or any other thing it supplies to a 
company in pursuance of any agreement, or arrangement in place. It cannot 
subsidise the operation of the company in this way. 

  
12.2 The Government Guidance in addition clarifies that  

“Because the power to trade is subject to a restriction requiring it to be 
exercised through a company, it follows that the authority has the requisite 
power to enter into arrangements with a company in order for the trading 
power … to be exercised. It is not necessary therefore, for the company to 
be expressly designated as a public body under the Local Authorities (Goods 
and Services) Act 1970, in order for the authority to be able to provide it with 
staff, goods etc, for the purpose of exercising the power to trade.” 

  
12.3 This means that the authority may enter into an agreement with the companies 

to provide services at cost or as a surplus service charge and that staff time 
and resources utilized for company purposes should be carefully accounted for. 
Where this is done at cost, which shall be the norm, it is helpfully stated in the 
Guidance that the approach should be in accordance with the CIPFA definition 
of ‘whole cost’.  

  
12.4 Referred to above as the ‘managed services’, those areas of the authority’s 

resources so utilized might include project management, initial set-up staff, 
human resources, audit, business continuity, communications, procurement, 
legal or finance and so on. Equally, it may be that the main source of staffing 
for the company’s trading activities comes from Council staff seconded for that 
purpose, be that whole time or on a client by client, job by job basis. It is for the 
company and the executive to agree what level of authority led resource is 
appropriate, should or could be delivered to the company in each case. The 
parameters of those services can be agreed through a Resourcing Agreement 
or what is known as a Service Level Agreement (SLA). 

  
12.5 The authority as shareholder, however, does need to be assured that there are 

effective and robust support services in place in certain areas. This is to satisfy 
itself that sufficient standards of operational governance, legal and company 
secretarial compliance and effective financial management within the company 
are adhered to. The authority will reserve to itself the ability under the 
Shareholder Agreement to insist on supplying these services to a controlled 
company, at cost, if it feels that these standards are not otherwise being met or 
are not in its opinion likely to be met. 

  
12.6 In particular, the Company Secretary role should have a consistent approach 

across all of the companies or group of companies. This is to ensure consistent 
interpretation of the compliance standards across the companies and of the 
governance relationship between the companies and between the companies 

Page 350



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 20
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

and the Council. In addition, it ensures that appropriate and proper intelligence 
is shared across the companies and the authority. In relation to all authority 
controlled companies and their subsidiaries, therefore, the position of company 
secretary as an officer (not a director) of each company in the group is to be 
fulfilled by the Council’s Monitoring Officer, being the equivalent corporate 
governance, assurance and general counsel position for the Council. All 
company secretarial and general counsel duties for the companies will then be 
carried out through that office, either directly or through the position of an 
assistant company secretary, with the exception of where a conflict of interest 
is identified and is acknowledged by that officer. 

  
12.7 With the exception of those staff supplied by or seconded from the authority for 

trading purposes or for managed services as described above, it is expected 
that staff of the companies will be directly recruited and employed by the 
companies themselves. Where the business case includes that staff are 
transferred this will be subject to full reporting and then consultation and 
requirements under TUPE legislation and guidance.  

  
  

  
Adopted in accordance with the Cabinet decision of DDD 

  
[To be] Presented to the NNN Council Audit Committee of DDD. 

Page 351



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 21
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

APPENDIX 1 

  
NNN COUNCIL 

SHAREHOLDER GROUP - TERMS OF REFERENCE 

  
  
Overview 

  
The purpose of the Shareholder Group is to advise the Mayor/Leader in the exercise 
of his/her responsibility for the Council’s functions as corporate shareholder of a 
company or group of companies and in their role to represent the interests of the 
Council as Shareholder Representative at meetings of a company.  

  
Decision making 

  
The Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member appointed by the Mayor/Leader for this 
purpose) may make decisions concerning companies in which the Council is or is 
proposed to become a shareholder, either: 

(a) in Cabinet; or  

(b) in the presence of the Shareholder Group.  

  
Membership and Arrangements 

  
The Shareholder Group shall consist of the Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member 
appointed by the Mayor/Leader for this purpose) in the presence of: 
  
(a) Such Members of the Cabinet as are appointed by the Mayor/Leader (which 

shall be at least two);  
  
(b) Two co-opted members, who will be independent persons providing relevant 

expertise and appointed on merit (but which process may be carried out in 
association with the Audit Committee’s arrangements for co-opted 
appointments); and 

  
(c)               Relevant senior officers of the Council as are appointed by the head of paid 

service (or their deputies); together with 

  
(d) The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, as a Member of the 

Council from outside of the Cabinet, to act in the capacity of Observer. 
  
The Service Director for Finance (s151 officer) and the Service Director for Legal 
and Democratic Services (monitoring officer), or their deputies, will be advisors to the 
Group to provide open and strong advice. 
  
Other members of the Cabinet (who are not directors of any of the companies 
concerned) may attend and vote as substitutes in the event that an appointed 
member of the Shareholder Group is unable to attend 

Page 352



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 22
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

  
Restrictions on Membership 

  
As the Shareholder Group is to advise and discharge executive functions in relation 
to company matters and the role of the Shareholder Representative, only Cabinet 
members can be members of the Shareholder Group with voting rights, although 
other Cabinet members and non-Cabinet members can be invited to attend, without 
voting rights. 

  
Meetings 

  
The Shareholder Group shall meet on a basis agreed by itself and normally in 
private. 
  
The quorum shall be the Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member appointed by the 
Mayor/Leader for this purpose) in the presence of a minimum of:  
(a) one other Cabinet Member; 
(b) one independent co-optee; and  
(c)               one senior officer appointed to the Group (or their appointed deputy). 
  
An invitation to attend must have been provided to the Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board/Committee (or their nominated deputy) at least three 
clear days in advance of the meeting taking place. This notice period may be waived 
if the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Board/Committee (or their 
nominated deputy) so agrees. 
  
An invitation to attend must also have been provided to the section 151 officer and 
the monitoring officer (or their nominated deputies), which will normally be at least 
three clear days in advance of the meeting taking place.  
  
The Mayor/Leader (or appointee) will chair the Shareholder Group and a Vice Chair 
will be selected from the elected members of the Shareholder Group.  

  
Sub Groups 

  
To assist it in its functions the Shareholder Group:  
  
1. may establish and consult standing sub-groups, such as might be required in 

respect of: 
(a)         Audit and Risk;   
(b)         Ethical practices; or 
(c)          Nominations and Remuneration 

  
2. may establish and consult ad-hoc or task and finish sub-groups in respect of 

any matter; and 
  
3. may establish and consult stakeholder groups on any particular aspect or the 

generality of the objects of the trading companies 
  

Page 353



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 23
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

A sub-group or stakeholder group may contain such co-opted members, advisors or 
observers as the Shareholder Group sees fit. 

  
Functions 

  
1. Monitor the performance of a company in relation to its Business Plan and, in 

particular, the company’s performance: 

(a)         in financial matters  

(b)         against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s 
Objects, Business Case or Business Plan; and 

(c)          against the values of the Council. 
  
2. Evaluate and monitor:  

(a)         the financial and social returns on investment (be that shareholding, 
loans or direct investment); and 

(b)         risks and opportunities  

including those arising from joint ventures or new opportunities. 
  
3. Consider matters reserved to the Council for shareholder approval, such as: 

(a)         Varying Articles of Association 

(b)         Varying ownership and structure 

(c)          Variations to shares (number of, rights, etc. 

(d)         Entering contracts that: 

(i)            have a material effect on NNN Council business (including other 
companies within the group) 

(ii)          are outside of the business plan or do not relate to the business 

(iii)        significant in relation to the size of the business, the business plan, etc.  

(e)         Material legal proceedings outside of ordinary business 

(f)            Adopting and amending business plans each year and strategic plans 
(3 years) 

(g)         Appointment, removal and the remuneration of directors (members of 
the company board) 

(h)         Selection of the chair of the board   

(i)            Appointment of auditors 

(j)            Issue of dividends 

as more particularly set out in a company’s Articles of Association or 
Shareholder Agreement. 

  
Relationship 

  
The Shareholder Group as it considers appropriate in accordance with its functions 
described above, may:  

1. report and make formal recommendations to the Mayor/Leader, directly or to 

Page 354



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 24
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

the wider Cabinet; 

2. make reports to and consult Overview and Scrutiny (including full Council) or 

3. make reports to and consult the Audit Committee, in relation to that 
Committee’s particular functions. 

  
  
  
  

  

Page 355



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 25
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

APPENDIX 2 
  

OUTLINE OF THE 
SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY AGREEMENT 

  

  

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION  

2. FINANCING THE COMPANY 

3. DIVIDEND POLICY 

4. SUBSIDIARIES 

5. MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY 

6. SHAREHOLDER GROUP 

7. THE BUSINESS PLAN AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE BUSINESS PLAN 

8. REPORTING AND ACCOUNTING MATTERS 

9. BANKING ARRANGEMENTS 

10. TERMINATION  

11. UNLAWFUL FETTER ON THE COMPANY'S POWERS  

12. ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-CONTRACTING  

13. FURTHER ASSURANCE  

14. REMEDIES AND WAIVERS  

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

16. VARIATION  

17. CONFLICT WITH THE ARTICLES  

18. SEVERANCE  

19. CONFIDENTIALITY  

20. NOTICES  

21 NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY  

21. COUNTERPARTS  

22. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999  

23. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION  

  
  

Page 356



   

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES Pg 26
  

CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE                               February 2018 

APPENDIX 3 

  

  
  
  

Guidance Note to NNN Council Members and Officers when acting as 
Directors of Council Companies 

  
  

Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 

Date of meeting: 
 

20 November 2020 

Subject: 
 

Compliance with Gifts & Hospitality protocol 

Report by: 
 

City Solicitor 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1.  Purpose of report 
 

To update Members on any issues regarding compliance with Gifts & Hospitality 
protocol and to advise on remedies. 

 
2.  Recommendations 

 
2.1.  That the Committee considers whether or not to make any recommendations 

for change. 
 
2.2. That in the absence of any changes, the report is noted. 
 
 
3.  Background 
 
3.1. The protocol for Gifts & Hospitality was approved by Standards Committee on 

12 September 2007 subject to review and full approval on 31 March 2008.  The 
protocol and Frequently Asked Questions have subsequently been regularly 
reviewed. 

3.2. The protocol requires an annual report by the City Solicitor on compliance to 
enable this committee to make any necessary recommendations for change - 
this report addresses that requirement. 

3.3. The Gifts & Hospitality policy is regularly reviewed and was last updated in 
2020. 

 
4.  Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.1. A breakdown of entries in the Gifts & Hospitality system are contained in the 

appendices to support the following assessments of protocol compliance. 
 

4.2. The total number of entries for staff for the period 1 October 2019 - 30 
September 2020 (via the Gifts & Hospitality software) is 157.  A full data set is 

Page 359

Agenda Item 10



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

available on request; specific data reports are enclosed with this report at the 
appendices. 

 
The main requirements of the protocol are as follows: 

 
4.3. Items which may be accepted 

 
Under the protocol these items must be under £25 in value for gifts and under 
£40 in value for hospitality (£5 for staff in Adult Social Care).  They must be 
given without ulterior motive.  There should not be any danger of 
misinterpretation by the public and there must not be a frequent occurrence of 
repeat gifts. 

 
4.4. Items which may not be accepted 

 
These include: 

 Where the value exceeds the limits noted above 

 Gifts of cash (including vouchers) 

 Gifts from persons with whom the Council is in contract negotiations (or 
could be) and those where we regulate or monitor services 

 
4.5. For the period covering this report, the following will be considered in turn: 

 
Gifts registered over £25 limit (Appendix 1) 
Hospitality registered over £40 (Appendix 2) 
Adult Social Care registered over £5 limit (Appendix 3) 
Registrations of Cash & Vouchers (Appendix 4) 
Donated Items (Appendix 5) 
 
There do not appear to be any other entries other than set out below that do not 
adhere to the principles contained in the protocol. 
 
Note that registrations by Members are contained in Appendix 6 but these are 
subject to a separate protocol - see paragraph 4.12 

 
4.6. Gifts registered over £25 limit 

 
The total number of entries registered for gifts over the £25 limit (Appendix 1) is 
6.  Of these 
 

4.6.1. 3 gifts were accepted on the following grounds: 
4.6.1.1. One gift was initially accepted but subsequently donated to the Lord 

Mayor's Appeal; 
4.6.1.2. One gift was accepted as the donor is a known regular user of the 

Portsmouth History Centre and refusal was considered to cause offence; 
4.6.1.3. One gift was a hospitality dinner to raise money for The D-Day Story; 

this provided a unique opportunity to meet potential donors and advocate 
for the museum. 

Page 360



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

4.6.2. The 3 remaining gifts were donated to a Housing Scheme, Lord Mayor's 
Appeal and Landport Community Garden. 

 
4.7. Hospitality registered over £40 limit 

 
The total number of entries registered for hospitality over the £40 limit 
(Appendix 2) is 21.  Of these 
 

4.7.1. 19 offers were accepted, which breaks down by service area as follows: 
 

4.7.1.1. 2 offers for Finance 
4.7.1.2. 11 offers for the Port 
4.7.1.3. 3 offers for Regeneration 
4.7.1.4. 2 offers for Culture 
4.7.1.5. 1 offer for Public Health 

 
Finance: both offers concerned hospitality on a visit to the Port of Antwerp to 
consider municipal owned ports on behalf of the Council. 
 
Port:  
1 entries concerned the Port of Antwerp as above; 
4 entries concerned attendance at awards ceremonies where a contractor to the 
Port was shortlisted for an award; 
2 entries concerned a networking opportunity; 
1 entry was accepted but in the event was not attended as the officer was unwell 
1 entry was accepted as it concerned potential new business into the Port; 
2 entries concerned anniversary celebrations of a customer to the Port. 
 

 Regeneration: 
 1 entry concerned a networking charity event; 
 1 entry concerned a luncheon hosted by the appropriate professional body; 
 1 entry concerned a staff meal out - the restaurant owner offered the occasion as 

complimentary and staff made a cash donation in response. 
 

Culture: 
2 entries concern a D-Day event which was appropriate as the receivers are staff 
who manage the D-Day Story; 
 
Public Health: 
The entry concerns a free place in the 2020 Local Area Research Intelligence 
Association.  The entry was allocated via prize draw and concerned an opportunity 
to improve research and intelligence practice. 

 
4.8. Entries for Adult Social Care exceeding £5 limit 
 

The total number of entries registered for Adult Social Care over the £5 limit 
(Appendix 3) is 8.  Of these: 
 

4.8.1. 3 items were donated (see Donated Gifts); 

Page 361



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

4.8.2. 1 item was rejected; 
4.8.3. 4 items were accepted; 

4.8.3.1. 1 entry concerned a small value gift and to refuse could have 
distressed the client 

4.8.3.2. 1 entry concerned a book sent to the Council by a previous systems 
consultant to the Council 

4.8.3.3. 1 entry concerned a small gift in circumstances where the client 
insisted although an attempt to decline was made; 

4.8.3.4. 1 entry concerned a box of luxury chocolates which were donated to 
care home residents. 
 

4.9. Entries for Cash and Vouchers registered 
 
The total number of entries registered for cash and vouchers (Appendix 4) is 18.  
Of these: 
 

4.9.1. 14 offers were rejected; 
4.9.2. 4 offers were donated where attempts to reject were rebuffed. 

 
4.10. Entries for Donated Gifts 
 

The total number of entries registered for donated gifts (Appendix 5) is 21.  Of 
these: 

  
4.10.1. 12 have been donated to the Lord Mayor's Appeal; 
4.10.2. 3 items were donated to an unspecified charitable fund; 
4.10.3. 2 item was donated to the PCC Food Bank; 
4.10.4. 2 item was donated to a housing scheme 
4.10.5. 1 item was donated to Landport Community Garden 
4.10.6. 1 item was shared amongst the staff team as the client was distressed 

that the item could not be accepted. 
 
4.11. Portico Shipping Limited 

 
Portico Shipping Limited is on a separate network to the Council and therefore not 
able to make entries on the Council's Gift and Hospitality system.  Portico keeps its 
own register.  If Members would like to see a copy of Portico's register they should 
enquire directly to the Finance Manager responsible for Portico. 
 
 

4.12. Gifts and Hospitality for Members 
 

 Members are required to declare any gifts or hospitality from any single donor over 
the value of £50 as set out in the Councillors Code of Conduct section 4.1e and 
the Code of Conduct in respect of councillors and planning applications section 
12.5. 

 

Page 362



 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Members' declarations for the period 1 October 2019 - 30 September 2020 are 
summarised in Appendix 6.  Three hospitality entries have been logged for the 
period from three different local organisations, within the protocol limits. 
 

 
5. Integrated impact assessment 
 

 An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do 
not directly impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising 
from this report would be subject to investigation in their own right. 

 
6. Legal implications 
 
 The City Solicitor's comments are embedded within this report. 
 
7. Director of Finance's comments 
 
 
 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations contained 

within this report. 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: City Solicitor 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - Gifts over £25 limit* 
Appendix 2 - Hospitality over £40 limit* 
Appendix 3 - Adult Social Care over £5 limit* 
Appendix 4 - Registrations of cash and vouchers* 
Appendix 5 - Donated Gifts* 
Appendix 6 - Members' gifts and hospitality register 
 
*Personal data has been redacted from these data sets. 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 

Page 363



 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 364



Appendix 1: Gifts over £25

Value Specified 
Value 

Classification Receiver Service Date 
Received

Description Sub 
Classification 

Action Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Donated To Donated To 
Other

Reason Approver Approved By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver Reason Director 

UNKNOW
N

Gift Denise Bastow Regeneration 31/10/2019 INEOS BACKPACK AND TWO 
INEOS BASEBALL CAPS

Other Donated INEOS TEAM UK 
LTD

FALSE Lord Mayor 
Appeal

Advised Ineos that I 
could not accept gifts 
personally but would 
donate to LM appeal 
which they agreed

Pam Turton Tristan 
Samuels

£50.00 Gift Sharon Watling Culture, Leisure & 
Regulatory Services

23/10/2019 £50 Customer Service Voucher 
as we loaned a Guillotine to 
them for a day for their tourism 
leaflets.

Cash / Voucher Accepted Wightlink FALSE Tried to reject it but 
unable to. Will give this 
to the Lord Mayors 
Appeal

Stephen Baily Yes 23/10/2019 donated to Lord 
Mayors appeal

David Williams

£30-£40 Gift Di Cawood Culture, Leisure & 
Regulatory Services

07/12/2019 Bottle of Armagnac, Duc de 
Seviac, France and bottle of 
Chablis, Louis Moreau 2017 
given to the Portsmouth 

Other Accepted REDACTED Regular user of 
Portsmouth History 
Centre

FALSE Colleague accepted as 
would cause offence if 
refused

Stephen Baily Yes 23/12/2019 Refusal would 
offend

David Williams

£29.99 Gift Adam 
Hardwick

Housing, Neighbourhood 
and Building Services

17/12/2019 RSPB bird food gift box with 
feeders 

Other Donated ECOSA Ltd Ecological 
consultancy for PCC 
project work. 

FALSE Other Landport 
Community 
Garden 

Gift over £25 in value 
and the LCG would 
have a better use for it.

James Hill David Williams

£27.99 Gift Sandra 
Perryman

Housing, Neighbourhood 
and Building Services

11/12/2019 Tower of treats - containing 
cakes, biscuits, chocolates

Other Donated Goldchem chemists local chemist that 
delivers medication to 
the residents of 
Nicholson Gardens

FALSE Other Given to 
residents in the 
lounge / dining 
area on Xmas 
Day

Value of gift too high to 
be accepted, so given to 
residents of Nicholson 
Gardens

James Hill David Williams

£125 Gift Felicity Wood Culture, Leisure & 
Regulatory Services

10/10/2019 Invitation to fundraising dinner 
for The D-Day Story at 
Southwick House on 7th 
November 2019.

Other Accepted REDACTED Trustee of The 
Portsmouth D-Day 
Museum Trust

FALSE Accepted following 
discussion with line 
manager. The 
fundraising dinner is to 
raise money for The D-
Day Story and will offer 
the opportunity to meet 
potential donors and 
advocate for the work of 
the museum.

Stephen Baily Yes 23/12/2019 Refusal would 
offend

David Williams

Over £25 (specify)

Page 1 Gifts over £25 Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 365



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Hospitality over £40

Value Specified 
Value 

Classification Receiver Service Date Received Description Action Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Reason Approver Approved By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver Reason Director 

TOTAL 
£100
Lunch - 
£35
Dinner - 
£60
Gift bag - 
£5

Hospitality Chris Ward Finance and 
Revenues

03/10/2019 Lunch (meal and 
refreshment) and 
Dinner (meal and wine) 
on Thursday 03 
October
Gift bag of promotional 
items including a small 
box of six Belgian 
Chocolates.

Accepted Port of Antwerp Commercial Port FALSE Accepted as attending a 
three day visit to the 
Port of Antwerp on 
behalf of PCC (as 
Director of Finance).  
The accommodation 
was paid for by Portico 
and purpose of trip was 
to look at other 
municipal owned ports.  
Also a non-executive 
director for Portico 
however attendance 
was not as a member of 
Portico. 

David Williams Yes 24/12/2019 Working visit - within 
policy.

Natasha Edmunds

TOTAL 
£100
Lunch - 
£35
Dinner - 
£60
Gift bag - 
£5

Hospitality Chris Ward Finance and 
Revenues

03/10/2019 Lunch (meal and 
refreshment) and 
Dinner (meal and wine) 
on Thursday 03 
October
Gift bag of promotional 
items including a small 
box of six Belgian 
Chocolates.

Accepted Port of Antwerp Commercial Port FALSE Accepted as attending a 
three day visit to the 
Port of Antwerp on 
behalf of PCC (as 
Director of Finance).  
The accommodation 
was paid for by Portico 
and purpose of trip was 
to look at other 
municipal owned ports.  
Also a non-executive 
director for Portico 
however attendance 
was not as a member of 
Portico. 

David Williams Yes 30/12/2019 Work related overseas 
visit

Natasha Edmunds

£80 Hospitality Adrian Legg Regeneration 24/02/2020 Invitation to PPA 
Annual Charity Dinner, 
Portsmouth Guildhall

Accepted Omnia Environmental Consultancy work FALSE Good networking charity 
event

Tristan Samuels Yes 24/02/2020 As discussed this 
looks like a good 
networking event and 
in aid of a local 
charity, happy to 
support. 

David Williams

£80 Hospitality Andrew 
Williamson

Portsmouth 
International Port

12/11/2019 Attendance at Fire and 
Security Awards Gala 
Dinner

Accepted Chief Executive Officer FALSE Contractor shortlisted 
for award

Mike Sellers Yes 17/12/2019 Contractor shortlisted 
for award and to show 
support

David Williams

£80 Hospitality Ian Palacio Portsmouth 
International Port

03/10/2019 Lunch at Brebronnar 
Restaurant and dinner 
at Sir Anthony Van 
Dijck Restaurant

Rejected REDACTED FALSE Ian was visiting the Port 
of Antwerp with the Port 
Director and Leader of 
the Council

Mike Sellers David Williams

£80 Hospitality Mike Sellers Portsmouth 
International Port

03/10/2019 Lunch at Brebronnar 
Restaurant and dinner 
at Sir Anthony Van 
Dijck Restaurant

Accepted REDACTED FALSE Invited by the Port of 
Antwerp to attend with 
the Leader of the 
Council

David Williams Yes 24/12/2019 Working trip - within 
policy

Natasha Edmunds

£60 Hospitality Ian Palacio Portsmouth 
International Port

04/11/2019 Clusters Business 
Networking Dinner to 
be held in 
Southampton, venue to 
be confirmed

Accepted MHI Vestas Offshore 
Wind, Dusager 4, 8200 
Aarhus N Denmark

Existing customer FALSE Networking opportunity Mike Sellers Yes 05/12/2019 Approved by MS David Williams

£60 Hospitality Ian Palacio Portsmouth 
International Port

01/10/2019 Invitation to 125th 
anniversary dinner

Accepted Director (Marine), 
Empress Dock, Ocean 
Way, Southampton

Port has mutual 
customers and works 
with Williams 
Shipping to mutual 
benefit.

FALSE As above Mike Sellers Yes 05/12/2019 Port has mutual 
customers and works 
with Williams Shipping 
to mutual benefit

David Williams

£50 Hospitality Ian Diaper Portsmouth 
International Port

07/02/2020 Southampton Sea Pie 
Supper at the Mike 
Channon Suite, St 

Accepted SCH Stevedores Contractors at the 
Port

FALSE Contractors Mike Sellers Yes 07/02/2020 Approved David Williams

£50 Hospitality Ian Palacio Portsmouth 
International Port

07/02/2020 Southampton Sea Pie 
Supper at the Mike 
Channon Suite, St 

Accepted Solent Stevedores Contractors used at 
the Port

FALSE Contractors Mike Sellers Yes 07/02/2020 Approved David Williams

£50 Hospitality Ben McInnes Portsmouth 
International Port

07/02/2020 Southampton Sea Pie 
Supper at the Mike 
Channon Suite, St 

Accepted Solent Stevedores Contractor for Port FALSE Contractor Mike Sellers Yes 07/02/2020 Approved David Williams

£40 Hospitality Ian Diaper Portsmouth 
International Port

19/11/2019 Attending the 
Commission Ceremony 
of the naming of HMS 
Prince of Wales 

Accepted Navy Command HQ, 
Media Comms 
Engagement

Ministery Of Defence FALSE Mike Sellers was invited 
but unable to attend, so 
the invitation was 
extended to his deputy 
Ian Diaper, who actually 
did not attend due to ill 
health.

Mike Sellers Yes 17/12/2019 Ian did not attend this 
ceremony

David Williams

Over £40 (specify)

Page 1 Hosp over £40 Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 367



Appendix 2: Hospitality over £40

Value Specified 
Value 

Classification Receiver Service Date Received Description Action Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Reason Approver Approved By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver Reason Director 

£200 Hospitality Ian Diaper Portsmouth 
International Port

03/02/2020 One night on Scarlet 
Lady vessel, Virgin 
Cruises as a guest of 
potential future 
customer.

Accepted Virgin Cruises Prospective new 
business

FALSE Prospective new 
business from Virgin 
Cruises.  The reason for 
the delay is due to PCC 
laptop access/IT issues 
and also COVID19.

Mike Sellers Yes 16/07/2020 new business 
opportunity

David Williams

£200 Hospitality Mike Sellers Portsmouth 
International Port

13/12/2019 Celebrity Apex Inaugral 
Sailing

Rejected Royal Carribean Cruise 
Line

FALSE Not appropriate to 
attend.

David Williams Natasha Edmunds

£200 Hospitality Ian Diaper Portsmouth 
International Port

15/10/2019 Hospitality on board 
Columbus at the 
London Cruise 
Terminal, Tilbury, 
evening celebration for 

Accepted Cruise and Maritime 
Voyages

FALSE Ian is attending on 
behalf of Mike Sellers, 
Port Director, who 
received the invitation 
but is unable to attend.

Mike Sellers Yes 06/01/2020 Ian asked to attend by 
Mike Sellers

David Williams

£200 Hospitality Ian Diaper Portsmouth 
International Port

15/10/2019 Hospitality on board 
Columbus at the 
London Cruise 
Terminal, Tilbury, 
evening celebration for 

Accepted Cruise and Maritime 
Voyages

FALSE Ian is attending on 
behalf of Mike Sellers, 
Port Director, who 
received the invitation 
but is unable to attend.

Mike Sellers Yes 05/12/2019 mutual customers of 
CMV and likewise to 
PIP.

David Williams

£159 Hospitality Pam Turton Regeneration 12/12/2019 Attendance at the 
Chartered Institute of 
Highways and 
Transportation Annual 
Luncheon.

Accepted Atkins PCC framework 
consultant - 
engineering and 
transport planning 
consultancy. 

FALSE CIHT (of which I am a 
Fellow), brings together 
senior representatives 
from across the 
Transport Industry.  The 
annual lunch is an 
opportunity to network, 
and raise the profile of 
projects.  With plans 
progressing for major 
developments in 
Portsmouth (e.g., Air 
Quality and Rapid 
Transit), this seems a 
timely opportunity to 
raise awareness and 
seek support for these 
programmes.  I have 
discussed this invitation 
with my line manager 
and for the reasons set 
out above, he has 
authorised my 
attendance

Tristan Samuels Yes 15/12/2019 Good opportunity to 
network with 
colleagues and 
decision makers for 
the benefit of the City.

David Williams

£140 
estimated 

Hospitality Caroline Elder Regeneration 09/03/2020 Meal for seven 
members of staff 
people with drinks at 
restaurant.

Accepted REDACTED Future customer FALSE Team meal out. When 
we asked for the bill the 
donor who works at the 
(family) restaurant said 
that it was 
complementary. Unable 
to asses the cost, 
members of the group 
made a cash donation.

Tristan Samuels Yes 09/03/2020 approved David Williams

£125.00 Hospitality James Batney Culture, Leisure & 
Regulatory 
Services

05/11/2019 An evening with Dan 
Snow (looking back 75 
years)
Thursday 7th 
November 2019

Accepted REDACTED D-Day Museum 
Trustee

FALSE I accepted in the 
capacity of Manager of 
the D-Day Story and 
have since agreed with 
my line manager

Stephen Baily Yes 09/12/2019 Working in partnership 
with the Trust, refusal 
would offend

David Williams

£125 Hospitality James Daly Culture, Leisure & 
Regulatory 
Services

09/12/2019 An evening with Dan 
Snow

Accepted Portsmouth D-Day 
Museum Trust

Charity FALSE Partnership working with 
Portsmouth D-Day 
Museum Trust. To 
decline would cause 
offence. 

Stephen Baily Yes 09/12/2019 Working in partnership 
with the Trust, refusal 
would offend

David Williams

Page 2 Hosp over £40 Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 368



Appendix 2: Hospitality over £40

Value Specified 
Value 

Classification Receiver Service Date Received Description Action Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Reason Approver Approved By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver Reason Director 

£125 Hospitality Matthew 
Gummerson

Public Health 20/11/2019 Free non-residential 
place at 2020 LARIA 
Annual Conference 
won in raffle at 2019 
LARIA conference

Accepted Local Area Research 
and Intelligence 
Association

Membership body 
run largely by 
volunteers in the UK 
public sector. 

FALSE The donor is a voluntary 
organisation set up to 
encourage 
communication between 
those involved in 
Research and 
Intelligence in Local 
Government and other 
local public services, 
and the Annual 
Conference is a useful 
opportunity to improve 
research and 
intelligence practice. 
The free place was 
allocated through a 
prize draw and will be 
available to whichever 
member of the local 
authority intelligence 
community it will be 
most beneficial to the 
council to attend.

Claire Currie Yes 04/12/2019 Reason accepted - a 
useful opportunity and 
high confidence that 
there are no hidden 
motives of concern in 
offering the free 
conference place.

David Williams

Page 3 Hosp over £40 Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 369



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Adult Social Care Gifts over £5 limit

Value Receiver Date Received Specified 
Value 

Description Classification Sub 
Classification 

Action Donor Name Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Hide 
Donor 
Details?

Donated To Donated To 
Other

Reason Approver Approved By 
Approver

Approval 
Decision Date

Approver Reason Director 

Margaret Cox 24/02/2020 Tin of biscuits Gift Other Donated REDACTED Family member 
not corporate 
interest

FALSE TRUE Lord Mayor 
Appeal

Family member 
requested the gift be 
kept as she was so 
pleased with the 
sensitive manner in 
which the staff dealt with 
her family member. She 
was happy in the 
circumstances for the 
biscuits to go the Lord 
Mayors Appeal

Angela Dryer David Williams

Margaret Cox 24/02/2020 Tin of biscuits Gift Other Donated REDACTED Family member 
not corporate 
interest

FALSE TRUE Lord Mayor 
Appeal

Family member 
requested the gift be 
kept as she was so 
pleased with the 
sensitive manner in 
which the staff dealt with 
her family member. She 
was happy in the 
circumstances for the 
biscuits to go the Lord 
Mayors Appeal

Angela Dryer David Williams

Brigid Forrest 14/01/2020 Cream crackers and 2020 paper 
calendar

Gift Cash / Voucher Accepted REDACTED FALSE TRUE Potential for client 
distress if myself and 
CPN did not accept 
these small Christmas 
gifts. 

Angela Dryer Yes 14/01/2020 non acceptance could 
have led to distress to 
client

David Williams

Carrie Piddington 19/12/2019 Bag of various cosmetics Gift Other Rejected REDACTED FALSE TRUE Against PCC policy to 
accept gift.

Angela Dryer David Williams

Angela Dryer 05/12/2019 Copy of Beyond Command & Control 
book

Gift Other Accepted Vanguard Have provided 
Systems 
thinking training 
to PCC and 
service in past

FALSE TRUE Sent by organisation as 
have worked with us in 
the past

David Williams Yes 05/12/2019 Work related Natasha Edmunds

Jessica Tutt 01/10/2019 Knitted toy and blanket Gift Cash / Voucher Accepted REDACTED FALSE TRUE Client had knitted toy 
and blanket for workers 
new child. Worker tried 
to decline, client insisted 
on acceptance.

Angela Dryer Yes 15/10/2019 Client insisted despite 
attempt to decline

David Williams

Andy Biddle 08/04/2020 over £25 The utterly cracking Easter hamper Gift Other Accepted Hotel Chocolate None that have 
been declared

FALSE TRUE Donated perishable 
goods, specific to time 
of year therefore cannot 
go to Lord Mayor's 
charity. Donated to 
residents of care home.

Angela Dryer Yes 12/04/2020 Donated to residents 
in care home

David Williams

Victoria Davies 06/12/2019 £25 Large Christmas hamper received that 
includes bottles of wine, sweets, 
biscuits, tea, coffee and hot chocolate

Gift Other Donated Mark Bates Ltd Mark Bates Ltd 
are an insurer 
recommended 
to Direct 
Payment clients 
for insurance 
such as 
employers 
liability.

FALSE TRUE Other Food Bank - 
Food and drink 
placed in trolley 
in The View for 
it to be donated 
to food banks 
across the city.

Hamper donated. Chris Ward David Williams

£5 - £25

Over £25 (specify)

Page 1 ASC Gifts over £5 Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 371



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4: Cash Vouchers Report

Service 
Text

Date 
Received

Value 
Desc

Specif
ied 
Value 

Receiver Description Sub 
Classifica
tion 

Action Donor 
Name

Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Hide 
Donor 
Details?

Donated 
To 

Reason Approver Approved 
By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver 
Reason

Director 

Culture, 
Leisure & 
Regulator
y Services

23/10/2019 Over £25 
(specify)

£50.00 Sharon 
Watling

£50 Customer 
Service Voucher as 
we loaned a 
Guillotine to them for 
a day for their 
tourism leaflets.

Cash / 
Voucher

Accepted Wightlink FALSE TRUE Tried to reject it 
but unable to. 
Will give this to 
the Lord Mayors 
Appeal

Stephen 
Baily

Yes 23/10/2019 donated to 
Lord 
Mayors 
appeal

David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

10/06/2020 £5 - £25 Emma 
Hobbs

£5 note Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of 
Nicholson 
Gardens

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

02/06/2020 £5 - £25 Lisa 
Jackson

£10 cash Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of St 
Clares 
Court

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

29/05/2020 £5 - £25 Danny 
Ardrey

£15 cheque Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Residents 
of John 
Marshall 
Court

FALSE TRUE Cash  /cheque 
cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

22/04/2020 £5 - £25 Tina 
Hilton

REDACTED wanted 
Tina to take the 
change from the 
shopping that she did 
for her due to Covid 
19 and not being 
able to get out

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

REDACT
ED 
receives 
the Cat 1 
Sheltered 
Housing 
Service

FALSE TRUE Tina is aware 
that she can not 
accept any cash 
from residents. 
She explained 
this to the 
resident and had 
a chat with her 
as this was the 
3rd time this 
resident had 
asked her to 
keep the cash. 
Tina explained 
she was helping 
her as part of her 
job and she gets 
paid for what she 
does and also 
she was happy 
to help her as 
she knew the 
resident couldn't 
get out  due to 
Covid 19.. 

James Hill David 
Williams

app4 Cash  Vouchers Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 373



Appendix 4: Cash Vouchers Report

Service 
Text

Date 
Received

Value 
Desc

Specif
ied 
Value 

Receiver Description Sub 
Classifica
tion 

Action Donor 
Name

Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Hide 
Donor 
Details?

Donated 
To 

Reason Approver Approved 
By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver 
Reason

Director 

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

16/04/2020 Under £5 Tina 
Hilton

Tina was supporting 
REDACTED with her 
shopping as she was 
shielding as per 
Covid 19 and wanted 
Tina to keep the 
change from the 
shopping.

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

REDACT
ED 
receives 
the CAT1 
Sheltered 
Housing 
Service

FALSE TRUE Tina is aware 
that she can not 
accept any cash 
from residents 
and explained 
this and handed 
the moment 
[money] back 

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

09/04/2020 £5 - £25 Tina 
Hilton

Due to the Covid 
situation we are 
shopping for this 
resident who 
shielding and she 
wanted Tina to have 
the change from the 
shopping. 

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
receives 
Cat 1 
Sheltered 
Housing 
Service

FALSE TRUE Tina is aware 
that under no 
circumstances 
can she accept 
cash from a 
resident so she 
handed the 
change back and 
explained the 
reason why.  

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

09/04/2020 £5 - £25 Tina 
Hilton

Tina was shopping 
for REDACTED due 
to the Covid 19 
situation and resident 
very nervous about 
going out and had no 
one else to help her. 
She wanted Tina to 
take the change from 
the shopping   

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

REDACT
ED 
receives 
the Cat 1 
Sheltered 
Housing 
Service

FALSE TRUE Tina is aware 
she can not 
accept any 
money from 
residents.She 
handed the 
change back to 
REDACTED and 
explained this 
and that she was 
helping her as 
part of her role 
as a Cat 1 
mobile manager.  

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

08/04/2020 £5 - £25 Emma 
Hobbs

Unspecified amount 
of money offered to 
buy PPE for staff

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of 
Nicholson 
Gardens

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

04/04/2020 Under £5 Emma 
Hobbs

£2 scratch card Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of 
Nicholson 
Gardens

FALSE TRUE Scratch card 
cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

app4 Cash  Vouchers Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 374



Appendix 4: Cash Vouchers Report

Service 
Text

Date 
Received

Value 
Desc

Specif
ied 
Value 

Receiver Description Sub 
Classifica
tion 

Action Donor 
Name

Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Hide 
Donor 
Details?

Donated 
To 

Reason Approver Approved 
By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver 
Reason

Director 

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

20/02/2020 £5 - £25 Matthew 
Underwoo
d

£5 cash given to 
cleaner Alan Judd by 
resident for a good 
job done in their 
block

Cash / 
Voucher

Donated REDACT
ED

FALSE TRUE Cleaner is aware 
he is unable to 
accept cash, he 
made the 
resident aware 
of this but they 
insisted he took 
it. Alan did not 
wish to offend 
the resident.

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

31/01/2020 Under £5 Catherine 
Pearce

£1.50 change after 
paying for laundry 
tokens

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of Tweed 
Court

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

22/01/2020 £5 - £25 Matthew 
Underwoo
d

Given to Cleaner 
Alan Judd as a 
belated Christmas 
gift for the good work 
he does in the 
residents block. Alan 
refused but the 
resident insisted. 
Alan brought the £5 
to me as he is fully 
aware he can not 
accept a cash gift.

Cash / 
Voucher

Donated REDACT
ED

FALSE TRUE Lord 
Mayor 
Appeal

Unable to accept 
a cash gift.

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

07/01/2020 £5 - £25 Daniel 
Jackson

REDACTED wanted 
to give Dan £20 as a 
gift for Christmas to 
thank him for his 
support and help as 
a scheme manager.

Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

REDACT
ED is a 
Cat 1 
Sheltered 
Housing 
resident

FALSE TRUE REDACTED 
receives the 
CAT1 Sheltered 
Housing Service 
and gave Dan 
£20.00 cash as a 
Christmas gift to 
thank him for his 
support and 
help. Dan 
thanked the 
resident but 
explained that he 
did not expect 
any gifts and that 
he could not 
accept any form 
of cash at all and 
handed it back to 
the resident 
which she 
accepted.

James Hill David 
Williams

app4 Cash  Vouchers Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 375



Appendix 4: Cash Vouchers Report

Service 
Text

Date 
Received

Value 
Desc

Specif
ied 
Value 

Receiver Description Sub 
Classifica
tion 

Action Donor 
Name

Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Hide 
Donor 
Details?

Donated 
To 

Reason Approver Approved 
By 
Approver

Approver 
Decision 
Date

Approver 
Reason

Director 

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

18/12/2019 £5 - £25 David 
Creasey

£20 cash gift Cash / 
Voucher

Donated REDACT
ED

FALSE TRUE Lord 
Mayor 
Appeal

Cash given and 
resident was 
offended at 
thought of being 
rejected, 
Resident insisted 
it was taken 
(resident in 80s)
Told would be 
donated to Lord 
Mayors appeal

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

16/12/2019 £5 - £25 Jonathon 
Mackay

£10 cash offerred Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of Ian 
Gibson 
Court 
where 
Jonathon 
is Scheme 
Manager

FALSE TRUE Rejected as 
cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

16/12/2019 £5 - £25 Alison 
Croucher

£10 cash Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of Ian 
Gibson 
Court

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

Housing, 
Neighbour
hood and 
Building 
Services

17/11/2019 £5 - £25 Louise 
Short

£20 cash Cash / 
Voucher

Rejected REDACT
ED

Resident 
of Ian 
Gibson 
Court 
where 
Louise 
works as 
Care 
Service 
Manager

FALSE TRUE Cash cannot be 
accepted

James Hill David 
Williams

app4 Cash  Vouchers Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 376



Appendix 5: Donated Items Report

Donated To Desc Value Desc Service Text Date 
Received

Donated To Other Specified 
Value 

Receiver Description Classification Sub Classification Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Action Reason Approver 

Other £5 - £25 Housing, Neighbourhood and 
Building Services

20/02/2020 Matthew 
Underwood

£5 cash given to cleaner 
Alan Judd by resident for 
a good job done in their 
block

Gift Cash / Voucher REDACTED FALSE Donated Cleaner is aware he is 
unable to accept cash, 
he made the resident 
aware of this but they 
insisted he took it. Alan 
did not wish to offend 
the resident.  Donated 
to charitable fund

James Hill

24/02/2020 Margaret Cox Tin of biscuits Gift Other REDACTED Family member not 
corporate interest

FALSE Donated Family member 
requested the gift be 
kept as she was so 
pleased with the 
sensitive manner in 
which the staff dealt with 
her family member. She 
was happy in the 
circumstances for the 
biscuits to go the Lord 
Mayors Appeal

Angela Dryer

24/02/2020 Margaret Cox Tin of biscuits Gift Other REDACTED Family member not 
corporate interest

FALSE Donated Family member 
requested the gift be 
kept as she was so 
pleased with the 
sensitive manner in 
which the staff dealt with 
her family member. She 
was happy in the 
circumstances for the 
biscuits to go the Lord 
Mayors Appeal

Angela Dryer

22/01/2020 Matthew 
Underwood

Given to Cleaner Alan 
Judd as a belated 
Christmas gift for the good 
work he does in the 
residents block. Alan 
refused but the resident 
insisted. Alan brought the 
£5 to me as he is fully 
aware he can not accept a 
cash gift.

Gift Cash / Voucher REDACTED FALSE Donated Unable to accept a cash 
gift.

James Hill

17/01/2020 Kirsty Mcniff Bottle of Gin as a thank 
you for everything that 
Kirsty has done to help 
him

Gift Other REDACTED REDACTED receives 
the Cat 1 Sheltered 
Housing Service and 
Kirsty is the scheme 
manager

FALSE Donated Kirsty explained she 
could not accept this gift 
due to the gift policy. 
John would not accept  
the gin back so we will 
be donating it to The 
Lord Mayors Appeal 
which I will help Kirsty 
do next week-Week of 
20th January 
2020.Valerie Searley

James Hill

19/12/2019 Jolene Burns x4 wine and tub of 
Celebrations

Gift Other REDACTED Does work for Council FALSE Donated Individual items were 
sent with intention of 
being spread between 
staff. Not much value in 
each item.

James Hill

18/12/2019 David Creasey £20 cash gift Gift Cash / Voucher REDACTED FALSE Donated Cash given and resident 
was offended at thought 
of being rejected, 
Resident insisted it was 
taken (resident in 80s)
Told would be donated 
to Lord Mayors appeal

James Hill

16/12/2019 Ian Alexander Two bottles of wine Gift Cash / Voucher Ravestein Ltd Contractor FALSE Donated Inappropriate to accept. Mike Sellers

16/12/2019 James Evans Two bottles of wine Gift Cash / Voucher Ravestein Ltd Contractor FALSE Donated Inappropriate to accept Mike Sellers

16/12/2019 John Cotton Two bottles of wine Gift Cash / Voucher Ravestein Ltd Contractors FALSE Donated Inappropriate to accept Mike Sellers

Lord Mayor 
Appeal

£5 - £25 Adult Services

Housing, Neighbourhood and 
Building Services

Portsmouth International Port

Page 1 Donated Items Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 377



Appendix 5: Donated Items Report

Donated To Desc Value Desc Service Text Date 
Received

Donated To Other Specified 
Value 

Receiver Description Classification Sub Classification Donor Name Known Donor 
Interests

Donor 
Minor?

Action Reason Approver 

16/12/2019 Steve Watkyns Two bottles of wine Gift Cash / Voucher Ravestein Contractor FALSE Donated Inappropriate to keep Mike Sellers
Over £25 
(specify)

Regeneration 31/10/2019 UNKNOWN Denise Bastow INEOS BACKPACK AND 
TWO INEOS BASEBALL 
CAPS

Gift Other INEOS TEAM UK LTD FALSE Donated UNABLE TO ACCEPT 
GIFTS PERSONALLY 
BUT ADVISED INEOS 
THAT I COULD 
DONATE THEM TO 
THE LORD MAYOR'S 
APPEAL WHICH THEY 
AGREED SHOULD 
HAPPEN, COPY OF 
EMAIL RECEIPT FROM 
LORD MAYOR'S 
OFFICE ATTACHED

Pam Turton

Under £20 Portsmouth International Port 16/12/2019 Mike Sellers Bottle of red wine and bag 
of maltesers

Sponsorship Village Hotel Club 
Portsmouth

Used facilities for Port 
Away Day

FALSE Donated Red wine will be 
donated to Lord Mayor's 
Appeal, the maltesers 
will be shared amongst 
the team.

David Williams

23/12/2019 Added to PCC Food 
bank

Alastair Smith Chocolates Gift Other Silverstring Provides backup 
software/solution 
components to PCC IT

FALSE Donated To ensure no direct 
benefit to PCC staff

Natasha Edmunds

12/12/2019 Cares Christmas 
Box Appeal 

Tina West Box of Thorntons 
Christmas Selection 
Chocolates

Gift Other St Thomas Training Ltd FALSE Donated Box of Thornton 
Chocolates received by 
post from St Thomas 
Training Ltd as a thank 
you for help and support 
for Training delivered on 
site. St Thomas Training 
provide Safeguarding 
and MCA Training for 
PCC Staff

Stephen Baily

Housing, Neighbourhood and 
Building Services

16/12/2019 Gift donated to Ian 
Gibson Court 
residents' Christmas 
raffle

Jonathon Mackay Tower Treats - assortment 
of cakes, biscuits & 
chocolates

Gift Other Goldchem chemists Chemist who deliver 
medication to residents 
in Ian Gibson Court

FALSE Donated Gift valued at £25 so 
could not be accepted

James Hill

Adult Services 06/12/2019 Food Bank - Food 
and drink placed in 
trolley in The View 
for it to be donated 
to food banks across 
the city.

£25 Victoria Davies Large Christmas hamper 
received that includes 
bottles of wine, sweets, 
biscuits, tea, coffee and 
hot chocolate

Gift Other Mark Bates Ltd Mark Bates Ltd are an 
insurer recommended 
to Direct Payment 
clients for insurance 
such as employers 
liability.

FALSE Donated Hamper donated. Chris Ward

17/12/2019 Landport Community 
Garden 

£29.99 Adam Hardwick RSPB bird food gift box 
with feeders 

Gift Other ECOSA Ltd Ecological consultancy 
for PCC project work. 

FALSE Donated Gift over £25 in value 
and the LCG would 
have a better use for it.

James Hill

11/12/2019 Given to residents in 
the lounge / dining 
area on Xmas Day

£27.99 Sandra Perryman Tower of treats - 
containing cakes, biscuits, 
chocolates

Gift Other Goldchem chemists local chemist that 
delivers medication to 
the residents of 
Nicholson Gardens

FALSE Donated Value of gift too high to 
be accepted, so given to 
residents of Nicholson 
Gardens

James Hill

Children and Families Services 21/07/2020 To be shared within 
the team (North 
Locality)

Lauren Fraser small box of miniature 
chocolates - Maltesers 
truffles

Gift Other REDACTED Currently on my 
caseload - CP plan
REDACTED said he 
would like me to have 
the chocolates 
because I have listened 
to him. 

TRUE Donated REDACTED was upset 
when I said I was 
unable to accept the 
chocolates and I agreed 
to share them within my 
team. 

Alison Jeffery

Housing, Neighbourhood and 
Building Services

21/01/2020 WASPI charitable 
fund

Susan Allan Handbag size makeup 
mirror

Gift Other REDACTED FALSE Donated to support charitable 
fund

James Hill

£5 - £25 Corporate Services

Over £25 
(specify)

Housing, Neighbourhood and 
Building Services

Under £5

Other

Page 2 Donated Items Report 1.10.19-30.9.20.xls

P
age 378



09/11/2020 1

Portsmouth City Council

Expiry date Office
Councillor Name of Donor(s) Address of Donor(s) Nature of Gift/Hospitality Date Received (+ 3 years) Date submitted
Lee Mason City Life Church City Life Church, 85 Tangier 

Road, Portsmouth, PO3  6JH
Global Leadership Summit (approx 
£50)

1st Nov/2nd Nov 2019 14th November 2019

Gerald Vernon-Jackson Portsmouth Down Syndrome 
Association

The Sarah Duffen Centre, 
Belmont St Building, Cottage 
Grove School Campus, 
Chivers Close, Portsmouth, 
PO5  1HG

Annual fundraising dinner on board 
HMS Warrior (approx £50)

22nd November 2019 28th November 2019

Jo Hooper New Theatre Royal Guildhall Walk, Portsmouth, 
PO1  2DD

2 tickets plus drinks reception for 
Christmas production of "The 
Nutcracker" (Total value approx £60)

Friday 20th 
December 2019

10th January 2020

Gift(s) and/or Hospitality details

CODE OF CONDUCT - MEMBERS' GIFTS & HOSPITALITY REGISTER

P
age 379



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting:  
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 

Date of meeting: 
 

20th November 2020 

Subject:  
 

Internal Audit Performance Status Report to 6th November 
2020. 
 

Report by: 
 

Chief Internal Auditor 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1.  Summary 
 
1.1 This is an Internal Audit Performance Status Report for the 2020-21 planned 

audit activities. Appendix A includes the detail of progress made against the 
annual plan and documents individual audit findings.   

 
2. Purpose of report  
 
2.1 This report is to update the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee on 

the Internal Audit Performance for 2020/21 to 6th November 2020 against the 
Annual Audit Plan, highlight areas of concern and areas where assurance can 
be given on the internal control framework.  

 
 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 That Members note the Audit Performance and results for 2020/21 to 6th 

November 2020.  
 
 
4. Background 
 
4.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2020/21 has been drawn up in accordance with the 

agreed Audit Strategy and was approved by this Committee on 3rd March 2020 
following consultation with Directors and relevant parties. The Plan was revised 
and represented to this committee on 21st July 2020 following a reassessment of 
risk exposure and COVID 19 requirements. It is now reviewed monthly in order 
to take account of any further changes in risks levels or corporate priorities.  

 
5. Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

Page 381

Agenda Item 11



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

5.1 The contents of this report do not have any relevant equalities and 
environmental impact and therefore an Integrated Impact assessment is not 
required. 

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 The City Solicitor has considered the report and is satisfied that the 

recommendations are in accordance with the Council’s legal requirements and 
the Council is fully empowered to make the decisions in this matter. 

 
6.2 Where system weaknesses have been identified he is satisfied that the 

appropriate steps are being taken to have these addressed. 
 
7 Finance Comments 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in 

this report. 
 
7.2 The S151 Officer is content that the progress against the Annual Audit Plan and 

the agreed actions are sufficient to comply with his statutory obligations to 
ensure that the Authority maintains an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and its system of internal control. 

 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Progress Report  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

1 Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations  
 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/817/contents/made 
 

2 Previous Audit 
Performance 
Status and other 
Audit Reports 

Refer to Governance and Audit and Standard meetings –
reports published online. 
 

3 Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-
sector-internal-audit-standards 
 

 

Page 382

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/817/contents/made
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 383



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 20th November 2020 

Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

P
age 385



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 2 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n   

 

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities.  

The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to: 

 

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance 

 
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016]. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes 

This report includes the status against the 2020/21 internal audit plan. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 386



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 3 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

2 .  A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0  

 

There are 67 Full Audits, 19 Follow ups and 19 2nd Follow up reviews, in the revised plan for 2020/21, totalling 105 reviews.  

To date, 72 (69%) have been completed or are in progress as at 6th November 2020. This represents 43 (41%) audits where the report has been finalised, 10 

(10%) where the report is in draft and 19 (18%) audits currently in progress. 

 

S t a t u s  A u d i t s  

Identified 33 

Fieldwork 19 

Draft Report 10 

Final Report 43 
 

 
 

31%

18%
10%

41%

Audit Plan Progress as of 6th 
November 2020

Identified

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

P
age 387



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 4 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

3 .  O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t   
 
Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following area. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour): 
 

 Data matching in relation to payroll records and apprentices. Work has been undertaken using data analytics software to identify potential 
apprentices on the wrong national insurance tax code 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable), policy review and inspections 

 Anti-Money Laundering - monitoring, reporting and policy review 

 Financial Rules Waivers 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office 

 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 

 Counter Fraud Programme - proactive work to reduce the risk exposure to the authority 

 Governance & Audit & Standards Committee - reporting and attendance  

 Audit Planning and Consultation 

 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement  

 Performance Management 

 9 special investigations - (excludes Benefit and Council Tax Support cases) 

 18 items of advice, (where the advice exceeds an hours work) 
 
 
Over the course of this financial year, Internal Audit has also been involved in supporting the organisation in maintaining critical activities during Covid-19, 
this has included redeployment of some staff and undertaking ad-hoc control and risk management assessments in order for the organisation to flex its 
governance framework.  
 
Internal Audit & Counter Fraud has also been performing a number of assurance work in relation to COVID 19. This was due to be presented at this 
meeting; however, work is still on-going due to the 2nd lock-down and additional central government support packages. A full break-down of activities 
performed and resources redeployed over the last year will be presented at a later stage; however, before 20/21 year-end.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 388



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 5 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

 
 

 

4 .  A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s  
 

The following changes have been made to the plan since the revised plan was presented in July 2020. 

Audits added to the Audit Plan: 

 Covid 19 Income loss compensation claim - Included within the 20/21 audit plan due to independent assurance requirements. There will be several 

verification points between now and any subsequent payments.  

Audits removed from the Audit Plan: 

 Adult's residential unit - Follow up required; however, due to Covid-19 onsite visits are highly unlikely and therefore this has been deferred to the 

21/22 audit plan. 

 Emergency procedures - Follow up required; however, due to Covid-19 onsite visits are highly unlikely and therefore this has been deferred to the 

21/22 audit plan. 

 Coffee shop - Follow up required; however, due to Covid-19 onsite visits are highly unlikely and therefore this has been deferred to the 21/22 audit 

plan. 

 Energy Management Grant - Grant no longer in payment. 

 Covid 19 Bus support restart grant number 31/5020 period 2 - Phase sign off no longer required. End of period only.  

 

5 .  A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n   
 

There are no new areas of concern to highlight for this reporting period.  

P
age 389



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 6 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s  
 

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 

governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

 

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee 
along with any Director’s comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to 

discuss the issues. 

 

 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 390



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 7 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

7 .  E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g  
 

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used. 

 

 

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee along 
with Director’s comments 

 

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Low Risk 
(Improvement) 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control framework 
or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing system to 
improve the quality of the management trail.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

High Risk 

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are not 
‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If not 
addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and prevent 
fraud.  

Critical Risk 
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

P
age 391



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 8 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

8 .  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  t o  d a t e  ( 6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0 )  
 

Supplier Due Diligence - Director of Adult Social Care  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by 2021/22 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance   

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

Three medium risk exceptions were raised in relation to no evidence of comprehensive checks on providers financial standing for 3/23 providers tested, no 

formal agreement in place such as a Dynamic Purchasing System and the lack of contract monitoring of the providers tested in the domiciliary service and 

residential settings. One low risk exception was also raised as a result of this review.  

Right to Buy - Director of Housing, Neighbourhood and Building Services 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 2 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Limited Assurance     

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by November 2020 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Limited Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Limited Assurance  

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations NAT  

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

Two high risk exception were raised in relation to 96% of applications within the sample tested did not evidence comprehensive due diligence on Right to 

Buy applications. In addition to this money laundering checks were insufficient as PCC place heavy reliance on third parties to detect such instances. Two 

medium risk exceptions were also raised as a result of this review.  

 

P
age 392



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 9 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Budget Monitoring - Director of Finance and Resources  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 2 2 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance     

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by January 2021 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance  

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Reasonable Assurance 
 

Two medium risk exceptions were raised as a result of; poor explanations and insufficient evidence to support those explanations for 20% of the sample 

variances tested and a lack of evidence to support the authorisations for cash limit adjustments for 30% of the sample reviewed. Two low risk exceptions 

were also raised. 

 

Training - Portico 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 2 1 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by October 2021 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Reasonable Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Limited Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance  

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance  

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

One high risk exception was raised in relation to mandatory training. Testing highlighted 36/171 staff members had expired or incomplete training. Two 

medium and one low risk exception was also raised as a result of this review.  

 

 

P
age 393



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 10 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Payroll and Expenses - Solent LEP 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 4 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by November 2020 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

Four medium risk exceptions were raised as result of this review. This is in relation to 1/24 SLEP employees not completing the iexpenses assessment prior 

to claiming an expense, 2 expense claims highlighted with additional mileage claimed (over the 60 miles limit), narrative recorded for 8/25 mileage claims 

not containing suitable justification for the purpose of the journey and 4/25 claims not including a valid VAT receipt when required. 

 

Disabled Facilities Grant - Director of Housing, Neighbourhood and Building Services   

Grant Verification - Testing was able to evidence sufficient capital expenditure to allow the Chief Internal Auditor to sign the declaration confirming the 

grant conditions had been complied with. 

COVID Income Loss Compensation Claim - Director of Finance and Resources    

Claim's Verification - Testing under phase one has confirmed that audit are in support of the assessment and returns made. Additional estimated returns 

and the final actual returns will also be reviewed against the relevant terms and conditions.  

Infection Control Grant Phase One - Director of Finance and Resources    

Verification against terms and conditions - Testing under phase one has confirmed that payments to adult social care providers have been made in 

accordance with grant terms and conditions.   

 

P
age 394



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 11 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

9 .  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n  

 
The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed. 
 

 

 

 

 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk 

Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 395



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 12 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

1 0 .  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  F o l l o w - u p  A u d i t s  t o  d a t e  ( 6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0 )  

Deprivation of Liberties - Director of Adult Social Care  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

1 4 1 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in June 2020 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

No Assurance   Limited Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

2 (High) 0 2 (High)  0 1 (Critical) 0 1 (Medium) 0 
 

Follow up testing confirmed that the critical risk exception has now been closed and verified. One high risk exception is in progress, this is in relation to 
77% of DoLS referrals not being processed within the statutory timescales. The service will continue to prioritising the assessments by greatest need as 
resource within the team is limited and practices will be amended as part of the process of transferring to LPS (Liberty Protection Safeguards) in 2022. One 
high risk is currently in progress and this relates to no current contact being in place for different advocacy providers. Two high risk exceptions remain 
open and relates to insufficient monitoring and oversight of referrals due to no current IT solution being available and completion of data protection 
training and the retention of records. In addition, one medium risk exception has been closed as management has accepted the risk and this relates to no 
policy in place for the administration of DoLS. Management has accepted the risk as the government has published a Mental Capacity (Amendment) Bill 
which passed into law in May 2019. This will require a complete review of current practices in Spring 2022 and the Adult Social Services do not have the 
resources to create a policy prior to this review. The revised implementation date is Spring 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 396



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 13 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Volunteering and Social Action - Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 3 1 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in October 2019.  

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance  
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

0 1 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

0 0 0 

 

Follow up testing confirmed that one high and medium risk exception is now closed and verified. The high and medium risk exceptions which remain in 
progress are as a result of a delay in the implementation of a new online process, which will capture all information in relation to the recruitment and 
monitoring of volunteers, and was due to 'go live' in February 2020. The original agreed actions were revised with new solutions proposed that would 
better mitigate the risk exposure, these were not agreed until the beginning of 2020 and was therefore impacted by Covid-19. The revised implementation 
date is December 2020. 
 

Associations (Community Centres) - Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 1 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in October 2019  

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance   Reasonable Assurance  
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 2 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

0 0  0 0 0 

 

Follow up testing has confirmed that two high and one medium risk exception remain in progress. This is in relation to outstanding actions from the most 
recent Service Level Agreement where monitoring was due to take place as part of normal practice. Due to no lettings during the Covid-19 period, SLA 

P
age 397



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 14 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

monitoring meetings has not taken place. The revised implementation dates are dependent on the re-opening of the Community Associations which have 
been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 

CCTV - Portico    

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 1 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in March 2020 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Reasonable Assurance   Assurance   
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (Medium)   0 0  0  0 0 
 

Follow up testing confirmed that one medium risk exception is in progress. This relates to the CCTV camera operations at Portico. Follow up testing 
confirmed that the management of CCTV is now supported by policy and procedures. The revised implementation date is September 2020.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 398



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 15 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Accounts Payable - Portico     

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 1 0 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in June 2020 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance   Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (High)   0 1 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

0  0 0 

 

Follow up testing confirmed that one high and one medium risk exception has been closed and verified. One high risk exception remains in progress. This 
is in relation to potential fraud risk as user access levels to the main finance system cannot be evaluated to ensure that access is adequately restricted. 
This is in progress as the system upgrade has not been progressed to completion. The revised implementation date is January 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 399



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 16 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

1 1 .  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  2 n d  F o l l o w - u p  A u d i t s  t o  d a t e  ( 6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0 )  

As raised during the July 2020 Governance & Audits & Standards meeting. Internal Audit has scheduled in 2nd follow-up reviews for all areas where a 1st 

review highlighted risk exposure still unmitigated. The audits below detail the position as at a 2nd review. It should be noted that whilst some have moved 

Covid-19 has had an impact on agreed implementation date.  

 

Mobile Phones - Director of Corporate Services       

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 2 1 
 

Original Follow-up 
Assurance Level 

 

Limited Assurance   

 
Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the 1st follow-up 
was in March 2020 
 

1st Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

 2nd Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Limited Assurance   Limited Assurance  
 

2nd Follow Up Action  

Open       Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

1 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

1 (Low) 

0 1 (High) 
1 (Medium) 

0 0 0 0 0 

 

The initial follow up review confirmed that the one high risk and two medium risk exception remained open while the one low risk exception was in 
progress. A new high risk was also raised in relation to non-usage. The 2nd follow up confirmed that the one high, one medium and one low remain open 
due to the current service desk system not being effective and suitable to conduct service desk requirements. A capital bid has been submitted for a 
replacement but no system has yet to be procured. The revised implementation date is November 2020.  

 

 

P
age 400



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 17 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Outdoor Centre - Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services      

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 0 0 
 

Original Follow-up 
Assurance Level 

 

Limited Assurance    

 
Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the 1st follow-up 
was in July 2019 
 

1st Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

 2nd Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Limited Assurance   Reasonable Assurance 
 

Follow Up Action  

Open       Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (High) 0 0 0 0 0 
 

The initial follow up review confirmed that one high risk exception remains open in relation to contract monitoring. The 2nd follow up confirmed that since 
the initial review and first follow up there has been a change in management for the centre and further clarification is required from the manager to clarify 
content and format of all financial complaint data that is required for monthly monitoring. The revised implementation date is September 2020.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 401



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 18 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Registrars - Director of Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 1 0 0 
 

Original Follow-up 
Assurance Level 

 

Limited Assurance   

 
Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the 1st follow-up 
was in June 2019 
 

1st Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

 2nd Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Limited Assurance    Assurance 
 

2nd Follow Up Action  

Open       Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 1 (High) 0 0 0 0 0 
 

The initial follow up review confirmed that one high risk exception is in progress. This is in relation to the completion of mandatory training. This remains 
in progress as there were two recently-expired courses noted during testing and a minor error in the recording of staff data, it is noted that these reflect a 
small percentage of the overall state of staff training at the Portsmouth Registrar's Office hence why an assurance opinion has been provided. The revised 
implementation date is ongoing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 402



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 19 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

Hire Cars - Director of Regeneration  

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 4 0 0 
 

Original Follow-up 
Assurance Level 

 

No Assurance   

 
Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the 1st follow-up 
was in January 2020 
 

1st Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

 2nd Follow-up Assurance 
Level 

Limited Assurance   Limited Assurance 
 

2nd Follow Up Action  

Open       Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0 0 2 (High) 1 (High) 1 (High) 0 0 0 
 

The initial follow up review confirmed that one high risk remained open and three are in progress. The 2nd follow up review has evidenced one high risk 
exception as closed and verified, two high risk exceptions in progress and one high risk exception as implemented but not effective. The first high risk in 
progress relates to the completion of online driving assessments which was halted due to other priorities within the Travel team. The 2nd high risk in 
progress relates to pre-journey checks not being conducted by drivers or the forms subsequently not being checked on their submission. The high risk 
which was implemented but not effective is in relation to drivers completing the accident and incidents form 24 hours after an accident or incident. 
Although the agreed action was completed, 1/2 accidents was not reported to PCC insurance within the relevant timeframe. New actions have been 
agreed and the new revised implementation date is March 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 403



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 20 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

1 2 .  A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0 )  

 

Audit 
Directorate  Draft  

Projected Issue 
Date Revised Comments 

Domiciliary Care Adult Social Care 30/10/2020 December 2020   

No Recourse to 
Public Funds 

Children, Families and Education 28/10/2020 December 2020 
  

Care Leavers Children, Families and Education 03/11/2020 December 2020   

Mayfield School Children, Families and Education 03/11/2020 December 2020   

Information 
Governance (Data 
Security) 

Corporate & IT 04/11/2020 December 2020 
  

City Twinning  Culture, Leisure & Regulatory 
Services 

05/11/2020 December 2020 
  

Modern Records Culture, Leisure & Regulatory 
Services 

21/10/2020 December 2020 
  

International 
Visits 

Executive 05/11/2020 December 2020 
  

ABP contract for 
Pilots 

Port 04/09/2020 December 2020 
 

Delay encountered due to contractor 
providing information.  

Residential 
Parking 

Regeneration 04/11/2020 December 2020 
  

P
age 404



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 21 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

1 3 .  A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 6 t h  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 0 )  

Audit 
Directorate  Delayed 

Projected Issued 
Date 

Revised Issued 
Date Comments 

Direct Payments Adult Social Care N/A January 2020   

Troubled Families Grant  Children, Families and Education N/A March 2021   

Youth Offending Team Children, Families and Education N/A January 2020   

Back up and recovery 
Disaster 
recovery/Business 
Continuity 

Corporate & IT N/A January 2020 

  

Supporting vulnerable 
people though 
Homecheck/Telecare 

Housing, Neighbourhood and Building 
Services 

N/A January 2020 
  

Planned Maintenance Housing, Neighbourhood and Building 
Services 

N/A January 2020 
  

Homelessness Housing, Neighbourhood and Building 
Services 

N/A January 2020 
  

Claims Housing 
(Insurance) 

Housing, Neighbourhood and Building 
Services 

N/A January 2020 
  

Budget Monitoring Portico N/A January 2020   

Accounts Receivable  Portico N/A January 2020   

Workforce Planning and 
Policy 

Portico N/A January 2020 
  

Income Dues Brittany Port N/A January 2020   

P
age 405



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 22 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

 
 

Income Dues Portico Port N/A January 2020   

Alcohol Treatment 
Capital  

Public Health N/A March 2021 
  

Ravlin Regeneration N/A January 2020   

Insurance SLEP N/A January 2020   

COVID Bus Services 
Revenue Grant No 
31/5023 

s151 N/A March 2021 
  

COVID Bus Support 
Restart Grant No 
31/5020 Period 1 

Finance N/A March 2021 
  

Additional Dedicated 
H2S & College Transport 
No 31/5137 

Finance N/A March 2021 
  

P
age 406



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 23 
Portsmouth City Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was externally assessed in May 2018.  

  

 

1 4 .  E x c e p t i o n s  

Of the 2020/21 full audits completed, 83 exceptions have been raised.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

R i s k  T o t a l  

Critical Risk  0 

High Risk  27 

Medium Risk  49 

Low Risk - Improvement  9 

P
age 407



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

          

 

 
1 Purpose of Report   

 
The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to disapply the political balance 
rules in respect of its Sub-Committees which consider complaints against Members and to 
agree that the same rule shall apply to the Initial Filtering Panel. 
 

2 Recommendation  
 
It is recommended that the political balance rules are disapplied in respect of Governance 
and Audit and Standards Sub-Committees which are considering complaints against 
Members and also the same arrangement should apply in respect of Initial Filtering Panel 
membership.  

 
3 Background  
 
3.1 The Committee agreed on 25 September 2020 to "disapply" the political balance rules 

in respect of Sub-Committees of Governance and Audit and Standards Sub-
Committees when dealing with complaints. This meant the Sub-Committees' 
membership would in future not be made up of Members in the same proportion as the 
political groups are represented on the Council.  Instead it was agreed that the Sub-
Committees would be "cross party as far as reasonably practicable".  This was 
considered important to ensure the greatest transparency in the decision making of 
these Sub-Committees where complaints against members were considered.  It was 
also agreed that the same rule would apply to the make-up of the Initial Filtering Panel 
which is not a formal Sub-Committee of Governance and Audit and Standards. 

 
3.2 Section 17 (2) Local Government and Housing Act 19891 provides that any  

decision not to apply the political balance rules shall come to an end if there is any 
change in the make-up of a committee where they have been disapplied.  

                                            
1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/section/17 
 

                                                
Title of meeting: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee  

Date of meeting: 20 November 2020 
 

Subject: 
 

Consideration of the political balance rules in relation to the 
constitution of Sub-Committees considering complaints against 
Members. 
 

Report by: 
 

City Solicitor  

Wards affected: N/A 
 

Key decision: No 
 

Full Council decision: No 

Page 409

Agenda Item 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/section/17


2 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
3.3 The decision is one which only this Committee can make but it must be made without 

any of the Members present voting against it. 
 

4 Reasons for recommendations 
 

As there has been a change since 25 September 2020 in the political make-up of the 
Council, Members are asked to reconsider this decision, as the decision to disapply the 
political balance rules, made on 25 September 2020 is only effective for one year or until 
there is any change in the make-up of a committee where they have been disapplied.  If 
Members decide to disapply the political balance rules then this shall occur only until May 
2021 when the decision would again have to be reconsidered.  

 
5 Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do not directly 
impact on service or policy delivery.  Any changes made arising from this report would be 
subject to investigation in their own right. 

 
6 Legal implications 
 

The City Solicitor's comments are included in this report.  
 

7 Director of Finance's comments 
 

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this report. 
 
 

 
 
……………………………………………… 
 
Signed by: City Solicitor  
 
Appendices: None 
 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material 
extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

None  N/A 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 410



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards 

Date of meeting: 
 

20th November 2020 

Subject: 
 

Data Security Breach Report 

Report by: 
 

Senior Information Risk Owner (Chief Internal Auditor) 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Committee of any Data Security Breaches and actions 
agreed/taken since the last reporting period along with an analysis over the year 
for the period November 2019 to October 2020. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that Members of the Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee note the breaches (by reference to Appendix A) that have arisen and 
the action determined by the Corporate Information Governance Panel (CIGP). 

 
3. Background 

 
The Corporate Information Governance Panel, formed of representatives from 
across the Authority, including the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) is 
chaired by Helen Magri in her role of Data Protection Officer. This panel meets 
every other month and its responsibilities include; 

 

 Establishing policy and procedures for Information Governance; 

 Maintaining a log of data breaches and determining and monitoring 
onward action.  
 

In addition to this the SIRO updates the Committee on any ongoing breaches and 
notifies members of any new incidents. 
 
The appendix details each individual breach.  85% of the incidents were as a 
result of human error, rather than any criminal act or system failure.  48% of all 
incidents were as a result of emails being sent to incorrect recipients.  New Data 
Loss Prevention applications which are currently being worked on as part of the 
migration to Microsoft Office 365 will help to minimise this risk in the future.  

 

Page 411

Agenda Item 13



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

4. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

To ensure the Governance & Audit & Standards Committee has oversight of Data 
Security Breaches and any related trends. To further enable additional actions to 
be recommended to address reoccurring or persistent issues.  

 
5. Integrated impact assessment 
 
 This report does not recommend any changes to services or policies and 

therefore an integrated impact assessment has not been required. 
 

6. Legal implications 
 

The Council is required to ensure it has robust procedures in place to comply 
with its obligations under the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). 
Bringing this report to the Committee's attention will assist in meeting those 
requirements. 

 
7. Director of Finance's comments 
 
 The Information Commissioner's Office can issue fines of up to €20 million or 4% 

of the authority's annual turnover for serious breaches of the GDPR. Breach of 
the Privacy and Electronic Communications Regulations also incurs a financial 
penalty.  

 
 The size of any monetary penalty is determined by the Commissioner, taking into 

account the seriousness of the breach and other factors (such as the size, 
financial and other resources of the data controller). Any serious breaches put 
the City Council at risk of the unbudgeted cost of a financial penalty, which would 
have to be met from the service responsible for the breach. 

 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Elizabeth Goodwin, Senior Risk Information Owner (Chief Internal Auditor) 
 
Appendices: 1 - Data Security Breach Report  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

General Data Protection Regulations 
2018 

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-
data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-
protection-regulation-gdpr/  

 
 

Page 412

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/


 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 413



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 415



E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y  
 

This report has been prepared to give the Committee an overview of data incidents for the last 12 months (1st November 2019 to 31st October 2020) along with information on previously 

unreported incidents for the period 4th March 2020 to 6th November 2020.   

Clear guidance is provided to staff, via training and Policy Hub, regarding what constitutes a potential data breach and the steps they should take when a potential data breach is identified. 

The Council’s response to potential data breaches is managed by a central team, following the stages summarised below: 

 Notification to central team. 

 Initial assessment by central team. 

 Escalation to the Senior Information Risk Owner - SIRO (Chief Internal Auditor) if necessary; this may lead to the Information Commissioner (ICO) being notified, dependent on the 

severity of the incident. 

 Remedial action, for example corrective action, training, revised processes and potential disciplinary action. 

Overall there have been 69 data breaches over the last 12 months, 54 being notified to the central team within 72 hours, 15 outside of the 72 hour window and 4 requiring notification to 

the ICO.  

A summary of the data breach incidents are detailed at the end of this report, covering the period from 4th March 2020 to 6th November 2020. This is to highlight previously unreported 

breaches since the last reporting period.  

P
age 416



 

R e s p o n s e  T i m e  
 

 < 72 hours > 72 hours TOTAL 

Adult Social Care 2 0 2 

Children, Families and Education 17 6 23 

Corporate Services 8 4 12 

Executive 0 0 0 

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services 2 0 2 

Finance and Resources 6 0 6 

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services  12 3 15 

Port 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 

Regeneration 4 2 6 

External/Not Known 3 0 3 

TOTAL 54 15 69  

Response time is the time taken for the central team to be notified by the service within which the breach has taken place. 
ICO guidance is that this should take place within a maximum72-hour timeframe. 

 

54

15

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Adult Social Care

Children, Families and Education

Corporate Services

Executive

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Finance and Resources

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services

Port

Public Health

Regeneration

External/Not Known

< 72 Hours

> 72 Hours

P
age 417



 

M e d i u m  

 

 Electronic Email Laptop Letter Multiple  Mobile Paper Verbal TOTAL 

Adult Social Care 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Children, Families and Education 2 11 1 1 1 3 4 0 23 

Corporate Services 2 8 0 1 0 0 1 0 12 

Executive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory 
Services 

0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Finance and Resources 1 1 0 1 0 0 3 0 6 

Housing Neighbourhood and Building 
Services  

0 7 0 3 1 0 3 1 15 

Port 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Regeneration 1 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 6 

External/Not Known 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 

TOTAL 6 33 3 7 2 3 14 1 69 
 

These refer to the format in which the data breach occurred. Often data breaches can occur across multiple mediums. Where 
this is the case data breaches are recorded against ‘multiple’ on this page, with more detail provided on the summary, 
towards the back of this report. 
 

 

6

33

3

7

2

3

14

1

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Adult Social Care

Children, Families and Education

Corporate Services

Executive

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Finance and Resources

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services

Port

Public Health

Regeneration

External/Not Known
Electronic

Email

Laptop

Letter

Multiple

Mobile

Paper

Verbal

P
age 418



 

N u m b e r  I m p a c t e d  
 1 2 to 5 > 5 TOTAL 

Adult Social Care 2 0 0 2 

Children, Families and Education 8 7 8 23 

Corporate Services 4 6 2 12 

Executive 0 0 0 0 

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services 1 0 1 2 

Finance and Resources 4 1 1 6 

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services  10 2 3 15 

Port 0 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 0 

Regeneration 5 0 1 6 

External/Not Known 0 1 2 3 

TOTAL 34 17 18 69 

Totals refer to the number of individuals either confirmed or likely to have been impacted. 

 

 

34

17

18

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Adult Social Care

Children, Families and Education

Corporate Services

Executive

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Finance and Resources

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services

Port

Public Health

Regeneration

External/Not Known

1

2 to 5

> 5

P
age 419



 

R o o t  C a u s e  
 Cyber Human 

Error 
Inappropriate 
Action by Staff 

Criminal 
Action 

System 
Error 

TOTAL 

Adult Social Care 0 1 0 1 0 2 

Children, Families and Education 0 20 1 2 0 23 

Corporate Services 0 11 1 0 0 12 

Executive 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services 0 2 0 0 0 2 

Finance and Resources 0 4 1 0 1 6 

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services  0 13 2 0 0 15 

Port 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Regeneration 0 5 1 0 0 6 

External/Not Known 0 3 0 0 0 3 

TOTAL 0 59 6 3 1 69 
 

 

 
 

59

6

3 1

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Adult Social Care

Children, Families and Education

Corporate Services

Executive

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Finance and Resources

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services

Port

Public Health

Regeneration

External/Not Known
Cyber

Human Error

Inappropriate Action by Staff

Criminal Action

System Error

P
age 420



 

A c t i o n  T a k e n  
 Corrective 

Action 
Disciplinary Police 

Notified 
Revised 
Process 

Training TOTAL 

Adult Social Care 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Children, Families and Education 19 0 2 2 0 23 

Corporate Services 10 0 0 2 0 12 

Executive 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Finance and Resources 3 0 0 3 0 6 

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services  12 0 0 3 0 15 

Port 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Regeneration 5 0 0 1 0 6 

External/Not Known 3 0 0 0 0 3 

TOTAL 56 0 2 11 0 69 

Apologies are routinely given, to data subject(s) and to others adversely impacted by data breaches. 

 

 
 

56

2

11

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Adult Social Care

Children, Families and Education

Corporate Services

Executive

Culture, Leisure and Regulatory Services

Finance and Resources

Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services

Port

Public Health

Regeneration

External/Not Known
Corrective Action

Disciplinary Action

Police Notified

Revised Process

Training

P
age 421



D a t a  B r e a c h e s  S u m m a r y  
Reference 
No.  

Directorate  Response 
in 72 
Hours  

Reported to 
ICO 

Root Cause Action Comments,  including detai l  where a 
breach spans multiple mediums  

DB2020016 Regeneration Y N Human Error Corrective Action Personal data disclosed in error by email 

DB2020017 Regeneration Y Y Inappropriate Action by 
Staff 

Corrective Action Member of staff inappropriately accessed a letter 
addressed to another member of staff.  
No further action required by ICO 

DB2020018 Finance & 
Resources 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Letter sent to wrong person. 

DB2020019 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services  

Y N Inappropriate Action by 
Staff 

Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed without consent. 

DB2020020 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Revised Process 
Letters sent to wrong addresses due to automated 
enveloping error. 

DB2020021 Corporate Services Y Y Human Error Corrective Action Personal data disclosed in error in childcare 
proceedings. 
No further action required by ICO 

DB2020022 Corporate Services N N Human Error Corrective Action Email sent to the wrong person. 

DB2020023 Corporate Services N N Human Error Corrective Action Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020024 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed in error by email. 

DB2020025 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020026 Corporate Services Y N Human Error Corrective Action Personal data disclosed in error in court proceedings. 

DB2020027 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

N N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

P
age 422



Reference 
No.  

Directorate  Response 
in 72 
Hours  

Reported to 
ICO 

Root Cause Action Comments,  including detai l  where a 
breach spans multiple mediums  

DB2020028 Adult Social Care Y N Human Error Corrective Action Records containing personal data found in a public 
place. 

DB2020029 Finance & 
Resources 

Y N Human Error Revised Process 
Remittance advice sent to the wrong person. 

DB2020030 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020031 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Revised Process 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020032 External/ Not 
Known 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email addresses. 

DB2020033 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Inappropriate Action by 
Staff 

Corrective Action 
Documents inappropriately filed on PCC Drive. 

DB2020034 Corporate Services N N Inappropriate Action by 
Staff 

Revised Process 
Personal data disclosed in error in training session. 

DB2020035 Children, Families & 
Education 

N N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email addresses of all recipients of email visible. 

DB2020036 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed in error. 

DB2020037 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020038 Corporate Services N N Human Error Corrective Action Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020039 Corporate Services Y N Human Error Corrective Action Email addresses of all external recipients of Teams 
meetings visible. 

DB2020040 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

P
age 423



Reference 
No.  

Directorate  Response 
in 72 
Hours  

Reported to 
ICO 

Root Cause Action Comments,  including detai l  where a 
breach spans multiple mediums  

DB2020041 Children, Families & 
Education 

N N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020042 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed in error to schools 

DB2020043 Corporate Services Y N Human Error Corrective Action Email and letter sent to the wrong person. 

DB2020044 Corporate Services Y N Human Error Corrective Action Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020045 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y Y Human Error Corrective Action Letter and documents sent to wrong person.  
No further action required by ICO 

DB2020046 Corporate Services  Y N Human Error Corrective Action Personal data disclosed in error by email. 

DB2020047 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed in error by email. 

DB2020048 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020049 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action Photograph of service user taken on staff member's 
personal mobile and appeared on social media in 
error. 

DB2020050 Regeneration N N Human Error Revised Process Personal data disclosed in error by letter. 

DB2020051 Corporate Services Y N Human Error Revised Process Personal data disclosed in error in childcare 
proceedings. 

DB2020052 Children, Families & 
Education 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Email sent to the wrong email address. 

DB2020053 Regeneration Y N Human Error Corrective Action Email addresses of external contacts visible to all 
recipients. 

DB2020054 Housing 
Neighbourhoods & 
Building Services 

Y N Human Error Corrective Action 
Personal data disclosed in error by letter. 

P
age 424



G l o s s a r y  
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO)  

The Information Commissioner's Office is a non-departmental public body which reports directly to the United Kingdom Parliament and is sponsored by the Department for 

Digital, Culture, Media and Sport. Its role is to uphold information rights in the public interest.  

https://ico.org.uk/ 

Response time/Notifying the ICO of Data Breaches 

The ICO needs to be notified of more serious data breaches. A self-assessment is available on the ICO’s website, to identify if it needs to be notified of a data breach. This 

needs to be done within 72 hours, which is the key response metric monitored by the internal team.  

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/report-a-breach/personal-data-breach-assessment/ 

Medium 

This is the format of the information constituting the data breach. In the summary graph towards the beginning of the report where a breach occurs in multiple formats this 

is categorised as ‘multiple’; more detail is provided in the comments column of the data breaches detail page within this report. 

Number Impacted 

This is the number of individuals whose personal information was potentially compromised through a data breach. 

Root Cause  

The categories of root cause are based on guidance for the NHS Security Toolkit; this is widely used across the public sector, to assess arrangements against good practice. 

Action Taken 

These are the primary actions taken to respond to/rectify a data breach; all breaches result in an apology to those impacted. 

P
age 425

https://ico.org.uk/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/report-a-breach/personal-data-breach-assessment/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  
Title of meeting:  
 

Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 

Subject: 
 

Procurement Management Information 

Date of meeting: 
 

20th November 2020 

Report by: 
 

Richard Lock - Acting Procurement Manager 

Wards affected: 
 

N/A 

 

1. Requested by 
 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee. 
 
2. Purpose 
 
To provide evidence to allow the committee to evaluate the extent that Portsmouth City 
Council is producing contracts for goods, works and services in a legally compliant value 
for money basis.  
  
3. Information Requested 
 
The report covers 3 key performance monitoring areas: 
 

 Spend compliance 

 Contract award via waiver 

 Contract management performance monitoring  
 
At the request of the committee at the last meeting on 24th July 2020 the base line data 
used to calculate summary figures is included as the following exempt appendixes: 
 

 EXEMPT - G&A - Procurement MI - App 1 Spend Compliance Sep 20 - 11.11.20 

 EXEMPT - G&A - Procurement MI - App 2 Waivers Aug / Sep / Oct 20 - 11.11.20 

 EXEMPT - G&A - Procurement MI - App 3 Contract KPIs Aug / Sep / Oct 20 - 
11.11.20 

 
The report provides comparison between performance from the last time period reported 
to the committee on 25th September 2020 which covered June - August 2020 when the 
council had moved from responding to the CVD19 pandemic to the early stages of 
recovery from the pandemic to the last quarter covering August - October 2020 which has 
shown a continued recovery in respect of Council operations, albeit to a an adjusted 
manner of operations.  
 

Page 427

Agenda Item 15



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Where detail is required by the committee the Procurement Manager will provide this 
during the committee meeting, however where questions relate to detail included within the 
exempt appendices responses cannot be provided whilst the public live streaming is in 
operation. 
  
 
SECTION 1 - SPEND COMPLIANCE 
 
The table on the following page provides a comparison of spend compliance from the last 
report taken to the committee on 25th September 2020 which covered the month of August 
2020 against spend compliance covering the month of September 2020.  
 
Compliance is measured initially by reporting on spend linked to a contract entry which has 
been raised on the council's InTend system. The presence of a contract entry on the 
InTend system implies that either: 
 

 The contract has been awarded following a procedure which complies with the 
council's Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) and wider statutory Public Contracts 
Regulations (2015) (PCRs) 

 A waiver to depart from requirements set out within the council's CPRs and / or 
PCRs has been approved by the relevant director, Procurement Manager and / or 
Procurement Gateway Board as proportionate to the value and risk associated with 
the contract in question 

 
It should be noted that as compliance is determined by the presence or not of a contract 
entry which may have been subject to award via waiver which approves departure from 
CPRs and / or PCRs, 'compliance' in this instance is defined as system compliance rather 
than constitutional or legal compliance.  
 
It should also be noted that the report does not include for financial transactions from all of 
the council's systems and solutions. This includes for payments made via purchasing 
cards, utilities transactions, social care systems, CHAPS payments, cheque payments, 
etc.  
 
Further analysis and subsequent updating of the report is then undertaken by the 
Procurement Manager to identify any spend which is actually compliant by virtue of 
application of competitive process, departure via waiver agreed or to be agreed and valid 
exemptions.  
 
A summary of the analysis undertaken by service area is included within the report 
subsequent to the data table. A target of 95% compliance overall and by service has been 
set previously by the committee. 
 
Compared to August the raw system compliance for September has been maintained at 
approx. 80% still significantly from the 64% the raw compliance figure for May. Since 
September Procurement have now recruited additional administrative resource and a 
dedicated contract management officer who will be tasked with increasing the raw 
compliance figure.  
 

Page 428



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Following adjustment the compliance figure for September is approx. 96% which is slightly 
down the 97% compliance figure reported for August.  
 
Procurement will continue to focus upon improving performance in respect of recording 
contract information by continuing to request this from officers and providing an extra level 
of assistance through the addition of new admin resource.  
 
Procurement will also task the contract management officer with reviewing the level of 
information requested for contract entries as unnecessary complications may be a barrier 
to receiving prompt accurate information from services.  
 
Procurement are continuing to participate within the Fusion project which will greatly 
improve data recording and retrieval from finance systems. This includes investigating how 
greater compliance data capture can be achieved across all council systems, through both 
short term workarounds and on a long term basis via the Fusion project.   
 
Key 

 NC - Non-compliant 

 C - Compliant 

 

 August 2020 October 2020 

Directorate Total £ NC £ C % Total £ NC £ C % 

Adult Services £572,280 £42,767 92.5% £566,292 £16,586 97% 

Children Families & 
Education 

£1,185,780 £2,879 99% £1,155,645 3,144.00 100% 

Corporate Services £623,450 £52,237 91.5% £500,131 £49,801 90% 

Culture Leisure & 
Regulatory Services 

£2,991,767 

 

£31,195 

 

89.5% £187,368 11,041.36 94% 

Executive £8,465 £1,351 84% £0 £0 100% 

Finance £1,070,121 £9,473 99% £116,808 £8,257 93% 

Housing 
Neighbourhood & 
Building Services 

£3,959,733 

 

£69,685 

 

98% £4,943,930 £108,759 98% 

Portsmouth 
International Port 

£655,752 

 

£0 

 

100% £884,833 £0 100% 

Public Health £465,164 £0 100% £185,153 £8,088 96% 

Regeneration £186,423 £41,494 77.5% £422,159 £117,401 72% 

Page 429



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Capital schemes £3,163,848 £92,097 97% £2,660,257 £110,432 96% 

Other £11,041 £10,000 90.5% £7,474 £360 95% 

TOTAL £12,201,233 £353,177 97% £11,630,054 £433,873 96% 

 
Below is a summary of the nature of the non-compliant spend by service area and 
assessment of risk by the Procurement Manager. Full details have been made available to 
the committee in the exempt information which accompanies this report - 'G&A - 
Procurement MI - App 1 Spend Compliance Sep 20 - 11.11.20'. 
 
Adult Services  
 
No significant concerns and above 95% compliance figure. Some work required to review 
food supply contracts although all spend is below PCC tender threshold of £100k and 
significantly below £189k threshold for supplies under Public Contracts Regulations 
(2015). 
 
However, it should be noted that as stated previously these figures do not include for 
payments made to social care providers which are processed via the Controc system. 
 
Children, Families & Education 
 
Compliance has increased through further analysis of payments made for out of area 
educational services which has removed this spend from the non-compliance figure. 
Waivers are currently being drafted on the basis that this activity is not compatible with 
standard competitive procurement processes and have been approved in principle. 
 
As stated to the committee previously the services in question are sourced from specialist 
niche suppliers, often subject to user decisive user choice, in the case of educational 
services are often sourced from fellow public sector bodies and are all classed as services 
which fall under the light touch regime - the value for which is approx. £589k.  
 
However, it should be noted that as stated previously these figures do not include for 
payments made to some children's social care providers which are processed via the 
Mosaic system. 
 
Corporate Services 
 
Whilst compliance has fallen below the 95% target to 90% risk is considered low as the 
total non-compliant spend is low at £49,801 and spread across a number of suppliers, with 
no one transaction exceeding the council's tender threshold of £100k by overall order 
distribution value. Work will need to be undertaken to review arrangements for public 
notices and advertising space although it should be stressed that the values fall below the 
PCC tender threshold of £100k and the £189k service threshold under Public Contracts 
Regulations (2015).  
 
 

Page 430



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Culture Leisure and Regulatory Services 
 
Whilst compliance is slightly below the 95% target at 94% compliance risk is still 
considered low as non-compliant spend is only £11,041 and is spread across a range of 
suppliers. Review is required of a consultancy contract which has a distribution value of 
£60k although again it should be stressed that this is not perceived as a high risk contract 
in terms of compliance. 
 
Executive 
 
No spend. 
 
Finance 
 
No significant concerns. Although compliance is 93% non-compliant spend is only £8,257. 
Investigation required of below £100k distribution value transactions regarding salary 
sacrifice scheme payments.  
 
Housing Neighbourhood and Building Services 
 
No significant concerns and compliance is at 98%. 
 
Some non-compliant transaction have a distribution order value in excess of £100k for 
electrical services however extension of the contract in question has been approved and 
the contract entry requires updating.  
.  
However, it should be noted that payments to utitlies providers managed on behalf of the 
council by this service are not included, they are however known by the Procurement 
manager to be compliant in this area of spend.  
 
Portsmouth International Port 
 
No concerns.  
 
Public Health 
 
No concerns. 
 
Regeneration 
 
No signicant concerns. Whilst the compliance target has been missed and is currently at 
72% the total value of non-compliant transactions is only £117,401 and is spread across a 
number of suppliers.  
 
However, one transaction has a distribution order value of £150k which is for the 
appointment of an interim asset manager at Lakeside. This is not considered high risk as 
the value is still below the £189k statutory threshold as per Public Contracts Regulations 
(2015). The Procurement manager will engage with the relevant service officer to put a 
waiver in place and put a plan in place for bringing the contract into compliance.  

Page 431



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Capital Schemes & Other 
 
No concerns.  
 
 
SECTION 2 - CONTRACT AWARD VIA WAIVER 
 
The tables below show a comparison of contracts awarded via waiver in June / July / 
August 2020 as per the report taken to committee on 25th September 2020 against those 
awarded via waiver for August / September / October 2020.  
 
Whilst waivers are to be sought for any significant departure from the council's CPRs the 
report focuses upon waivers which have constituted a direct award without application of 
competition to the protocols set out within the CPRs and wider statutory PCRs.  
 
In order to effectively respond to the Covid19 pandemic a higher number of waivers have 
been sought on this basis. This has been due in one hand to quickly source essential 
emergency supplies, services and works, but also to extend contracts outside of specified 
terms where council and supplier resources that would have run or responded to re-
tendering processes were redeployed onto essential response activities or, in the case of 
some supplier bidding teams, furloughed.  
 
There is clear provision within the PCRs to allow for direct award and contract variations in 
order to respond to genuine emergency situations such as the Covid19 pandemic. The 
Cabinet Office issued a Procurement Policy Note (PPN 01/20) on 18th Marc 2020 to 
remind public sector bodies of the flexibilities allowed for within PCRs already and as such 
did not introduce any new policy on this basis.  
 
Whilst lack of resource is not usually allowed for as a valid reason to delay re-tendering 
processes via direct award to the incumbent supplier it is of the opinion of the Procurement 
Manager that this has in effect become the norm across the public sector following the 
introduction of stringent lockdown measures by central government on 23rd March.  
 
This opinion is informed by continual peer review with procurement managers who 
represent a large number of county and unitary councils on the Central Buying 
Consortium, direct discussion with Cabinet Office, feedback from suppliers and 
engagement with QCs who specialise in procurement law cases via a number of webinars.   
 
Use of direct awards to extend contracts on this basis is viewed as low risk in terms of 
potential for challenge as long as the term of the direct award is proportionate to the time 
required to run an effective re-tender and is not unnecessarily long to the point where it 
can be construed as creating an artificial barrier to competition.  
 
Under the CPRs waivers can be approved by: 
 

 Director including for Assistant Directors given delegated authority by the Director - 
up to £100k 

 Procurement manager - up to £1M 

Page 432



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

7 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 Procurement Gateway Board - above £1M  
 
In order to respond efficiently and effectively the Procurement Manager agreed in 
conjunction with Legal and Audit on 1st April 2020 via email that the waiver and extension 
could be streamlined to effective summary rationale without full completion of standard 
forms where the need for the waiver could be directly linked to the impact of the Covid19 
pandemic. This was on the condition that key approvals from the Director / AD, 
Procurement, Legal and Finance were still obtained and recorded.  
 
The Procurement Manager also delegated approval of waivers on a procurement basis to 
the IT Category Manager / Assistant Procurement Manager at a limit of £500k and to 
Procurement Professional at a limit of £250k. It is the intention of the Procurement 
Manager to maintain these delegations for business as usual authorisations in the future.  
 
Use of direct award waivers  
 
 

 

June / July / Aug 2020 Aug / Sept / Oct 2020 

Reason for direct 
award waiver 

Number of Contract Number of Contract 

Contracts value Contracts value 

Business as Usual 
Direct award 

20 £8,935,594 29  £ 9,785,001 

Waivers agreed due 
to Covid-19 (re-
tender delay) 

2 £467,000  1 £51,000  

Waivers in response 
to Covid-19 
(emergency 
supplies / services) 

41 £659,947  36  £981,708 

Total 63 £10,062,541  66 £10,817,709 

 
 
Below is a summary level analysis undertaken by the Procurement Manager. Full details 
have been made available to the committee in the exempt information which accompanies 
this report - 'G&A - Procurement MI - App 2 Waivers Aug / Sep / Oct 20 - 11.11.20'. 
 
Business as Usual Direct Awards 
 
No significant concerns. The figures have been skewed significantly via the award of an 
out of term extension to Biffa for delivery of domestic waste collection services. A further 2 
to 2 ½ year extension outside of the advertised term to a value of £8.25M has been 
granted by Procurement Gateway Board.  
 
The rationale for the waiver is as follows: 
 

Page 433



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

8 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

This extension will enable the council to understand fully the impacts of the Environment 
Bill (explained in detail below) that is currently progressing through Parliament and carry 
out an effective procurement process that delivers a service that is aligned to that, further 
to this: 

• The council are awaiting the outcomes of the consultation in relation to the 
waste and resources strategy. This is important as the Environment Bill is 
likely to legislate for separate food waste collections, consistency of materials 
collected, deposit return scheme, and extended producer responsibility. It 
may also stipulate which materials should be collected for recycling and 
make reference to collections models and frequency. These outcomes would 
impact the design of collection rounds and make it difficult to design the 
requirements of the domestic waste collection contract to align with those 
outcomes. 

• The council is currently piloting food waste collections - the second food 
waste trial will be rolled out in September 2020 with a view to rolling this out 
city wide from 1 October 2021. This decision is yet to be taken and is linked 
to a number of other strategic projects related to the Waste Disposal Service 
contract and waste collections going forward. 

• Waste Collections strategy - the administration is committed to reducing 
waste and improving recycling and as such has made changes to the refuse 
collection system (2018 - introduced wheeled bins and 3 standard bin bag 
allowance) and is now trialling separate food waste collections. The council 
needs to consider an improvement to the range of materials that can be 
collected at the kerbside (other plastics, cartons, glass). This strategy and 
design is intrinsically linked to provision of infrastructure to process these 
materials. There are a number of different permutations for the collection and 
disposal of these waste streams, dependent upon decisions made about the 
infrastructure and the outcomes of the Environment Bill. . 

• Waste Disposal Service Contract - as a unitary authority, the Council is also 
the disposal authority and is currently working with partners on a number of 
strategic projects.  

• The new MRF would replace the existing two MRFs provided under the 
WDSC. The cases for both of these projects have some dependence on the 
outcome of the consultations of the Environment Bill and will inform the 
strategic direction of waste collection and disposal going forward. These 
issues particularly influence collection round design and vehicle 
requirements. 

 
Risk assessment has been informed by direct market testing with leading market suppliers 
who had no issues with the proposed extension and would rather bid for the contract in the 
future with a higher degree of specification certainty.  
 
An OJEU Contract Award Notice was issued following approval in order to transparently 
inform the market of the Council's intentions and time out period for challenges. To date no 
enquiries have been received regarding the notice and none are expected.  
 
As stated in the notice a formal procurement process to retender the contract will be 
undertaken in accordance with the following programme: 

Page 434



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

9 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 

• Issue OJEU Contract Notice & SSQ - April 2021 

• Establish dialogue shortlist - June 2021 

• Commencement of dialogue stages - September 2021 

• Contract Award - September 2022 

• Mobilisation commencement - October 2022 

• New service commencement - October 2023 
 
Waivers agreed due to Covid-19 (re-tender delay) 
 
No significant concerns and the number and value of waivers has decreased significantly.  
There is still a significant backlog of tenders which were delayed due to the CVD19 
pandemic, particularly in Adult Social Care and Children's Social Care where resources 
were reassigned to deal with the immediate impacts of the pandemic. Waivers to extend 
contracts were approved in the previous quarter however further direct award extensions  
to some contracts may be required in the coming quarter so that programmes can be 
staggered in view of ongoing resource pressures for the council and suppliers alike.  
 
Waivers in response to Covid-19 (emergency supplies / services) 
 
No significant concerns. Whilst the number of waivers is still high the value has decreased 
significantly. This is due to: 
 

 Build up of buffer PPE stock in the previous quarter meaning that further high 
volume orders have not been required and a move towards central government 
supply though PPE portal 

 Demand for food supply to shielded and vulnerable individuals reducing as 
restrictions have been removed and normal supply has resumed 

 IT equipment and licenses required to enable home working infrastructure were 
purchased in the previous quarter and will not require renewal for some time 

 Waivers for placing non-statutory homeless within hotels has reduced as better 
longer term alternatives have become available which can be contracted for 
compliantly without the need for further waivers 
 

It is expected that the requirement CVD19 response waivers will further reduce over the 
next quarter although there will still be some demand.  
 
One waiver has been approved to retain the services of the security provider used by the 
IBIS Hotels when homeless were placed there in order to maintain continuity in the 
interests of safety and welfare.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 435



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

10 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

SECTION 3 - CONTRACT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 
Contract management performance is monitored at summary level by application of a set 
of standard KPIs which are scored and reported on via the InTend system. Contracts are 
reported are on against the following criteria: 
 

 
 
KPI performance is as follows: 
 

 
June / July / Aug 2020 Aug / Sept / Oct 2020 

 

Value of Contracts 
Number of 
Contracts 

Value of Contracts 
Number of 
Contracts 

RED £0 0.00% 0 0.00% £0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

AMBER £37,323,250 1.93% 17 1.90% £24,246,888 1.56% 18 1.90% 

GREEN £1,263,725,864 65.36% 260 29.12% £1,126,291,985 72.66% 240 25.40% 

GOLD £19,690,019 1.02% 34 3.81% £26,637,050 1.72% 38 4.02% 

KPI never 
scored 

£147,227,339 7.61% 136 15.23% £144,788,562 9.34% 129 13.65% 

NO KPI 
scheduled 

£178,673,810 9.24% 157 17.58% £225,119,310 14.52% 166 17.57% 

NOT YET 
DUE 

£38,123,275 1.97% 182 20.38% £889,292 0.06% 161 17.04% 

KPI 
expired 

£248,806,777 12.87% 107 11.98% £2,093,917 0.14% 193 20.42% 

Grand 
Total 

£1,933,570,334 100.00% 893 100.00% £1,550,067,004 100.00% 945 100.00% 

 

Key 

 Gold: Outstanding performance 

 Green: Performing to standard 

 Amber: Some areas of improvement required 

 Red: Failing to perform 

 Expired KPI: a schedule is in place, and at least one KPI score has been 
  recorded, but there has been no KPI scoring in the last 12 
  months 

 KPI never scored: a schedule is in place, but there have been no KPI scores for 
  the contract 

 KPI not yet due: a schedule is in place, but KPI scores are not due yet. This 
  includes contracts where KPIs are overdue by less than 3 
  months (grace period) 

 No KPI scheduled: no KPI instances have been scheduled. 

Page 436



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Integrated Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Below is a summary level analysis undertaken by the Procurement Manager. Full details 
have been made available to the committee in the exempt information which accompanies 
this report - 'G&A - Procurement MI - App 3 Contract KPIs Aug / Sep / Oct 20 - 11.11.20'. 
 
There are no red status contracts but there are a number of contracts which are amber 
and require improvement. Whilst this number has increased it is still relatively low in terms 
of both value and volume. However Procurement will find out why these contracts are not 
performing to full standard, support the relevant contract managers and update the 
committee.  
 
What is still of more concern are the number of contracts where the KPI has never been 
scored or has not been scored for some time. Procurement focus has been on brining raw 
spend compliance up by gaining better visibility of contracts.  
 
Over the next quarter work will be undertaken to ensure that contract performance is better 
reported on across all contracts by contacting the relevant contract managers and offering 
support. This will be significantly aided by the recruitment by Procurement of additional 
admin resource and a dedicated contract management officer.  
 
Work will also be undertaken to begin reviewing the corporate KPI model to ensure that a 
relevant, proportionate approach is taken which will in turn increase take up and produce 
timely, accurate and comparative results.  
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by Richard Lock - (Acting) Procurement Manager 
 
 

Page 437



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 3 March and 25 September 2020
	Draft gas 25septMinutes

	4 2019/20 Audit Results Report
	5 Annual Governance Statement
	FINAL AGS 2019-20

	6 Risk and assurance management policy
	Risk policy reviewed Nov 2020

	7 Annual Statement of Accounts 2019/2020
	Annual Statement of Accounts Report 19-20 Appendix
	Portsmouth-City-Council-Draft-Statement-of-Accounts-2019-20-Part-1
	Portsmouth-City-Council-Draft-Statement-of-Accounts-2019-20-Part-2
	2019-20 Accounts Presentation

	8 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review
	20-21 Q2 Appendix midyear review

	9 PCC companies - Shareholder Committee terms of reference
	Appendix A - Shareholder committee
	Appendix B - LLG Guidence

	10 Compliance with Gifts & Hospitality protocol
	Appendix 1 - Gifts over 25 Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20
	Appendix 2 - Hospitality over 40 Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20
	Appendix 3 - ASC Gifts over 5 Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20
	Appendix 4 - Cash  Vouchers Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9
	Appendix 5 - Donated Items Report REDACTED 1.10.19-30.9.20
	Appendix 6 Members Gifts and Hospitality Register 2019-2020
	Live Register


	11 Internal Audit Performance Status Report to 6 November 2020.
	FINAL - Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report November 2020

	12 Consideration of the political balance rules in relation to the constitution of Sub-Committees considering complaints against Members.
	13 Data Security Breach Report
	Final Appendix A

	15 Procurement Management (information only)



